
 

 
Meeting of:   

 
Cabinet 

Date: Tuesday, 22nd November, 2022 
Time: 6.00 pm. 

 
Venue: Hollingworth B&C , First Floor, Training & 

Conference Suite, Number One Riverside, 
Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU 

 
Item 
No. 

AGENDA Page No 
 
1   Apologies  

 

 To receive any apologies for absence.  
 
2   Declarations of Interest  

 

 Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.    

 

 
3   Urgent Items of Business  

 

 To determine whether there are any additional items of business 
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency. 

 

 
4   Items for Exclusion of Public and Press  

 

 To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to 
be excluded from the meeting. 

 

 
5   Minutes  5 - 15 

 Members are requested to approve the Minutes of the Meetings held 
on 

the 27th September 2022 and 13th October 2022. 

 

 
6   Family Hub and Start for Life Programme Update  16 - 19 

 Report of the Cabinet Member for Children’s Services and  

Public Document Pack



Education/Director of Children’s Services. 
 
7   Need for Primary School Places 2023 - 2026  20 - 33 

 Report of the Cabinet Member for Children’s Services and 
Education/Director of Children’s Services. 

 

 
8   Need for Secondary School Places 2023 - 2026  34 - 39 

 Report of the Cabinet Member for Children’s Services and 
Education/Director of Children’s Services. 

 

 
9   Setting the Business Rate Base 2023-24  40 - 44 

 Report of the Cabinet Member for Finance and Corporate/Chief 
Finance Officer. 

 

 
10   Calculation of the 2023-24 Taxbase  45 - 51 

 Report of the Cabinet Member for Finance and Corporate/Chief 
Finance Officer. 

 

 
11   Q2 2022/23 Finance Update  52 - 89 

 Report of the Cabinet Member for Finance and Corporate/Chief 
Finance Officer. 

 

 
12   Revenue Budget Update  2023/24 - 2025/26  90 - 106 

 Report of the Cabinet Member for Finance and Corporate/Chief 
Finance Officer. 

 

 
13   Capital Programme 2023/24 to 2027/28  107 - 155 

 Report of the Cabinet Member for Finance and Corporate/Chief 
Finance Officer. 

 

 
14   Discretionary Fees and Charges 2023/24  156 - 203 

 Report of the Cabinet Member for Finance and Corporate/Chief  



 

Finance Officer. 
 
15   Charging Policy Adult Social Care Minimum Income Guarantee 

(Note: Item withdrawn at the meeting)  

 

 Report of the Cabinet Member for Adult Care and Wellbeing/ Interim 
Director of Adult Social Services. – this item has been withdrawn from 
the agenda  

 

 
16   Street Naming and Number Policy Review  204 - 216 

 Report of the Cabinet Member for Highways and Housing/Director of 
Neighbourhoods. 

 

 
17   Arts Council England / DCMS Cultural Development Fund Grant 

Award  
217 - 221 

 Report of the Cabinet Member for Communities and Co-
Operation/Director of Neighbourhoods/Director of Economy. 

 

 
18   Exclusion of Press and Public  

 

 To consider that the press and public be excluded from the remaining 
part of the meeting pursuant to Section 100(A)4 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 on the grounds that discussions may involve the 
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the provisions of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 and public 
interest would not be served in publishing the information.  

 

 
19   Industrial Property Portfolio Refurbishment  222 - 231 

 Report of the Cabinet Member for Economy and Regeneration/Director 
of Economy. 

 

 
20   Upperbanks (Rochdale Riverside Phase 2) - Development Update  232 - 240 

 Report of the Cabinet Member for Economy and Regeneration/Director 
of Economy. 

 

 
21   Rochdale Riverside Financial Update  241 - 254 



 Report of the Cabinet Member for Finance and Corporate/ Chief 
Finance Officer. 

 

 
22   Approval to Retender Food Supply Contracts - Fresh Kitchen 

(Note: Item withdrawn at the meeting)  

 

 Report of the Cabinet Member for Climate Change and Environment/ 
Director of Neighbourhoods. 

 

 

Cabinet Members 
Councillor Daalat Ali Councillor Neil Emmott 
Councillor Iftikhar Ahmed Councillor John Blundell 
Councillor Carol Wardle Councillor Rachel Massey 
Councillor Daniel Meredith Councillor Liam O'Rourke 
Councillor Susan Smith Councillor Janet Emsley 
 

For more information about this meeting, please contact  
Alison James – Committee and Constitutional Services  
01706 924711 
alison.james@rochdale.gov.uk  



CABINET 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
Thursday, 13 October 2022 

 
PRESENT: Councillor Neil Emmott (Chair); Councillors Daalat Ali, Emsley, 
John Blundell, Rachel Massey, Meredith, Susan Smith and Wardle 
 
OFFICERS:  S. Rumbelow (Chief Executive), M. Widdup (Director of 
Neighbourhoods), M. Robinson (Director of Economy), J. Murphy (Interim 
Director of Resources), S. Hedges (Interim Monitoring Officer), S. Smith 
(Resources Directorate), K. Thompson (Public Health), M. Lawton (Adult 
Social Care) and J. Jenkinson (Resources Directorate). 
 
 

58 APOLOGIES 
 
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillor Iftikhar Ahmed 
and Councillor O'Rourke. 
 

59 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

60 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
Resolved – That, in accordance with the provisions under Section 100(A)(4) of 
the Local Government Act 1972, as amended, the press and public be 
excluded from the meeting during the consideration of the following item of 
business.  
 
Reason for the Decision - should the press and public remain during 
consideration of the items, there may be a disclosure of information that was 
deemed to be exempt under Part 3 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972. 
 

61 OUTCOME OF THE FAIR COST OF CARE EXERCISE IN ADULT SOCIAL 
CARE 
 
Cabinet considered a report of the Cabinet Member for Adult Care and 
Wellbeing / Director of Commissioning that summarised the Fair Cost of Care 
process as part of the People at the Heart of Care White Paper. 
 
 
Alternative Options Considered and Rejected  
 
The Outcome of the Fair Cost of Care exercise in Adult Social Care was a 
mandatory requirement of the Department of Health and Social Care – 
therefore no other alternatives had been considered.  
 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



Resolved – That Cabinet  
 

1. Noted the progress and risks associated with the Fair Cost of Care 
exercise; 

 
2. Approved the submission of the Fair Cost of Care rates and Market 

Sustainability Plan to the Department of Health and Social Care by 
October 14th 2022; 

3. Noted that the Local Authority expected the financial implications of 
the Fair Cost of Care to be covered by Government funding, this was 
to be confirmed and the Local Authority would work towards the Fair 
Cost of Care as part of the annual setting of the fees for Domiciliary 
Care and Residential and Nursing Care for 2023/24; and 

4. Approved delegation to the Chief Executive in consultation with 
Interim Director of Resources and Director of Adult Social Care to 
make any required amendments before submission on 14th October 
2022. 

 
Reasons for Decision 
 
The outcome of the Fair Cost of Care exercise and Sustainability Plan were 
mandatory requirements from Central Government.  All Local Authorities were 
required to publish a local ‘cost of care’ for domiciliary care and residential 
and nursing home rates and a Sustainability Plan that set out how Adult Social 
Care would work towards funding a Fair Cost of Care over the coming years.  
 
The Chair of Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee had 
been consulted on the decision and it was agreed to waiver the call-in process 
as it was considered that any delay implementing the decision would seriously 
prejudice the Council’s or the public’s interests. 
 

Page 6



CABINET 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
Tuesday, 27 September 2022 

 
 
PRESENT: Councillor Neil Emmott (Chair); Councillors Daalat Ali, 
Iftikhar Ahmed, Wardle, Rachel Massey, O'Rourke and Susan Smith. 
 
OFFICERS:  S. Rumbelow (Chief Executive), M. Widdup (Director of 
Neighbourhoods), M. Robinson (Director of Economy), J. Murphy (Interim 
Director of Resources), S. Hedges (Interim Monitoring Officer), M. Atkinson-
Smith, E. Birkett, J. Hindle, B. Hirst, G. Pilkington and L. Rickell (Economy 
Directorate), F. Davies (Children’s Services Directorate), M. Ashworth and J. 
Jenkinson (Resources Directorate). 
 
ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: Councillor Taylor, Councillor Dearnley and 40 
members of the public. 
 

44 APOLOGIES 
 
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillor Emsley and 
Councillor Meredith. 
 

45 MINUTES 
 
RESOLVED - That the minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 30th August 
2022 be approved as a correct record. 
 

46 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

47 URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
 
There were no urgent items of business for consideration. 
 

48 ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 
 
RESOLVED – That agenda items 12, 13, 14 and 15 be dealt with following 
the exclusion of the press and public. 
 

49 LAND AT NEW STREET, DEARNLEY 
 
Cabinet considered a report of the Cabinet Member for Economy and 
Regeneration / Director of Economy in relation to the release of land at New 
Street, Dearnley for sale. 
 

Page 7



The Council had received an approach from a developer in respect of the site.  
Local Ward Members had been consulted on the principle of disposal and had 
raised objections to the possibility of the land being sold.   
 
Councillor Dearnley and a local resident in attendance, spoke in objection to 
the proposal. 
 
RESOLVED:  
 

I. That the disposal of land at New Street be approved in principle, 
subject to further investigation by officers. 

 
II. That authority be delegated to the Leader of the Council, in 

consultation with the Interim Director of Resources and Director of 
Economy to agree the terms of any disposal of the land at New Street. 
 

III. That the Interim Monitoring Officer be duly authorised to complete the 
legal documentation for any disposal of the land at New Street. 

 
 
Reasons for Decision  
 
Government policy advised local authorities to dispose of surplus land where 
possible. Local authorities were given powers under the Local Government 
Act 1972 to dispose of land in any manner it wished, including sale of 
freehold interest, to grant a lease / assign any unexpired term on a lease, and 
to grant easements.  The overriding requirement was to obtain the best 
consideration for the land.  ‘Best consideration’ did not necessarily mean the 
highest financial offer available.  
 
The decision as to whether or not to accept any offer(s) would take into 
account an evaluation of the financial considerations as well as the substance 
and strength of any supporting material submitted with the offer.  
 
Supporting information could lead the Council to accept a lower offer, where it 
had justifiable doubts - for example, about the financial security of a bidder or 
a bidder’s commitment to a proposed scheme. 
 
Release of the site for residential development would assist the Council’s 
Corporate Plan objective of supporting a better mix of affordable and higher 
value home provision in the Borough. 
 
The sale of the land would generate a significant capital receipt for the 
Council.  In addition, residential development of the land would generate 
additional Council Tax income for the Borough. 
 
Any ecological issues concerning the land on site would be addressed as part 
of the planning process. 
 
 

Page 8



Alternative Options Considered and Rejected  
 
To release the site for sale on the open market – in view of the fact Russell 
Homes were the adjacent landowner it was considered appropriate for the 
Council to consider an off market sale to Russell Homes, in order to deliver a 
comprehensive rather than piecemeal development.  
 
To retain the site and the land continue to be let on a grazing tenancy – 
this option would not assist the Council’s Corporate Plan objective of 
supporting a better mix of affordable and higher value home provision in the 
Borough. 
 

50 PLACES FOR EVERYONE: DELEGATED APPROVALS TO SUPPORT 
EXAMINATION 
 
Cabinet considered a report of the Cabinet Member for Economy and 
Regeneration / Director of Economy that sought approval to delegate authority 
to agree potential modifications to the submitted Places for Everyone Joint 
Development Plan Document (2021), as may be considered necessary during 
the Examination in Public (EiP), and to the content of any Statements of 
Common Ground that may be considered necessary to aid the EiP process. 
 
The Places for Everyone Joint Development Plan Document (2021) (PfE) was 
a strategic spatial plan that had been prepared jointly by nine Greater 
Manchester authorities.  It was a long-term plan for jobs, new homes, and 
sustainable growth and would set the housing and employment land 
requirements for each local authority.  The PfE would provide the overarching 
strategic context for the detailed policies of the forthcoming replacement 
Rochdale Local Plan. 
 

RESOLVED: That Cabinet  
 

I. Delegate authority to the Director of Economy, in consultation with the 
Cabinet Member for Economy and Regeneration / the Leader of the 
Council to agree proposed main modifications to the Places for 
Everyone Joint Development Plan Document (2021) as may be 
necessary to meet the tests of ‘soundness’ defined in the National 
Planning Policy Framework (2021) (or any equivalent following the 
amendment or revocation thereof); and the relevant statutory 
requirements of the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) 
(England) Regulations 2012 (or any equivalent Regulations following 
the amendment, re-enactment or revocation thereof). 

 
II. Delegate authority to the Director of Economy to make any minor 

modifications to the Places for Everyone Joint Development Plan 
Document (2021), as may be necessary. 

 
III. Delegate authority to the Director of Economy to prepare and agree 

Statements of Common Ground for the Places for Everyone Joint 
Development Plan Document (2021) as required. 

Page 9



 
Reasons for Decision  
 
The Places for Everyone Joint Development Plan Document (2021) (PfE) 
needed to progress through the EiP process as smoothly as possible.  If it 
was necessary to amend policies, this would need to be completed quickly, by 
a proposed modification, as recommended by the Inspectors to ensure that 
the Plan could be considered ‘sound’ and progress through the EiP.to 
Adoption. 
 
PfE was a key strategic planning document that would provide the context for 
the subsequent preparation of the replacement Rochdale’s Local Plan. If PfE 
was not progressed in a timely manner it would impact on the timescales for 
progressing and scope of the Rochdale Local Plan. 
 
Alternative Options Considered and Rejected  
 
There were not considered to be any reasonable alternative options – 
following a lengthy approval process to agree Main Modifications and 
Statements of Common Ground would significantly extend the Examination 
period and put the programme under jeopardy, notwithstanding frustrating the 
Inspectors, participants and local communities in Rochdale and across the 
plan area. Following the normal lengthy process would result in a significant 
increase in costs to the Council (and others) for the Inspectors, expert 
witnesses and barrister / QC representation time. 
 

51 CHANGING PLACES TOILET FUND GRANT AWARD 
 
Consideration was given to a report of the Cabinet Member for Climate 
Change and Environment / Cabinet Member for Communities and 
Cooperation / Director of Economy. 
 
Cabinet welcomed the report and commended the Changing Places initiative.   
 
RESOLVED:  
 

I. That the grant offer of £199,000 from the Department for Levelling Up, 
Housing and Communities, Changing Places Fund towards the 
development of up to eight Changing Places toilets on the agreed 
terms be accepted. 

 
II. That authority be delegated to the Interim Monitoring Officer to execute 

the Grant Agreement on behalf of the Council and / or to apply the 
Council’s seal to the contract once it was agreed. 

 
III. That the approved utilisation of the £50,000 allocated in the Capital 

Programme as match funding towards the grant be noted. 
 
IV. That subject to the UK Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF) Investment 

Plan being approved by Government and the Intervention Plan being 

Page 10



approved by the Greater Manchester Combined Authority, it was 
agreed to accept a provisional match funding allocation from the 
UKSPF to complete the project, and on receipt of funding approve 
appropriate resultant Capital budget adjustments in accordance with 
the Council’s Scheme of Virement. 

 
V. That the procurement process and appointment of the construction 

works be delegated to the Director of Neighbourhoods in consultation 
with the relevant Portfolio Holder and the Chair of the relevant 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
 

VI. That the Director of Neighbourhoods be requested to review the 
accessibility of public toilets within the Number One Riverside building 
to ensure any barriers to access were removed. 

 
Reasons for Decision  
 
Over 21% of the Borough’s population have a long-term health condition.  The 
project would provide a significant benefit to residents and visitors with a 
disability and provide dignity to users, carers and their families. 
 
The Changing Places Consortium launched its national campaign in 2006 on 
behalf of the over 250,000 people unable to use standard accessible toilets.  
This included people with profound and multiple learning disabilities, motor 
neurone disease, multiple sclerosis, cerebral palsy, and older people, who 
often need extra equipment and space to allow them to use the toilet safely 
and comfortably. 
The use of Changing Places toilets (CPTs) would no longer put people with 
disabilities at risk, and families and carer would not be forced to risk their 
health and safety by changing a person on a toilet floor, which was 
dangerous, unhygienic and undignified. 
 
Alternative Options Considered and Rejected  
 
Not to bid for external capital funding - there were currently no 
opportunities for other investment in such facilities from other sources. 
 
Not to accept the CPT Fund grant - this would mean that the proposals for 
up to eight new CPTs would not be delivered.  This would result in the loss of 
significant external funding, plus leverage of other match funding investments 
would not be fully realised.  
 

52 UK SHARED PROSPERITY FUND GRANT ALLOCATION AND 
EXPENDITURE 
 
Cabinet considered a report of the Cabinet Member for Economy and 
Regeneration / Director of Economy that sought approval to accept a UK 
Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF) Grant allocation and expenditure. 
 
 

Page 11



RESOLVED:  
 

I. That the grant offer from the UKSPF, including the £2.2 million allocated 
from the Community & Place Investment Priority be accepted.  

 
II. That expenditure of the funding in line with the UKSPF Intervention Plan for 

the Borough be approved. 
 
III. That approval of and allocation of funding under the Intervention Plan be 

delegated to the Director of Economy in consultation with the relevant 
Cabinet Member (s) and the Chair of the Communities, Regeneration and 
Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

 
IV. That approval of and allocation of funding under the Intervention Plan and 

expenditure in respect of the Local Business (SME managed workspace) 
element of the UKSPF be delegated to the Director of Economy in 
consultation with the Cabinet Member for Economy and Regeneration. 

 
V. That officers be authorised to undertake any procurement and appointment 

of project teams and to enter into any contracts necessary to develop and 
deliver the project in consultation with the Interim Monitoring Officer. 

 
VI. That authority be delegated to the Interim Monitoring Officer to execute the 

Grant Agreement on behalf of the Council and / or to apply the Council’s 
seal to the contract once agreed. 

 
 
Reasons for Decision  
 
The project would support delivery of existing and proposed programmes to 
support the overarching aim of building pride in place and increasing life 
chances. 
 
Alternative Options Considered and Rejected  
 

To not utilise the UKSPF funding from Government – this was not 
recommended as there were limited opportunities for other investment at this 
scale. 
 
Amend the proposals and reconsider – this option was not recommended as 
timescales for submitting the plans were extremely tight. 
 

53 NEW SCHOOL FINANCING 
 
Cabinet considered a report of the Cabinet Member for Children’s Services 
and Education/Director of Children’s Services that sought approval to agree 
additional funding to support Edgar Wood Academy as a ‘going concern’. 
 

Page 12



Edgar Wood Academy secondary school opened in a new school building in 
September 2022. The Academy had overheads and set up costs related to 
the move, and approval of additional funding was required. 
 
RESOLVED:  
 

I. That the spend from s106 education contributions to the Altus 
Education Partnership to cover set up costs associated with the move 
into the new Edgar Wood School building, as set out in the exempt 
Appendix 1 of the report be approved.  

 
II. That an allocation for the 2022/23 academic year and the academic 

year 2023/24 for Edgar Wood Academy’s revenue funding from the 
growth funding within the schools block of the Dedicated Schools 
Grant, as set out in the exempt Appendix 1 of the report be approved.  

 
Reasons for Decision  
 
Local authorities had a statutory responsibility to provide sufficient school 
places, which included supporting the opening of new schools when and 
where they were needed.  
 
Academy Trusts must comply with the Academy Trust Handbook as a 
condition of their funding agreement. The Handbook provided an overarching 
framework for implementation of effective financial management, consistent 
with the obligations of publicly funded bodies.  
 
UK financial reporting frameworks require the adoption of the ‘going concern 
basis of accounting’ in financial statements. The term, ‘going concern’ meant 
a view as to whether or not an entity would have sufficient funds to pay its 
obligations, such as payroll, trade creditors, and so on, as they fall due, over 
at least the next 12 months from the date of approval of the financial 
statements.  
 
Alternative Options Considered and Rejected  
 
To not subsidise the Altus Education Partnership to open the new 
school – this option was not recommended, because until the pupil numbers 
in the school built up to sufficiently finance the running of the school, without 
financial support the school might have to close, since the financial 
regulations on publically funded bodies required the Trust not to run a deficit 
budget. The size of the possible deficit would be too large to be covered by 
the Trust. 
 

54 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
That, in accordance with the provisions under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, as amended, the press and public be excluded from 
the meeting during the consideration of the following items of business. 
Reason for the Decision - should the press and public remain during 

Page 13



consideration of the items, there may be a disclosure of information that was 
deemed to be exempt under Part 3 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972. 
 

55 HEYWOOD CEMETERY CHAPEL FIRE DAMAGE 
 
Cabinet considered a report of the Cabinet Member for Climate Change and 
Environment / Director of Neighbourhoods that sought approval to accept a 
tender submitted to carry out rebuilding works, following a fire at Heywood 
Cemetery Chapel. 
 
RESOLVED: That the tender for the rebuilding of Heywood Cemetery Chapel, 
as detailed in the report, be accepted. 
 
Reasons for Decision  
 
A tender appraisal had been carried out and taking into consideration 
financial, quality and added social value, the recommended contractor was 
considered to be the most economically advantageous tender and 
represented value for money in comparison with the range of other tenders 
submitted. 
 
The building works would allow the re-opening of the Chapel for service users. 
 
Heywood Cemetery Chapel was a heritage asset and the rebuild was in line 
with the local community expectations. 
 
Alternative Options Considered and Rejected  
 
To demolish the Chapel – this was not recommended as the Chapel was a 
heritage asset and provided a valued local service. 
 

56 HOPWOOD OLD HALL - REVISED OPTION AGREEMENT 
 
Cabinet considered a report of the Cabinet Member for Economy and 
Regeneration / Director of Economy that provided an update on the progress 
to restore Hopwood Old Hall. 
 
RESOLVED: That the recommendations as set out in the report be approved. 
 
Reasons for Decision  
 
The reasons for the decision were set out in the report. 
 
Alternative Options Considered and Rejected  
 
The alternative options considered were set out in the report. 
 
 
 

Page 14



57 ROCHDALE TOWN HALL 
 
Cabinet considered a report of the Cabinet Member for Economy and 
Regeneration / Director of Economy that sought approval to rephrase 
allocated capital programme funds to deliver Phase 3 design work and 
additional works to the Great Hall. 
 
RESOLVED: That the recommendations as set out in the report be approved. 
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
The reasons for the decision were set out in the report. 
 
Alternative Options Considered and Rejected  
 
The alternative options considered were set out in the report. 
 

Page 15



 

Report to Cabinet 
 

Date of Meeting 22nd November 2022 
Portfolio Portfolio Holder for 

Children’s Services and 
Education- Rachel 
Massey 

Report Author Amanda Highland-
Partington/ Lianne Davies  

Public/Private Document Public 
 

 

Family Hubs and Start for Life Programme 
 

 
 

Executive Summary 
 
1.1 
 
 
 
1.2 
 
 
 
1.3 
 
 
1.4 

This report is requesting approval for delegated spend in relation to the Family 
Hubs and Start for Life programme, which the council signed up to on 31st 
October 2022. 
 
In the Autumn Budget 2021, a commitment of £301.75m (over 3 years) was 
made, for 75 upper-tier local authorities to deliver Start for Life and Family 
Hub services. Rochdale was included within the 75 local authorities selected.   
 
Rochdale’s total indicative allocation for the Family Hubs and Start for Life 
programme is between £3.4m and £3.53m over three financial years.  
 
The Family Hubs and Start for Life Programme is a jointly overseen by the 
Department for Education (Dfe) and the Department of Health and Social 
Care (DHSC) with funding allocated from November 2022 to March 2025. 
There is an expectation that local authorities meet all the requirements of the 
Family Hubs and Start for Life programme by 31st March 2025.     
 

 
Recommendation 

 
2.1 
 
 
2.2 

Cabinet are asked to approve the expenditure related to the Family Hubs and 
Start for Life following sign up to this programme.    
 
Cabinet are asked to agree that budget approval processes are delegated to 
the Director of Children’s Services and Director of Public Health in 
consultation with respective lead members and the Interim Director of 
Resources as Section 151 officer.   
 

 
Page 16

Agenda Item 6



Reason for Recommendation 
 
3.1 Cabinet are being asked to approve expenditure and agree delegated 

authority to enable implementation of the Family Hubs and Start for Life 
programme to ensure that timescales and conditions of funding are met.   
 

Key Points for Consideration 
 
4.1  The aim of Family Hubs is to provide families with multi-agency support to care 

for their children from conception, throughout the early years, and into the start 
of adulthood (0-25 years).There is a minimum service offer (basic and 
developed model) and a national framework for Family Hubs with services 
provided as below: 

  
 Physically or in person at a Family Hub building by the relevant professional 

or practitioner 
 Through the Family Hub network of services (e.g. VCSE organisation, 

outreach, clinical setting), but not in a Family Hub building  
 Through a virtual online offer 

 
4.2   In Rochdale, there are strong multi-agency foundations to implement the 

Family Hubs programme. Development of the programme will align to the 
Local Care Organisation neighbourhood service developments and all age 
prevention services. Rochdale completed the sign up process for the 
programme on 31st October 2022, and are awaiting release of the first tranche 
of 2022-2023 funding in November 2022.  

4.3 There are robust grant conditions associated with the funding in relation to 
eligible expenditure, percentage spend allocation, a programme guide of 
interventions to be delivered and timescales.   

 
Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5.1 Rochdale’s total indicative allocation for the Family Hubs and Start for Life 

programme is between £3.4m and £3.53m over three financial years. Final 
allocation will be provided following confirmation of the number of local 
authorities signed up to the programme. The breakdown of this allocation is 
outlined below in Table 1. 

 
 Table 1 
 

 
 
 

2022-23 2023-2024 2024-2025 Programme Total 

Total 
(£,000) 

Lower 
Range 
(£,000) 

Upper 
Range 
(£,000) 

Lower 
Range 
(£,000) 

Upper 
Range 
(£,000) 

Lower 
Range 
(£,000) 

Upper Range 
(£,000) 

852 1,386 1,457 1,164 1,220 3,402 3,529 

Page 17



 
5.2 Expectations relate to funding allocation with the distribution outlined below in  

Table 2. 
 
Table 2 

 
 

 

Risk and Policy Implications 
 

6.1  There is a risk of being unable to allocate and spend the whole of the grant 
in year 1 (2022-2023), due to the late provision of guidance and funding as 
carry forward at this stage is not permitted. To mitigate against this a Family 
Hubs Transformation Group is to be established imminently now the sign up 
process has been completed. This group will scope and allocate funding 
within the parameters of the grant conditions and any issues in relation to 
expenditure would be identified and escalated to the Children’s Services 
Senior Management Team, and the Director of Children’s Services/ Director 
of Public Health. 

 
6.2  There is only a very small amount of capital funding annually within the grant 

to support the co-location of partner agencies and service delivery. To 
maximise opportunities the capital Family Hubs programme would require 
alignment with other capital and estates programmes (e.g. Youth Investment 
Fund). The 2022-2023 capital allocation will be challenging to spend within 
the timescales due to identification and contract processes, and therefore 
will be prioritised with both the Children’s Services Senior Management 
Team and Rochdale’s Dfe Link Advisor updated regularly.     

 
  

Consultation 
 

Programme Area and Children’s Age Range Percentage (to nearest 0.1%) 
Family Hubs programme spend (0-19 years) 19.4% 
Family Hubs capital spend (0-19 years) 4.9% 
Perinatal mental health and parent infant relationships  
(0-1 years) 

31.2% 

Parenting Support (0-1 years) 15.5% 
Infant Feeding Support (0-1 years) 16.6% 
Home learning environment interventions (3-4 years) 8.8% 
Publishing Start for Life Offer and Parent and Carer Panel  
(0-1 years) 

3.7% 

Page 18



7.1 
 
 
 
 
 
7.2 

Family Hub and Start for Life national and local developments have been 
shared, and discussed with the Locality Board; Health and Wellbeing Board; 
Children’s Services Department Management Teams; Early Help Strategic 
Board; Children and Young People’s Partnership; Local Care Organisation 
Senior Management Team; and the Prevention Board.  
 
Following publication of the final guidance further consultation is now 
permitted, therefore a communication and consultation plan will be 
developed as part of the implementation of the programme through multi-
agency governance. Consultation with children, young people and families 
will be undertaken as part of the next phase of implementation of the 
programme.      

 
 
Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 
8. Here you should detail any 

background papers –  
 
 

Background documents can be viewed 
at Number 1 Riverside. Documents 
include: 
 
1. Family Hubs and Start for Life 

Programme Guide 
2. Family Hub Model Framework 
3. Family Hub Service Expectations 
 
 

 

For Further Information Contact: Amanda Highland-Partington 
 
01706 925687 
 
amanda.highland-
partington@rochdale.gov.uk  
 

Page 19

mailto:amanda.highland-partington@rochdale.gov.uk
mailto:amanda.highland-partington@rochdale.gov.uk


 

Report to Cabinet 
 

Date of Meeting 22nd November 2022 
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Children’s Services and 
Education 

Report Author Fay Davies, School Place 
Planning Manager 
Early Help & Schools  

Public/Private Document Public 
 

Need for Primary School Places 2023 - 2026 
 

 
Executive Summary 

 
1.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.2 
 

Across the borough birth rates for Primary school cohort intakes have dropped 
by 204; from 3051 in 2021, to 2847 for 2022 intake. Also through 2015 to 2019 
there had been an in-flow of pupils in pre-school years which significantly 
enlarged those cohorts. In the last couple of years in-flow has been reduced, 
particularly central Rochdale, by Covid and lockdowns, and underlying birth 
rates are due to drop by a further 121 by the 2025 Primary school intake. 
 
It is still uncertain whether in-flow rates will return to previous levels and some 
areas of the schools system must look to reduce admission numbers in order 
for schools to have certainty on pupil numbers and thus finance. 

 
Recommendation 

 
2.1 
 
 
2.2 
 
 
2.3 
 
 
2.4 
 
 
2.5 
 

Approve an additional Reception class at Hollin Primary School in Middleton 
for 2023 school intake.  
 
Note the additional Primary school year 2 class at Alkrington Primary school 
in Middleton. 
 
Approve opening three consultations on removing excess Primary school 
spare capacity in Rochdale central, Rochdale north, and Heywood. 
 
Note the consultation on new Presumption Free schools currently open on 
the consultation hub 
 
Note the opening of the DfE Wave 15 Free school application process. 

 
Reason for Recommendation 

Page 20

Agenda Item 7



 
3.1 
 
 
 
3.2 
 
 
 
3.3 
 
 
 
 
 
3.4 
 
 
 
 
 

The council has a statutory duty to provide education and school places to all 
school aged children living in the borough and consequently has a duty to 
plan adequately for predicted pupil numbers. 
 
Under the Education Act 1996, section 14(1) the Local Authority has a duty to 
secure sufficient school places and is also the strategic commissioner for new 
school places in its area. 
 
A local authority shall exercise their functions under this legislation to 
contribute towards the spiritual, moral, mental and physical development of 
the community by securing that efficient primary education, and secondary 
education and, in the case of a local authority in England, further education, 
are available to meet the needs of the population of their area. 
 
Drops in birth rates and take up of places for Reception intake mean that too 
much capacity is forecasted. This will impact on financial viability of schools 
and have knock on effects for quality of education. All school Admission 
Authorities, including the Local Authority, are required to follow the 
Admissions code to reduce the Published Admission Number for their 
school/schools (see attached background paper in section 8) 

 
Key Points for Consideration 

 
4.1 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2 
 
 
 
4.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.4 
 
 

In order to improve council oversight, and better manage the process of 
adapting pupil spaces to need, in September 2021 the ADCS created a 
decision making committee for pupil places with representatives from finance, 
school improvement and school organisation teams.  
 
Heywood 
Primary school intakes in Heywood have dropped since 2019 by about 40 
pupils. For the 2023 year the indications are that, if it follows birth rates, the 
intake should rise by about 30 pupils before dropping again for 2024 onwards. 
 
Until 2019 Heywood had a net increase in children starting school, of up to 
10% above birth rates. Since then the increase has stopped. Behind the lack 
of recent inflow into the area is the fact that the new housing completions 
which were approximately 200 per year between 2017 and 2019, have now 
dropped to only 30 per year since 2020. This year 340 new homes have been 
given planning permission as part of the South Heywood/Junction 19 
development. An estimate of 100 new homes per year for the next 5 years is 
included in the forecasts. The building and sale rate of the new homes could 
be impacted by wider market conditions. 
 
Although the South Heywood/Junction 19 development does include a site for 
a new Primary school, and a Presumption competition will be initiated, it is not 
obvious at this time whether a new school will be needed. The delivery time 
for a new school including consultation and Presumption competition could 
be approximately 4-5 years and so is beyond the current forecasting period). 

 

Page 21



4.5 
 
 
4.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
4.7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.8 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
4.9 
 
 
4.10 
 
 
4.11 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.12 
 
 
 
 
4.13 

Too much spare capacity is currently available in the forecasted time line and 
approval is sought to consult local schools on the reduction of pupil intake 
numbers by 1 form of entry, 30 pupils, moving forward. 
 

 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 
Reception 
Places 
Needed  

39 spare 97 spare 87 spare 85 spare  

Plans  Consideration must be taken on how much spare capacity is too 
much. Schools in the area will be consulted on reducing intake. 

Future 
Issues 

  

New housing coming forward in South Heywood 
may require a new 1 form entry school. The new 
school would be paid for by developers and a site 
has been provided. 

 
Middleton 
Forecasts show that in Middleton additional places are needed for 2023/24. 
Middleton has high levels of in-flow and significant shortages of places are 
expected without additional capacity. During the 2021/22 academic year 44 
additional pupils arrived on-roll in key stage 1 classes and 76 additional 
children arrived in key stage 2 after the start of the school year just in 
Middleton. 
 

 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 
Reception 
Places 
Needed 

61 places needed 23 places needed 13 places needed 19 places needed 

Plans 
Provide a third 
year of temporary 
bulge classes at 
Hollin Primary  

   

Future 
Issues 

Permanent expansion of school is needed in central Middleton which is under 
negotiation. 

 
For 2023 Reception intake an additional 30 places are being created in Hollin 
Primary with the approval of the head teacher and governing board.  
 
An addition of an extra year 2 class is also in negotiation with Alkrington 
Primary to open after the October half term. 
 
While inflow of additional pupils after start of Reception class has been a long 
term feature in Middleton, and one extra class has always been needed by 
the end of year 2, the in-flow of pupils at key stage 2 last year was extra-
ordinary. Almost ten times as many pupils as the long term average inflow 
was seen, which was presumably families moving into the new homes and 
moving prior to the Secondary school transition. Almost all year groups in 
Middleton will have insufficient places going forward if the in-flow seen last 
year continues. 
 
An expansion project is under negotiation, to provide accommodation for a 3 
classroom extension, with a school in Middleton but a final solution is not yet 
agreed. 
 
Pennine 

Page 22



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.14 
 
 
 
4.15 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.16 
 
 
 
4.17 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.18 
 
 
 
 
 
4.19 
 
 

For the 2021 Reception intake for north Pennine the underlying birth rate was 
high, but schools under-recruited considerably. Local issues include the 
rebuilding programme at Littleborough Primary school and the continued lack 
of Secondary school places. Historically north Pennine is a net importer of 
children, with more children arriving in Reception than are born locally. There 
is an expectation that, when the Littleborough Primary re-build project is 
complete, and the new Secondary school is open, that families will have 
confidence to apply for school places in this area again. Although there are 
high numbers of spare places it is considered that once local issues are 
resolved that uptake of places will recover. 
 
In Pennines South there is a net loss between births and Reception class. 
Some spare capacity is needed and there are plans in the Places for 
Everyone plan for additional new housing. 
 

  2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 
Extra 
Reception 
Places Needed 

44 spare 67 spare 77 spare  58 spare 

Plans Spare capacity will be kept under review, but temporary issues are 
thought to be impacting current applications. 

Pe
nn

in
es

 N
 

  

Future Issues Littleborough Primary new build school and the new Secondary 
school, will impact on the desirability of places in this area. New 
housing is also coming forward. 

Extra 
Reception 
Places Needed 

26 spare 17 spare 29 spare 23 spare 

Pe
nn

in
es

 S
 

Plans/ Future 
issues 

 
Plans will remain under review with consideration of the Places for 
Everyone plan. 

 
 
Rochdale 
Across the Rochdale north area (NE and NW) there are on at least 3 spare 
forms of entry (90 places) over the forecast period. The over-capacity needs 
to be addressed. 
 

  2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 
Extra Reception 
Places Needed 

58 spare (NE) 
34 spare (NW) 

28 spare (NE) 
60 spare (NW) 

73 spare (NE) 
39 spare (NW) 

34 spare (NE) 
59 spare (NW) 

N
W

  a
nd

 N
E 

R
oc

hd
al

e 

Plans/ Future 
Issues 

NE area: High in-year admissions in NE Rochdale mean that spare 
capacity needed to accommodate in year moves. 
NW area: Spare capacity in Rochdale NW is too high 
 
Across the area capacity should be reduced. 

 
In central Rochdale, 2023 is due to be a high intake years according to the 
underlying birth rates, but school applications in central Rochdale appear to 
me more correlated with economic issues and not birth rates. From 2024 
however, birth rates and the forecast show too much spare capacity and some 
of this spare capacity should be removed. 
 
In the south of Rochdale, underlying birth rates show a dip for the 2022 school 
intake before rising gradually towards 2025. Housing developments in the 

Page 23



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.20 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.21 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.22 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.23 
 
 
 

south of the area, have in the past, impacted on the sufficiency of places. 
Timing of new housing developments and creation of sufficient places is going 
to be an issue going forward in the SW area and current forecasts of spare 
capacity will need to be reviewed. Housing plans under the Places for 
Everyone indicate an additional 1680 houses may come forward over the next 
15 years. A new school will be needed depending on the speed of arrival of 
new housing and a consultation on this will need to be run. 
 

 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 
85 spare (C) Extra 

Reception 
Places Needed 

42 spare (C) 
24 spare (SW) 

75 spare (C) 
22 spare (SW) -11 needed (SW) 69 spare (C) 

13 spare (SW) 
Plans Spare capacity in the central Rochdale should be reduced. 

C
 a

nd
 S

W
 R

oc
hd

al
e 

 

Future Issues 
 Additional housing developments in the south means a new school will be 
needed in the area in the long term. A new school will need to be created 
through the Presumption route. 

 
 
Summary 

I. New consultation on Presumption route new Primary schools for 
Heywood and Rochdale SW is open. 
 

II. Extra capacity is needed in Middleton. The additional Reception 
class at Hollin Primary will be continued for 2023. A year 2 class 
has been created in Alkrington Primary.  

 
III. Investigate options for removing 3 classes of spare capacity in 

central Rochdale, North Rochdale and Heywood. 

Wave 15 
The government has opened a new round of centrally delivered Free 
(Academy) schools. A short note was sent out to interested trusts regarding 
the need for a new school in Castleton. Delivery timescales on centrally 
delivered schools are between 4 and 7 years. The note was an update to the 
Wave 14 note that was sent out in 2019/20. The Expression of Interest 
deadline was September 16th. 
 
Alternatives Considered 
Alternatives are constantly under review and any impacts of the current 
pandemic on house building rates or timing of new developments will have 
knock on effects on school capacity. 

 
Costs and Budget Summary 

 

Page 24



5.1 
 
 
5.2 
 
 
 
 
5.3 
 
 
 
 
 

The costs associated with co-ordinating admission arrangements are met 
from the Dedicated Schools Grant.   
 
Where applicable, schools offering additional pupil places to meet the LA’s 
statutory need may also be eligible for additional revenue funding from the 
Dedicated Schools Grant. The policy and funding available for basic need 
growth has to be agreed with Schools Forum. 
 
Schools are funded based on the number of pupils. Whilst is it acknowledged 
that a school will have some vacant places, a high number of vacant places 
in a single year group created if pupils do not materialise as forecast will have 
an adverse effect on a school’s funding. This can be managed in the short 
term through the application of the Growth Fund policy but it is not sustainable 
longer term 

 
Risk and Policy Implications 

 
6. The application of pupil place planning arrangements contributes to the 

Council Business Plan in ensuring an effective allocation process for school 
admissions. The council has a statutory duty to offer a school place to every 
child living in the borough and must manage the schools estate to meet the 
predicted need. 

  
Consultation 

 
7.1 
 
 
7.2 

Consultation on opening of new schools through the Free School 
Presumption route currently open on the consultation hub. 
 
Any plans requiring reductions in Pupil Admission Numbers to will follow the 
statutory process including consultation 

 
Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 
8
. 

School admissions code 2021 (publishing.service.gov.uk) 
 
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/
attachment_data/file/1001050/School_admissions_code_2021.pdf 

 

 

For Further Information Contact: Fay Davies, , 
fay.davies@rochdale.gov.uk 

Page 25



Appendix 1: The Need for Primary School Places 2023-26 
 
Heywood 
In-flow of pupils has continued to be very low for Reception year. Some in-flow is 
happening in upper year groups, but there is sufficient spare capacity to meet this 
demand. Current forecasts show a peak for 2023/24 with intakes decreasing 
following birth rates through to 2025/26. Too much spare capacity will become an 
issue after 2023. 
 

 
Figure 1: Heywood Reception intake forecast 
 

 
Figure 2: Predicted Reception Places and Expected Pupils for Heywood 
 
The number of Reception class places currently available in Heywood schools in 
September 2022 is set out in the table 1: 
School Places School Places School Places 
Heap Bridge 25 St Joseph's RC  60 Hopwood  60 
Our Lady & St 
Paul's RC 30 Harwood Park 60 St Michael's 

CE VA 30 

Page 26



St Margaret's 
CE VA 30 St Luke's CE VC 60   

Woodland   90 All Souls CE VC 30   
Table 1: Number of Reception places available Heywood 
 
Middleton 
 
Middleton Reception pupil numbers are due to peak again in 2023/24 and numbers 
of pupils coming from new housing developments have increased massively through 
2021/22. Figure 3 also shows school census intake numbers and on roll numbers at 
and indicate without additional capacity there will be a shortage of places for 2023 
intake. 

 
 
Figure 3: Middleton Reception Intake forecast data 

 
Figure 4: Reception Places and Expected Pupil numbers for Middleton 
The number of Reception class places currently available in Middleton schools in 
September 2022 is set out in the table 2: 
 
School Places School Places School Places 

Page 27



St John 
Fisher RC 30 Middleton Parish 

CE VA 60 St Peter's RC 30 

Hollin 60 Parkfield 30 Alkrington 60 

Boarshaw 60 Elm Wood 60 St Thomas More 
RC 45 

Bowlee Park 120 Little Heaton CE 
VC 30 St Michael's CE 

VA 30 

St Mary's RC 60 St Gabriel's CE VC 30   
Table 2: Reception Places available Middleton September 2022 
 
Pennine 
 
The applications to schools in north Pennines have dropped significantly for 2021, 
but have now picked up slightly(figure 5), but are due to drop again in 2024. It is 
believed this is due to local factors; including a temporary drop in the number of new 
house completions, the rebuilding of Littleborough Primary and the delay in the new 
Secondary school. The current spare capacity will be kept under review.  

 
Figure 5: Reception Intake forecast for Pennines North 
Schools in south Pennines have in the past seen intakes closer to the underlying 
birth rates and there the current capacity is sufficient to meet the underlying birth 
rates (figure 6). Capacity will be kept under review. 

Page 28



 
Figure 6: Reception Intake forecast for Pennines South 
 

 
Figure 7: Places and Expected Pupils Pennines North 

 
Figure 8: Places and expected pupils Pennines South 

Page 29



 
The number of Reception class places currently available in Pennine schools in 
September 2022 is set out in the following table: 
School Places School Places School Places 
Stansfield Hall 
CE VC 20 St Andrew's 

CE VC 60 Moorhouse 30 

Littleborough 60 Smithy Bridge 60 Crossgates 45 
Holy Trinity CE 
VA 30 Hamer 45 Milnrow Parish CE 

VA 30 

St Mary's RC 30 Kentmere 
Academy 45 Newhey 45 

St James' CE  F 30 Alice Ingham 
RC 24 St Thomas' CE 

VA 21 

Table 3: Pennines Schools Places September 2022 
 
Rochdale 
 
Rochdale Township includes almost half of children educated in Rochdale Borough. 
For school place planning purposes this has been split up into four areas as shown 
in figure 9 below. Data is shown for two zones; North West and North East Rochdale 
combined and Central and South West Rochdale combined. 

 
Figure 9: Rochdale Borough Primary Planning Areas 

Page 30



 
Rochdale NE and NW  
Underlying birth rates in NE Rochdale indicate that current cohorts are due to slowly 
rise to 2026. In the NW Rochdale area births numbers have dropped and the 
forecast predicts only 331 pupils for 390 places. This suggests a current level of 
spare capacity in NW Rochdale that would be unsustainable. 

 
Figure 10: Forecast for North East and North West areas of Rochdale 
Township. 
 

 
Figure 11: Spaces and Expected pupils in North-east Rochdale 

Page 31



 
Figure 12: Spaces and expected pupils North-west Rochdale 
 
Rochdale Central and SW 
The birth rate in the SW and Central Rochdale area has zigzagged for several years 
and pupil numbers have not followed this trend. Birth data is not a good forecaster of 
numbers. There is currently forecast to be too much spare capacity which may be 
unsustainable. 
 

 
Figure 13: Reception Forecast for Rochdale Central and South-West areas. 
 
In SW Rochdale classes are forecasted to have reducing spare capacity for the next 
4 years (figure 15) and some spare capacity needs to be maintained because of in 
year applications and new housing coming forward in the SW area. 

Page 32



 
Figure 14: Spaces and expected pupils in the Central Rochdale area 

 
Figure 15: Spaces and expected pupils in the South-west Rochdale area 
 
The number of Reception class places currently available in Rochdale Township 
schools in September 2021 is set out in the following table: 
School Places School Places School Places 
Healey F 30 Whittaker Moss 60 Marland Hill 60 
Shawclough 60 St Vincent's RC 60 Brimrod 30 
All Saints CE 
VA 30 Bamford 

Academy 60 Ashfield Valley 30 

Greenbank 60 Belfield    60 St Mary's CE VC 30 
St Patrick's 
RC 45 Sacred Heart 

RC  30 Sandbrook 90 

Heybrook 90 Broadfield 60 Holy Family RC  30 
Meanwood 60 St John's RC  30 St Edward's CE 

VC 52 

Norden 60 Deeplish 
Academy 60 Castleton 60 

Spotland 60 St Peter's CE 
VC 60 St Gabriel's RC   30 

Caldershaw 30 Lowerplace 90 St John'sCE  
T'ham 15 

Table 4: Places in Rochdale Township in September 2022

Page 33



 

Report to Cabinet 
 

Date of Meeting 22nd November 2022 
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Children’s Services and 
Education 

Report Author Fay Davies, School Place 
Planning Manager 
Early Help & Schools  

Public/Private Document Public 
 

 

Need for Secondary School Places 2023 - 2026 
 

 
Executive Summary 

 
1.1 
 
 
 
1.2 
 
 
 
1.3 

Through 2021-22 in-flow into Rochdale has caused significant issues in 
providing Secondary school places to newcomers to the area. There is a 
shortage of Secondary places across the Greater Manchester area. 
 
The new Secondary in Littleborough, which will be run by Star Academies, 
has been “paused” by the Department for Education. The DfE have said that 
the school will now not be opened before 2025. 
 
The new SEN school timeline for delivery has also been delayed and is 
currently not expected to be finished until the “2024/25 school year”. 

 
Recommendation 

 
2.1 
 
 
2.2 
 
 
 
2.3 
 
 

To note the new delivery timescales of two new schools; the Littleborough 
Star Leadership Academy and the Heywood SEN school. 
 
Approve spending of £1.5m from Basic Need funding to provide 
accommodation for an additional 50 places at Wardle Academy for 2023 
intake. 
 
Approve the submission of a bid for the new round of centrally delivered 
SEN schools.  
 
 
 
 

 
Reason for Recommendation 

 

Page 34

Agenda Item 8



3.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.2 
 
 

The council has a statutory duty to offer every pupil living in the borough, who 
applies, a Secondary school place. Where the council offers a school place 
that is over the statutory “safe walking distance” for the age of that child the 
council is required to provide free school transport. Because bus transport in 
the area is provided through Transport for Greater Manchester, any child 
offered a school place, which is over the statutory distance criteria, is offered 
a free bus pass that is provided from council funds. The council receives no 
central government funding for school bus transport. 
 
The council does receive Basic Need funding to provide additional school 
places for both permanent and temporary school building expansions and 
bulge classes. The allocation of Basic Need funding from central government 
is reported annually to the council Cabinet and the report this year was 
approved on 29th March 2022 

 
Key Points for Consideration 

 
4.1 
 
 
 
 
4.2 
 
 
 
 
4.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.4 
 
 

In order to improve council oversight, and better manage the process of 
adapting pupil spaces to need, in September 2021 the ADCS created a 
decision making committee for pupil places with representatives from finance, 
school improvement and school organisation teams.  
 
The new Edgar Wood Academy opened in September 2021 in temporary 
accommodation on Hopwood Hall College campus in Middleton. In 
September 2022 the school opened in its newly finished building off Heywood 
Old Road near Birch/Bowlee. 
 
In September 2021 Wardle Academy had a building extension to provide 100 
additional places; 50 for 2021 and 50 for 2022 intakes. For September 2023 
Wardle have offered a further 50 places with a further classroom extension to 
the new block to be funded by Basic Need DfE funding. 
 
Heywood and Middleton 
 
Because of the usual travel of pupils between Heywood and Middleton these 
areas are considered together. Available places and forecasts for pupils 
numbers are shown in figure 1 showing the expectation currently that schools 
in the Heywood and Middleton area will be at capacity despite the opening of 
the Edgar Wood Academy. 

 
 

Page 35



 
 
4.5 
 
 
 
 
4.6 
 
 
 
 
4.7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.8 
 
 
 
 
 
4.9 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.10 
 

  
 
The new Edgar Wood Academy opened in September 2021 in temporary 
accommodation on Hopwood Hall College campus in Middleton. In 
September 2022 the school opened in its newly finished building off 
Heywood Old Road near Birch/Bowlee. 
 
In September 2021 Wardle Academy had a building extension to provide 
100 additional places; 50 for 2021 and 50 for 2022 intakes. For September 
2023 Wardle have offered a further 50 places with a further classroom 
extension to the new block to be funded by Basic Need DfE funding. 
 

 
Figure 1: Forecast for Places and expected pupils in the combined Heywood and Middleton area 
 
The combined Heywood and Middleton area sees an inflow of pupils at 
Secondary transition with an increase of approximately 3.5%. Because of 
the unprecedented numbers of pupils arriving in Middleton through last year 
the forecast predicts that trend to continue. Further expansion of schools 
may be needed if in-flow into the area continues. 
 
Admission numbers for the next intake year are shown in the table below. 
School Pupil Admission Number for 2023 
Newhouse Academy 210 
Holy Family RC & CE College 150 
Middleton Technology School 270 
Cardinal Langley RC High School 210 
St. Anne's Academy 180 
Edgar Wood Academy 180 
Total 1200 

Table 1 Places at Heywood and Middleton schools for 2023 
 
Pennine and Rochdale 
 
There has been a shortage of places in the popular Pennine Secondary 
schools for some time. It is expected that additional capacity created at 

Page 36



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.11 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.12 
 
 
 
 
 
4.13 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.14 
 
 
 

Wardle Academy for 2022 and 2023 intakes will be filled. In the combined 
Pennine and Rochdale areas there is, on average, an 11% drop in pupils 
attending maintained schools between year 6 and year 7. This includes the 
roughly 3% travelling into the Heywood/Middleton area and 8% of pupils 
choosing to travel to private, independent, grammar schools, or schools in 
other local authority areas. The drop in pupils choosing non-Rochdale 
maintained schools does change year to year between 3% and 9% and 
therefore out of borough factors can cause inaccuracy in the forecast.  
 

 
Figure 2: Secondary Intake forecast for Pennine and Rochdale 
 
The forecast shows insufficient places available in existing schools without 
the extension at Wardle academy for 2023 intake, and without the new 
Littleborough school from 2027. Forecasts are reduced when insufficient 
capacity is produced. 
 
Admission numbers for the next intake year are shown in the table below. 
School Pupil Admission Number for 2023 
Hollingworth Academy 270 
Wardle Academy 290 
St.Cuthbert's RC High 240 
Kingsway Park High 270 
Matthew Moss High 240 
Oulder Hill School 300 
Falinge Park High School 270 
Total 1880 

Table 2: Places at Pennine and Rochdale schools for 2023 
 
Other considerations 
 
In 2019 the popular Oldham Crompton House school completed a major 
extension and increased its intake by 50%. This year (2022) a new school 
opened in Oldham offering additional places which has increased the offer 
and uptake of out of borough CoE places with our Families. 

Page 37



 
 
 
4.15 
 
 
 
 
4.16 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.17 
 
 
 

 
Heywood SEN School 
 
Current timelines for the delivery of the Heywood SEN school, to be run by 
the New Bridge Academy, have slipped again. However a new Department 
for Education project director has just be put in place and this will hopefully 
speed up the delivery. 
 
Rochdale Council continues to work very constructively with the New Bridge 
Trust. The “Rochdale Hub” at Hollinwood has new starters for this intake 
2022, and the new accommodation is due to be in place for 2023 year 7 
intake. 
 
Alternatives Considered 
 
Alternatives are constantly under review and any impacts of the current 
pandemic on house building rates or timing of new developments will have 
knock on effects on school capacity. 

 
Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5.1 
 
 
5.2 
 
 
 
 
5.3 
 

The costs associated with co-ordinating admission arrangements are met 
from the Dedicated Schools Grant.   
 
Where applicable, schools offering additional pupil places to meet the LA’s 
statutory need may also be eligible for additional revenue funding from the 
Dedicated Schools Grant. The policy and funding available for basic need 
growth has to be agreed with Schools Forum. 
 
Schools are funded based on the number of pupils. Whilst is it acknowledged 
that a school will have some vacant places, a high number of vacant places 
in a single year group created if pupils do not materialise as forecast will have 
an adverse effect on a school’s funding. This can be managed in the short 
term through the application of the Growth Fund policy but it is not sustainable 
longer term. 

 
Risk and Policy Implications 

 

Page 38



6.1 
 
 
 
 
 
6.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.3 
 

The application of pupil place planning arrangements contributes to the 
Council Business Plan in ensuring an effective allocation process for school 
admissions. The council has a statutory duty to offer a school place to every 
child living in the borough and must manage the schools estate to meet the 
predicted need.   
 
Provision of sufficient Secondary school places, within the new school 
buildings that are being delivered through the centrally managed Free school 
programme, are not under control of the local authority, but because the 
statutory duty to provide places resides with the local authority then 
consequently the local authority needs to be ready to work with local partners 
to meet the needs of its residents if required. 
 
The financial risks are covered in the Costs and Budget Summary section 
above 

  
 

Consultation 
 
7. Any additional places created through building works are required to go 

through the statutory planning consultation process. 
 
Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 
8. Here you should detail any 

background papers –  
and the place of inspection 
(N1Riverside or elsewhere) – Note: will 
insert guidance on what is a 
background paper 

 

For Further Information Contact: Fay Davies, , 
fay.davies@rochdale.gov.uk 

Page 39



 

Report to Cabinet 
 

Date of Meeting 22 November 2022 
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Finance and Corporate 
Report Author Carolyn Goddard 

 

Public/Private Document Public 

 

 

Setting the Business Rate Base 2023-24 
 

 
Executive Summary 

 
1. This report seeks approval from Council on 14 December 2022: 

 
1. For the setting of the Business Rates baseline for 2023/24 in 

accordance with the Local Government Finance Act 1988 and the Non-
Domestic Rating Regulations 2013. 

 
2. To approve the precept payment dates for 2023/24. 

 
Recommendation 

 
2. Cabinet is asked to consider, for submission to Council on 14 December 2022: 

 
1. The draft Business Rate baseline figure of £66.097m for 2023/24, subject to 

any changes which may result from: 
 

 the provisional Local Government Finance Settlement 2023/24. 
 The issue of the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities 

(DLUHC) guidance on completion of the 2023/24 Business Rate 
baseline return (NNDR1) due in January 2023. 

 The impact of the Business Rates revaluation which is due to take effect 
from 1st April 2023.  

 

2. The Interim Director of Resources, in consultation with the Cabinet Member for 
Finance and Corporate, be authorised to conclude and agree the final Business 
Rate baseline return (NNDR1) due on 31 January 2023, should the final 
information yet to be received from DLUHC change the baseline figure for 
2023/24.  

 
3. That the precepts payment schedule detailed in paragraph 4.2 be approved.  

 

Page 40

Agenda Item 9



Reason for Recommendation 
  

3.1 
 
 
 
 
 
3.2 

The Non-Domestic Rating (Rates Retention) Regulations 2013 (SI 2013/452) 
require billing authorities to notify the Secretary of State and their major 
precepting authority of their calculation of non-domestic rating income for the 
following financial year and the estimated surplus/deficit on the Collection 
Fund by 31st January each year. 
 
The figures are produced subject to the DLUHC guidance being published 
and provided, following which the figure in this report may have to be revisited. 
 

 
Key Points for Consideration 

 
4.1 Setting Business Rates Baseline 
 
4.1.1 On 1st April 2013 the Business Rates Retention Scheme (BRRS) was 

introduced as part of the move to localise and stimulate business growth at a 
local level. Under the original BRRS the Authority paid 50% of its Business 
Rates income to Central Government, 1% to Greater Manchester Combined 
Authority (GMCA) – Fire Services, and retained the remaining 49%. 

 
4.1.2 The Local Government Settlement 2017/18 included the introduction of the 

100% retention of Business Rates for identified regional pilot authorities, 
including Greater Manchester.  As part of the October 2021 Spending Review, 
the government confirmed that the GM pilot scheme will continue in 2022/23, 
and 2023/24. Under the pilot scheme 100% of the Business Rates income is 
retained locally, in lieu of Revenue Support Grant and Public Health Grant. The 
precept arrangement under the pilot scheme is 99% to Rochdale BC and 1% 
to GMCA Mayoral General (including Fire Services). 

 
4.1.3 Central Government has assessed potential retained Business Rates income 

and provided a “top up” grant within the local government finance settlement to 
bridge the gap in funding as a result of the move to the BRRS. 

 
4.1.4 The BRRS is accounted for within the Collection Fund. This account reflects 

the statutory requirements for the Council to maintain a separate Collection 
Fund, in relation to the operation of the BRRS and Council Tax. The Fund 
records all the transactions for billing, payments by Council Tax/ Business 
Rates payers, reliefs granted, write offs and payments to the precepting 
authorities. At the end of each year the surplus/deficit on the Fund is allocated 
to the precepting authorities on the basis of their level of precept on the 
Collection Fund. 

 
4.1.5 In January of each year, the Authority is required to set an estimated Business 

Rates income yield for the following year, which is to be used to inform the 
precepting authorities of their precept on the Fund. With  the continuation of the 
current pilot scheme for 100% retention of Business Rates , the income yield 
will be allocated as follows:  

 

Page 41



Rochdale BC – General Fund                                            99% 
GMCA Mayoral General (including Fire Services)               1% 

 
4.1.6 A Central Government standard form is used (known as the NNDR1) to ensure 

a common approach for the collection of the Business Rates income forecast. 
The return to be used for the completion of the 2023/24 estimate has not yet 
been made available by DLUHC. The setting of the baseline for 2023/24 has 
been prepared on a draft basis until further clarification is received from 
DLUHC. 

 
4.2 Precept Payment Dates 2023/24 
 
4.2.1 The Business Rates retention regulations require that the local authority should 

agree a precept schedule with the precept authority, which in the case of 
Rochdale Council will be GMCA Mayoral General (including Fire Services). 

 
4.2.2 It is proposed that the same payments schedule be adopted as set out for the 

Council Tax precept, which is detailed below: 
 

20th April 2023 20th October 2023 
22th May 2023 20th November 2023 
20th June 2023 20th December 2023 
20th July 2023 22nd January 2024 
21st August 2023 20th February 2024 
20th September 2023 20th March 2024 

 
4.3 Alternatives Considered 
 
4.3.1 No alternative is available, as the Council has a statutory requirement to 

estimate and set a Business Rates Baseline each financial year.  
  
 

Costs and Budget Summary 
 
5.1  A final NNDR1 must be agreed by the Chief Finance Officer for the Council, 

being the Interim Director of Resources currently, and returned to DLUHC by 
31st January each year.  The final return must include: 

 
a) the anticipated gross income to be billed to businesses in 2023/24; 
b) estimates for any growth in Business Rates anticipated in 2023/24, net of 

any demolitions; 
c) forecast  for any increases in Business Rates relief including empty reliefs; 
d) changes in amounts to be collected should those premises that still have 

outstanding appeals from the rateable value revaluation changes in 2010, 
and 2017 be resolved; 

e) changes in amounts to be collected from premises that are subject to a 
reduction as a result of the appeals process or Valuation Office Agency 
(VOA) adjustments. 

 
A final baseline position for 2023/24 cannot be included in this report, as the 
final guidance will be issued by DLUHC in early January 2023. Also a Business 

Page 42



Rates revaluation is due to take effect from 1st April 2023, but the impact of the 
revaluation will not be known until the end of 2022.  

 
Members are requested to approve that the Interim Director of Resources, in 
consultation with the Cabinet Member for Finance and Corporate, be authorised 
to conclude and agree the final Business Rates baseline return (NNDR1), due 
on 31st January 2023, should the final information yet to be received from 
DLUHC change the baseline figure for 2023/24. 

 
5.2 The Government has decided to freeze the Business Rates multipliers in 

2023/24 and keep them at 2022/23 levels; however, this may be impacted by 
the outcome of the Business Rates revaluation. This will be confirmed after 
either the Local Government Finance Report for 2023/24 has been approved 
by the House of Commons or 1st March 2023, whichever is earlier. 

 
Using the Business Rates multipliers announced in the 2021 Spending Review, 
the Business Rates baseline for 2023/24 would be £66.097m split between: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.3 The 2023/24 estimated Business Rates baseline takes into account the latest 

forecast for 2022/23, and estimated changes in the baseline for 2023/24. 
 
5.4 An estimate of the outturn for 2022/23 Business Rates income to be collected 

will be compared to the estimated baseline amount provided in the NNDR1 for 
2022/23. Differences between the estimate and the projected actual collected 
will be considered as part of setting the 2023/24 Estimates process.  

 
5.5 The Local Authorities (Collection Fund: Surplus and Deficit) (Coronavirus) 

(England) Regulations 2020 came into force on 1st December 2020. The 
regulations require the repayment of Collection Fund deficits arising in 2020/21 
to be spread over the three financial years, 2021/22, 2022/23 and 2023/24, 
rather than the usual period of a year. Business Rates precept payments will 
be adjusted to reflect the requirements of the regulations. 

 
 

Risk and Policy Implications 
 
6.1 It is necessary for the Council to comply with the Non-Domestic Rating (Rates 

Retention) Regulations 2013 (SI 2013/452) to ensure that it does not act ultra 
vires in relation to its arrangements for the setting of the Business Rates Base 
for 2023/24.  

 
 
 
6.2 As confirmed in the October 2021 Spending Review, the Council will continue 

to be part of the GM pilot to retain 100% of Business Rates in 2023/24. The 

Rochdale Borough Council £65.436m 
GMCA Mayoral (including Fire 
Services) 

£0.661m 

Total £66.097m 

Page 43



100% Business Rates pilot will mean that the Council will take 99% of the risk 
for the collection of all Business Rates rather than 49% under the previous 
system. Major changes to Business Rates, such as awards of mandatory reliefs 
for schools converting to academies, will be borne mainly by the local authority.  

 
6.3 As part of the 100% pilot the Council will be responsible for 99% of the cost of 

changes to rateable values as a result of appeals, which introduces further 
volatility to the Business Rates income collected. 

 
6.4 There are still several rateable value appeals outstanding where businesses 

have appealed against the values set by the Valuation Office Agency in 2010. 
These may have an impact for the Business Rates to be collected and retained 
by the local authority, including the costs of any backdated amounts. A 
provision is held to support the ongoing mitigation of this risk.   

 
6.5 Businesses now use the Check, Challenge and Appeal process against 

rateable values that came into effect on 1st April 2017, which may have a 
financial impact on Business Rate income. A provision is held to offset the 
possible impact of successful appeals, and other rateable value reductions 
made by the Valuation Office Agency. 

 
 

Consultation 
 
7. This report is part of the 2023/24 budget setting process and consultation is 

undertaken with stakeholder groups, staff and service users as appropriate 
throughout the budget process. 

 
Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 
8.   

 

For Further Information Contact: carolyn goddard, Tel: 01706 926051, 
carolyn.goddard@rochdale.gov.uk 

Page 44



 

Report to Cabinet 
 

Date of Meeting 22 November 2022 
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Finance and Corporate 
Report Author Carolyn Goddard 

 

Public/Private Document Public 

 

 

Calculation of the 2023-24 Taxbase 
 

 
Executive Summary 

 
1. This report seeks approval from Council on 14 December 2022: 

 
1. To agree the statutory Council Tax Base calculation for 2023/24, 

calculated in accordance with The Local Authorities (Calculation of 
Council Tax Base) (England) Regulations 2012 as part of the 2023/24 
Estimates process. 
 

2. For the Local Council Tax Support Scheme to remain unchanged for 
2023/24. 

 
3. To approve the precept payment dates for 2023/24. 

 
Recommendation 

 
2. Cabinet are asked to consider, for submission to Council on 14 December 

2022: 
 
a. The Council Tax base expressed as “Band D equivalent properties”, be 

recommended as 57,552 for 2022/23 (56,232 2022/23) as detailed at 
Appendix 1. 
 

b. The Local Council Tax Support Scheme for 2023/24 remains unchanged. 
 
c. The proposed precepts payment schedule detailed in paragraph 4.3. 

 
 
 
 

 

Page 45

Agenda Item 10



Reason for Recommendation 
 
3.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.2 
 
 
 
 
 
3.3 
 

 
Rochdale Borough Council, as a Council Tax billing authority, is required each 
year to make statutory calculations specified in Section 31B of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992 (as amended). The Local Authorities 
(Calculation of Council Tax Base) (England) Regulations 2012 require 
authorities to calculate the Council Tax base (number of taxable properties), 
expressed as "Band D equivalent properties". Approval of these calculations 
is required by 31st January in each financial year.  
 
The Local Government Finance Act 1992 prescribes the procedures to be 
adopted in setting precept payment dates. The Act requires billing authorities 
to notify precepting authorities of a proposed payments schedule. This 
notification must be given before 31st December in respect of the following 
financial year. The final payments schedule is then confirmed by 31st January. 
 
The calculation of the tax base has to be made by 31st January and notified 
to the major precepting and levying authorities. Under Section 84 of the 
Local Government Act 2003 the determination can be delegated to a 
committee or sub-committee in accordance with Section 101 of the Local 
Government Act 1972. This report recommends that Cabinet considers this 
report for submission to Council on 14 December 2022. 
 

Key Points for Consideration 
  

4.1 
 
4.1.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.1.2 

Calculation of the Council Tax Base 
 
The calculation of the tax base starts with the number of recorded properties 
in each tax band ( A to H) as at 12th September 2022, adjusted for: 

 changes expected to occur up to 31st March 2024 as a result of 
appeals, demolition and new home construction; 

 estimated number of disabled person’s reductions; 
 discounts allowed for single person households, students and 

empty/exempt properties.  
 
Following on from the resulting figure from the application of the process 
outlined in paragraph 4.1.1, the tax base calculation also takes account of 
the additional charges resulting from the local discount scheme in place for 
empty properties and second homes, along with the impact of the Local 
Council Tax Support scheme. 

  

  

Page 46



 
 
4.1.3 
 
 
 
 
4.1.4 
 
 
 
4.1.5 
 
 
 
 
4.2 
 
4.2.1 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2.2 
 
4.3 
 
4.3.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.3.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.3.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
The calculated number of properties in each band is then multiplied by 
a factor specified in the regulations to give an "equivalent number of 
band D properties" and then by an estimate of the likely collection rate 
for 2023/24 to give the tax base. 
 
The Council Tax base is used by the precepting authorities to apportion 
their net expenditure to their constituent authorities and by Rochdale 
Borough Council to set the level of Council Tax for 2023/24. 

 
The Council's net budgeted spending, including precepts and levies 
and after taking account of receipts of Business Rate income, is divided 
by the tax base to produce the Council Tax level for Band D properties, 
which is the headline tax figure. 
 
Local Council Tax Support Scheme (Council Tax Reduction Scheme) 
 
Schedule 1A of the Local Government Finance Act 2012 requires local 
authorities to annually review their local scheme; with any revisions to 
the scheme requiring a period of consultation and must be agreed by 
Council by 31st January each year. There are no requirements to 
consult, should the scheme remain unchanged. 
 
It is proposed that the Scheme continues unchanged for 2023/24. 
 
Precepting Authority and Payment Dates 2023/24 
 
From 2018/19 elected Combined Authority Mayors were able to raise 
additional resources through a precept (or additional charge) on local 
Council Tax bills. The Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA) 
sets a precept with two separately identified elements for the Mayor’s 
general functions, including the precept previously made for GM Fire & 
Rescue Authority, and for Police & Crime Commissioner functions.  
 
For 2023/24 the precepting authorities will continue to be: 
 

a) Rochdale Borough Council – General Functions 
b) Rochdale Borough Council – Adult Care 
c) GMCA Mayoral Police & Crime Commissioner 
d) GMCA Mayoral (including Fire Services) 

 
The Local Government Finance Act 1992 prescribes the procedures to 
be adopted in setting precept payment dates. The Act requires billing 
authorities to notify precepting authorities of a proposed payments 
schedule. This notification must be given before 31st December in 
respect of the following financial year. The final payments schedule is 
then confirmed by 31st January. 
 

Page 47



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.4 
 

The proposed payments schedule, is in line with the one operating in 
the current year, which was agreed by all Greater Manchester 
Authorities: 
 

20th April 2023 20th October 2023 
22th May 2023 20th November 2023 
20th June 2023 20th December 2023 
20th July 2023 22nd January 2024 
21st August 2023 20th February 2024 
20th September 2023 20th March 2024 

 
Alternatives Considered 
 
No alternative is available, as the Council has a statutory requirement to 
calculate and approve a Council Tax base each financial year. 
 
 

 
Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5.1  The detailed calculation of the tax base is set out in Appendix 1. 
 
5.2  The total number of properties has increased by 612 from 95,959 to 96,571 in 

the year ending 12th September 2022.  In the previous two years the net change 
had been increases of 752 (2021) and 478 (2020).  There continues to be a 
level of new build across the Borough, and whilst some of this is offset by 
demolitions, this further increase shows a continuing growth in the overall 
property numbers. 

 
5.3 The Local Council Tax Support scheme forecast provided in the tax base is 

based on the 2022/23 local scheme approved by Council on 15th December 
2020.  The scheme includes a banded income scheme for working age 
residents in receipt of Universal Credit. 

 
5.4 The overall estimated collection rate is remaining at 97.5%, and this reflects the 

forecasted financial impact of the economic uncertainty and Covid pandemic 
on the borough’s residents (97.5% in 2022/23).  Prior to the Covid 19 pandemic, 
the collection rate for 2020/21 had been estimated at 98%.   

 
5.5 An estimate of the outturn for 2022/23 Council Tax income will be compared to 

the 2022/23 budgeted baseline amount.  Differences between the budget and 
the projected actual outturn for 2022/23 will be considered as part of the setting 
the 2023/24 Estimates process. 

 
 The Local Authorities (Collection Fund: Surplus and Deficit) (Coronavirus) 

(England) Regulations 2020 came into force on 1st December 2020.  The 
regulations require the repayment of Collection Fund deficits arising in 2020/21 
to be spread over the three financial years, 2021/22 to 2023/24, rather than the 
usual period of a year.  Council Tax precept payments will be adjusted to reflect 
the requirements of the regulations.   

 

Page 48



Risk and Policy Implications 
 
6.1 It is necessary to comply with Section 31B of the Local Government Finance 

Act 1992 (as amended); The Local Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax 
Base) (England) Regulations 2012; Section 84 of the Local Government Act 
2003 and Section 101 of the Local Government Act 1972, to ensure that there 
is no risk of the authority acting ultra vires in relation to its Council Tax 
arrangements.   
 
It is necessary to comply with Section 33 of the Local Government Finance 
Act 1992 (as amended) and The Local Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax 
Base) (England) Regulations 2012, to ensure the Council Tax Base is 
correctly calculated. 
 

Consultation 
 
7. This report is part of the budget setting process and consultation is 

undertaken with stakeholder groups, staff and service users as appropriate 
throughout the budget process. 

 
Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 
8.   

 

For Further Information Contact: carolyn goddard, Tel: 01706 926051, 
carolyn.goddard@rochdale.gov.uk 

Page 49



Appendix 1 – Calculation of the Council Tax base for 2023/24 

1.1 Property Details 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) 

Band Valuation * Properties @ 12th September 
2022 

Adjusted number of properties, after 
discounts, exemptions etc. (see 1.2 

below) 
Factor Band D 

Equivalent 

A (Disabled) £40,000 91 85 5/9 47 
A £40,000 51,269 32,799 6/9 21,866 
B £52,000 17,116 13,810 7/9 10,741 
C £68,000 12,834 11,153 8/9 9,914 
D £88,000 8,131 7,702 1 7,702 
E £120,000 4,481 4,140 11/9 5,060 
F £160,000 1,699 1,572 13/9 2,271 
G £320,000 896 813 15/9 1,355 
H over £320,000 54 36 18/9 72 
TOTAL   96,571 72,110   59,028 

 
* Valuations based on property values as at 1st April 1991. 
 
1.2 The total number of properties at 96,571 on 12th September 2022 (column 3) compares to 95,959 last year, reflecting that new 

house building developments within the Borough were greater than demolitions during the year, resulting in a net growth in the 
overall number of properties. Adjustments are made to reflect the forecast level of discounts and exemptions given to Council 
Tax payers: 

 
1.3   To calculate the statutory tax base, the number of Band D equivalent properties (column 6) is multiplied by the estimated eventual        

  collection rate for income raised relating to 2023/24. The estimated collection rate used for 2023/24 is 97.5% (2022/23: 97.5%). 

P
age 50



Properties at 12th September 2022       96,571 
Forecast for net new growth (after demolitions) 592 
Forecast for exemptions  (2,032) 
Forecast for adjustments relating to Single Person discounts, Local Council Tax Support, and Empty/other discounts  (23,021) 
Net adjusted number of properties to be used in calculation of the Council Tax Base 72,110 

 
1.4   Applying a 97.5% collection rate gives a 2023/24 statutory tax base calculation of 57,552 Band D equivalent properties (59,028 

x97.5%). 
 

1.5 Variations in the outturn tax base due to the under/over achievement of the collection rate, or differences between the 
assumptions and  actuals  in calculating the number of Band D equivalent properties, will result in a surplus or deficit on the 
Collection Fund. This is shared between Rochdale Borough Council and the precepting bodies. 
   

 

P
age 51



1 

 

Report to Cabinet 

 

Date of Meeting 22nd November 2022 

Portfolio Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Corporate 

 

Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Corporate 

Report Author Samantha Smith 

 

Public/Private Document Public 

 

Q2 2022/23 Finance Update 

 
Executive Summary 

 

1. To inform Cabinet and the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee of the 
Council’s forecast 2022/23 financial position as at the end of September 2022.  

1.1 The Finance Update report contains details of the following: 

 The forecast Revenue outturn position, as a balanced position. 
 

 The forecast General Fund pressure relating to Covid related issues is 
£3,339k, and is offset by the use of government funding. 
 

 Forecast Capital expenditure of £138,797k, after rephasing of £15,374k into 
future years. The majority of the rephased expenditure, £9,631k (63%), relates 
to Children’s Services, which is funded externally through grants. The balance 
of £5,743k is funded by prudential borrowing and externally through grants or 
capital receipts. 
 

 The forecast 2022/23 Collection Fund position, being a surplus of £1,763k,    
 

 An update on the Q2 2022/23 Treasury Management position, discussed in 
section 4.7 and Appendix D. 
 
 
 
 

Page 52

Agenda Item 11



2 

 
 

Recommendations 

 

2.1 Cabinet notes the forecast 2022/23 financial positions for Revenue, Capital, 
and the Collection Fund as at the end of September 2022, as detailed in 
section 4. 

2.2 Cabinet note that the £1.4m earmarked to support Your Trust during its 
recovery from the Covid pandemic is likely to be utilised during 2022/23 and 
2023/24, as detailed in section 4.1.3. 

 
2.3 Cabinet note the agreement of the NJC pay award for 2022/23 as detailed in 

section 4.1.4 
 
2.4 Cabinet to approve amended parameters of the Jobs & Investment Fund in 

order to be able to provide limited financial support to existing businesses in the 
borough, as detailed in paragraph 4.1.5. 

 
2.5 Cabinet approves the Budget Pressure requests detailed in section 4.3.  
  
2.6 Cabinet notes the net Capital budget changes of £1,686k, detailed in section 

4.5.1. 
 
2.7 Cabinet notes the Capital re-phasing of £15,374k into future years detailed in 

section 4.5.2. 
 
2.8 Cabinet approves the requests to switch budgets as detailed in section 4.5.3: 

 between Economy and Neighbourhoods directorates 
 between Resources, Neighbourhoods and Economy directorates 
 between Public Health and Neighbourhoods 

 
2.9 Cabinet notes the Treasury Management update for Quarter 2 in section 4.7, 

and appendix D 
  
 

Reason for Recommendation 

 

3. Cabinet Members should be kept updated on the financial position of the 
authority, as effective budget management is critical to ensuring financial 
resources are spent in line with the budget and are targeted towards the 
Council’s priorities. 

This report focuses on the forecast 2022/23 financial position as at the end of 
September 2022. 
 
 
 
 

Page 53



3 

 
 
 
 

Key Points for Consideration 

 
4. Revenue Budget 2022/23 

 
4.1 The budget set by Budget Council on 23rd February 2022 was £248,947k. 

Increases in the budget to Quarter 2, 2022/23 are detailed in the following 
table: 

  

Amount 
When Reason for change 

£'000 
Mar-22 Approved budget 248,947 

Jun-22 Increase in 2022/23 Extended rights to 
free travel allocation 18 

   GRAND TOTAL 248,965 
 
 

The Revenue Budget Table in 4.1.1 provides detail of budget allocations and 
the forecast 2022/23 financial position. 
 

4.1.1 The forecast position as at the end of September 2022 is a General Fund 
balanced position, which excludes any Covid related pressures. Significant 
pressures are being forecast in Adults, Children’s and Neighbourhoods 
Directorates. The pressures have been partially mitigated by the transfer of 
funding from the Social Care Pressure Reserve, from budget held corporately 
as part of the 2022/23 Estimates process to address the anticipated energy 
pressures, and also by forecast in year savings relating to Treasury 
Management and Resources directorates. The current economic uncertainty is 
impacting on the Council, particularly in relation to forecast energy costs, and 
is being monitored closely. Work is on-going to how these pressures can be 
funded in the Medium Term Financial Strategy. 

Services are trying to mitigate on-going Covid pressures, however pressures 
totalling £3,339k, have been identified which are to be funded from the Covid 
Reserve brought forward from 2021/22.  
 
The table following provides detail by Directorate of the forecast 2022/23 non 
Covid related revenue outturn:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 54



4 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Directorate/Detail 
Current 

Controllable 
Net Budget 

Forecast 
Controllable 
Outturn Q2 

Forecast In-
Year 

Saving/ 
(Overspend) 

Previous 
forecast - 

Q1 
Monitoring  

Movement 
since 

August 
Cabinet 

  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Adult Care 56,418 56,418 0 0 0 

Children’s 47,433 48,674 (1,241) 0 (1,241) 

Economy 17,401 17,461 (60) 0 (60) 

Neighbourhoods 57,751 58,396 (645) 0 (645) 

Public Health  17,078 17,078 0 0 0 

Resources 19,057 18,626 431 0 431 

Total Services Spending 215,138 216,653 (1,515) 0 (1,515) 

Contribution from Integrated Pool 
Budget  106,225 106,225 0 0 0 

Contribution to Integrated Pool 
Budget (106,225) (106,225) 0 0 0 

Total Pooled Budgets 0 0 0 0 0 

Finance Control - Corporate 
Budgets 21,630 20,115 1,515 0 1,515 

Finance Control Budget Pressures 1,576 1,576 0 0 0 

Total Finance Control Spending 23,206 21,691 1,515 0 1,515 

Net Expenditure 238,344 238,344 0 0 0 

Uncontrollable Budget Spend 10,621 10,621 0 0 0 

Total Budget 248,965 248,965 0 0 0 

Page 55



5 

The variations to controllable Revenue budget, by service, which are not related to 
Covid-19, are detailed below. Further detail may be found in Appendix A: 

Service Narrative 
Amount 

£'000 

Adult Care 

ASC has pressures across Neighbourhood and 
Boroughwide Service on placement costs, these are 
being partly mitigated by the savings in staff costs 
due to staff turnover. 
ASC has an ongoing pressure to fund the 
Emergency Duty Team of £265k, which has 
traditionally been funded by Children's Service 
(historically always a cost pressure) however this is 
now being apportioned based on service use 
between Adults and Children's. 
The total pressure of £1m is being offset by the 
transfer of £1m from the Social Care Pressure 
Reserve 
  

0 

Children's  

General Fund - Children's Services forecast position 
for 2022/23 is an overspend of £1.241m, net of one-
off Covid funding of £3.181m.  
Covid funding has been used to offset pressures as 
a result of an increase in placements compared to 
the projections in the children's strategy. There has 
also been a small number of children that have been 
placed in expensive external residential provision, 
that are forecast to cost an additional £1.3m. The 
service are taking action at looking at alternative 
provision. 
There is an overspend of £1.741m, on SEND due to 
increased Education Health and Care Plans 
(EHCP's), increasing services requirements on SEN 
Transport, Disability and Educational Psychology 
Services . 
 
DSG - The forecast position on the High Needs 
Block is an overspend of £0.5m, which would 
increase the forecast cumulative deficit on the High 
Needs reserve to £7.3m. 

(1,241) 

Page 56



6 

Service Narrative 
Amount 

£'000 

Economy 

The Economy Directorate is reporting an in-year 
pressure of £0.060m due to a shortfall in anticipated 
income in respect of the savings target to attract third 
party letting and maximise the utilisation of desk 
space at Number One Riverside.  Following two 
lettings in 2021/22, the service is now reviewing the 
post pandemic demand for desk space in light of the 
move to more hybrid working across the Council and 
partners and what, if any, implications this will have 
on the availability of space for lettings within Number 
One Riverside.   Following this review, an update will 
be provided at quarter 3.  A request for Covid 
pressure funding is to be submitted.  

(60) 

Neighbourhoods 

The Neighbourhoods directorate is forecasting an 
overspend of £0.645m for 2022/23, with the following 
pressures across the directorate:  

 a pressure of £0.118m  in relation to Street 
lighting energy costs. £1.354m of budget has 
been allocated from earmarked Contingency 
budgets across the directorate to mitigate other 
energy pressures. At the time of this update, 
the Government have announced an Energy 
Support package and the detail is currently 
being reviewed to assess the impact on the 
Council's forecast costs. 

 a Covid 19 pressure of £121k in relation to 
homelessness which has been funded from 
the Covid Reserve. 

 a pressure in FM due to anticipated pay 
award and EM due to contract increases and 
essential work on trees effected by Ash Die 
Back. 

 There is currently a budget pressure of £86k 
in relation to lost contracts with schools which 
have either become Academies or chosen to 
opt out for other reasons. 

 Strategic Housing: - there continues to be a 
pressure relating to the Homelessness service 
area due to increased numbers of service 
users, and accommodation costs that can 
only be partially offset by government Housing 
Benefit subsidy. Budget provision has been 
made to address the pressure, but work is on-
going to address the demand pressures, 
including introducing additional growth within 
the 2022/23 budget and Medium Term 
Financial Strategy, and developing a strategy 
to improve housing provision and to reduce 
the pressure.  

(645) 

Page 57



7 

Service Narrative 
Amount 

£'000 

Finance Control 

The in year saving is due to significant re-phasing of 
the 2021/22 capital programme which has reduced 
the amount of Minimum Revenue Provision required 
and the potential cost of borrowing in 2022/23. The 
authority also continues to operate an internally 
borrowed position, using existing balance sheet 
resources to defer the cost of external borrowing. 
Forecast investment income has increased 
substantially due to Base Rate increases and the 
maintenance of higher than anticipated cash 
balances/ reserves. This is partially offset by a 
revenue contribution towards the 2022/23 Capital 
Programme which will help reduce future debt 
repayment costs. Some of the in-year saving will  
directly fund capital schemes that would have been 
funded from borrowing, to reduce the ongoing debt 
repayment costs, which will help reduce the future 
years’ budget gap.  

1,515 

Resources 

The Resources Directorate is reporting a potential in-
year saving of £0.431m at quarter 2.  There are 
pressures within the Directorate in relation to the 
Purchase to Pay Scheme, some of which is due to the 
ongoing legacy from Covid 19, which delayed the start 
of the scheme and resulted in slow engagement with 
suppliers due to changes in payment during the 
pandemic.  There is also an in-year pressure as a 
result of increased contract costs for External Audit 
fees in 2022/23.  These pressures are being mitigated 
from in-year staff savings due to interim/temporary 
arrangements and one off additional funding.  
  

431 

Total   0 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 58



8 

4.1.2 Detail of forecast Covid pressures that are to be funded by the Covid grant 
brought forward from 2021/22 are shown below:  

Covid Pressures                                                                              
£'000 

Balance of unringfenced Covid Reserve brought 
forward from 2021/22 5,118 

    
Pressure 
Children's - relating to external placements exceeding 
the forecast in the strategy, additional staffing to 
manage the caseload, and payment of overtime to 
Social Workers for June - September 2022 

     
3,181  

Economy - loss of rental income re Covid restriction in 
2021/22 

          
16  

Neighbourhoods - staffing costs in Strategic Housing 
service dealing with Council's on-going Covid response; 
and increased accommodation costs to house homeless 
people due to a change in regulations.  

        
121  

Resources - staffing cost relating to the Test & Trace 
Support grant reconciliation process 

          
21  

Total forecast pressure 3,339 
    
Forecast unutilised Covid Reserve funding at 31st 
March 2023 1,779 

 

A further £956k has been earmarked for use by Children’s Services in 2023/24. 

As the year progresses, the financial impact and timeframe relating to the 
longer term effects of Covid-19 will be developed, and feed into the Council’s 
financial planning going forward, through the Medium Term Financial Strategy 
and the 2023/24 Budget Setting process. 

The 2022/23 Budget also includes one off support towards Covid-19 of £4m, 
should it be required, however given the current economic climate this funding 
may be repurposed to manage potential inflationary pressures. 

4.1.3 Your Trust 

At the outset of the Covid pandemic £1.4m of reserves was set aside to support 
Your Trust with the impact of the loss of income and on-going expenditure. The 
use of the government’s Furlough scheme and receipt of various grants has 
meant that the use of reserves has not been required yet. However with 
membership levels still to return to pre pandemic levels and no further Covid 
funding available, it is likely that financial support will be required later in 
2022/23 and in 2023/24.  

 

 

Page 59



9 

 

4.1.4 Pay Award 

On the 1st of November 2022, the NJC pay award for 2022/23 was agreed. The 
agreed pay award is a flat rate of £1,925 per full time equivalent.  

At 31st August Cabinet members approved £1.2m of recurrent Budget 
Pressures funding to be earmarked to contribute to the funding of the 2022/23 
staff pay award. The balance of funding required will be allocated from one off 
Contingency budget, with additional provision built in to the 2023/24 budget for 
the ongoing cost. 

4.1.5 Jobs & Investment Fund 

The Council has previously approved a Jobs & Investment Fund in order to 
assist those businesses who wish to start up, relocate or expand in Rochdale 
and are not eligible for existing grants or the grants are not appropriate which 
include the Regional Growth Fund, European Growth Fund and the GM Loan 
Fund. The Fund can also be used where the Council wishes to progress more 
quickly an offer to incentivise a company looking for a new location. 

The current aims and parameters of the scheme are to: 

• Secure business growth and new jobs to the borough, particularly where the 
investment plans support wider Council objectives. 

• Secure added value from private sector investment including training, 
apprenticeships and job opportunities for young people. 

• To add to existing provision, producing a comprehensive offer that will enable 
most business support needs to be addressed. 

• Provide maximum flexibility to respond quickly to potential inward investment. 

The Fund could also be effectively utilised to provide limited support to existing 
businesses in the borough, however this is not within the currently permitted 
uses.  It is therefore requested that the following parameter be added to the 
Jobs & Investment Fund: 

• To secure the continued stability of existing businesses within the borough 
who are considered to be of strategic importance, whose activities benefit the 
residents of the borough, or who otherwise contribute to wider Council 
objectives. 

4.2 Health & Social Care Pool Budget 
An update of the Section 75 risk share agreement between the Council and the 
Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) for 2022/23 was taken to Locality Board 
on the 25th October.  

The forecast financial position as at September 2022 for the Health & Social 
Care Pooled Fund will be presented to the Locality Board on 29th November 
2022. 

Page 60



10 

4.3 Budget Pressures 
The Budget Pressure Fund for 2022/23 is £1,576.2k. The following table details 
requests received for quarter 2, to the end of September 2022: 

Service 
Ongoing 

£000s 
One off 
£000's 

Total 
£000s Narrative 

Quarter 2 
Opening 
Balance 2022/23 462.2 1,114.0 1,576.2   

Quarter 2 
Requests:         

Adult Care   19.0   

Adult Care Head of Service post, 
to start quarter 4 2022/23. 
Recurrent funding 23/24 onwards 
is to be funded from £500k growth 
funding 

Children’s  96.0  

Fostering - one off payment of 
£300 to foster carers to help 
mitigate the impact of cost of 
living pressures. Work is on-going 
to determine the payments 
structure for 2023/4 and beyond 

Neighbourhoods 86.0   

Pressure in relation to lost 
contracts with schools, which 
have either become academies or 
chosen to opt out for other 
reasons. 

Funding 
Remaining 
2022/23 376.2 999.0 1,375.2   

 
If the requests are approved the balance remaining for budget pressures in 
2022/23 is £1,375.2k; £376.2k ongoing and £999.0k one off. 

4.4 Transformation Fund 
The Transformation Fund is funding £1.3m of activity in 2022/23 in the form of: 

 a review of transformation plans and completion of PIDs for priority areas 
for the next 2 years, funding for a Project Management Office to support 
the action that will arise from this, and some continuing work on 
Intelligent Automation (£0.8m) 

 support for the Children’s Directorate with their Transformation plans 
and commissioning work (£0.1m) 

 increasing our capacity within the Planning Team to meet our stretching 
economic growth targets (0.2m) 

 funding the acclaimed Integrated Place team whose “whole case” 
approach rather than looking at individual service components within 
complex services has received recognition at a GM and national level 
(£0.2m)  

Page 61



11 

 After future year commitments of these current projects are accounted for, the 
balance on the Transformation Fund for other transformational work stands at 
£2.3m. 

4.5 Capital Budget 2022/23 
The forecast position for the 2022/23 Capital Budget is £138,797k, with spend 
to date of £40,574k (30% of budget).  The table below shows a summary of 
the budget movements to the end of September 2022: 

2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 
  

£'000s £'000s £'000s 
BUDGET AS AT END OF JUNE 2022 152,485 128,885 56,205 
Capital Budget Changes 1,686 - - 
Rephasing requested Quarter 2 (15,374) 15,374         -    
BUDGET AS AT END OF SEPTEMBER 2022 138,797 144,259 56,205 

 

4.5.1 Capital Budget Changes 
Details of the increases to capital budgets are shown in the following table: 

Service Narrative Funding Method 
Capital Budget 
Increases 
(Reductions) 
£000's 

Children’s 
Increase budget on s106 
contributions to match new 
balance prior to redistribution  

External 631 

Neighbourhoods 
To correct 22/23 allocation – 
Strategic Gateway Sites Towns 
Fund Capital 

External 293 

Neighbourhoods Affordable Housing 2 Smith 
Street Morrisons £70k funding External 70 

Neighbourhoods 
Budget for the additional 
schemes added to the 
decarbonisation scheme 

External 565 

Neighbourhoods Budget adjustment 22/23 Q1 for 
ICT Equipment RCCO 14 

Neighbourhoods 
Difference between amount 
uploaded in base and actual 
grant awarded 

External 1 

Economy 
Create grant budget for 
additional works at Hopwood 
Hall 

External 112 

  Total Capital Budget Changes   1,686 
 

Page 62



12 

4.5.2 As part of the financial monitoring and analysis of ongoing pressures being 
placed on the Council , a review of the Capital Programme has been undertaken 
to reduce the future debt repayment burden on the Council as part of the 
Medium Term Financial Strategy and to understand spend in the current year 
and the impact on the Council’s cash flow. 

 There has been a review of the 2022/23 capital budgets across the Council to 
consider whether schemes could be re-prioritised, and rephased into future 
years or reduced. The review has categorised projects within these budgets 
under several categories to assist with prioritisation and understanding of the 
link to revenue costs over and above repayment and risk. 

 Capital Re-phasing requests to the end of September 2022, which have been 
approved by the Chief Finance Officer, are shown in Appendix B (2). 

The estimated revenue savings to be achieved through the rephasing of 
schemes above funded via prudential borrowing have been accounted for in the 
quarter 2 Revenue monitoring, and will be included in the 2023/24 Estimates 
process. 

4.5.3 The following budget switches are requested to fund expenditure: 

Budget 
Switches Service Scheme 
£000s 

Resources Investment Fund – request to switch £145k to fund 
additional expenditure on Dell Road Repairs 145 

Neighbourhoods 
Dell Road Repairs – request to switch £145k from 
the Investment Fund to fund additional expenditure 
on Dell Road Repairs 

(145) 

Resources 
Investment Fund – request to switch £1,600k to 
fund the increase costs on the Town Hall ceiling 
renovation 

1,600 

Economy 
Town Hall – request to switch £1,600k from the 
Investment Fund to fund the increase costs on the 
Town Hall ceiling renovation 

(1,600) 

Neighbourhoods 
GM One Network - A request is made to switch 
budget to Service Desk due to underspends in the 
project 

53 

Neighbourhoods 
Service Desk System Replacement - A request is 
made to switch budget to Service Desk due to 
underspends in the project 

(53) 

Neighbourhoods 
Vehicle Replacement Scheme – a request is made 
to switch budget to Roch Vale gypsy & traveller 
site 

204 

Neighbourhoods 
Roch Vale – a request is made to switch budget to 
Roch Vale gypsy and traveller site for urgent works 
to be carried out 

(204) 

Economy 

Town Centre Residential Strategy: Switch to 
Central Retail Park Residential; several funding 
streams for this project are to be consolidated into 
one scheme. 

1,145 

Page 63



13 

Budget 
Switches Service Scheme 
£000s 

Economy 

Central Retail Park (CRP) Residential: (£1,445k) to 
be switched from Town Centre Residential 
Strategy; (£3,760k) from Neighbourhood Rochdale 
Brownfield Land Fund, (£400k) Neighbourhoods 
Rochdale Project 

(5,605) 

Economy 

Neighbourhood Rochdale Brownfield Land Fund: 
Switch to the Central Retail Park Residential 
scheme; various funding streams related to CRP to 
be consolidated. 

3,760 

Economy 

Switch £400k from Neighbourhoods Rochdale 
project to CRP Residential cost centre as funding 
streams are being consolidated into one cost 
centre 

400 

  TOTAL 0 
 

As part of Quarter 1, the £2,000k Investment Fund was rephased into 2023/24. At 
Quarter 2, there has been a request for £1,745k of the rephased budget to be 
brought back into 2022/23, and switched from the Investment Fund to schemes 
within Neighbourhoods and Economy as detailed in the table above. 

The £1,745k is funding the following additional capital expenditure: 

 Dell Road Repairs £145k – additional work to be carried out following the 
landslide. Approval has been given using the delegated authority of the Chief 
Finance Officer, and Portfolio Holder. 

 Town Hall £1,600k – There was a report presented to Members at Cabinet on 
the 27 September 2022 which advised that the current Town Hall budgets are 
insufficient to cover the additional costs on the Great Hall ceiling, and so would 
result in an overspend against this scheme. Members approved the additional 
expenditure and the funding methodology of using slippage from within the 
current capital programme. 

Since Budget Council on 23rd February 2022 there has been a review of Directorate 
responsibilities which has resulted in the following capital scheme being moved 
between Public Health and Neighbourhoods. Details of this scheme are in the table 
below. 

Scheme Budget 
Council Quarter 2 

2022/23 
Budget 
£000s 

Link4Life (Your Trust) Capital 
Projects Public Health Neighbourhoods 

 
708 

 

4.5.4 Capital Receipts 

Capital receipts are received on the sale of various assets including land, 
buildings and vehicles. The forecast movements in the Capital Receipts 

Page 64



14 

Reserve during 2022/23, and provisionally for 2023/24 to 2025/26 are included 
in the following table: 

2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 
Description 

£000s £000s £000s £000s 
Capital Receipts balance as at 1st April  9,624 6,085 5,016 5,316 

Use of Capital Receipts to fund 2022/23 
Capital Programme, including prior year 
schemes rephased into 2022/23 

(6,047)  -  -  - 

Use of Capital Receipts to fund 
provisional 2023/24 and 2024/25 Capital 
Programmes, and 2022/23 rephasing 
into future years 

 - (1,346) (100) (100) 

Earmarked use of receipts to fund other 
future commitments  (2,577) (583) - - 

Forecast Capital Receipts income 5,085 860 400 - 
Forecast uncommitted Capital 
Receipts balance as at 31st March 6,085 5,016 5,316 5,216 

  

The forecast uncommitted Capital Receipts Reserve balance as at the end of 
2025/26 is £5,216k. 

 The provisional Capital Programme for 2023/24 to 2027/28 will be presented 
to Member’s in November and will set out plans to use £5,000k of capital 
receipts to reduce the financial burden on the cost of borrowing. 

 

4.6 Collection Fund 

4.6.1 The forecast Collection Fund outturn position for 2022/23 is a surplus 
of £1,763k, comprising: 

 £1,241k surplus relating to Business Rates.  
 £522k surplus relating to Council Tax. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 65



15 

4.6.2 Table 1 shows the forecast 2022/23 Collection Fund position, and the 
allocation between precepting authorities. 

Table 1 – 2022/23 Collection Fund forecast outturn 

  
Business 

Rates 
Council 

Tax Total 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 

Forecast 2022/23 Collection Fund 
(surplus)/ deficit  (1,241) (522) (1,763) 
        
Preceptors' share of forecast 2022/23 
outturn       

Rochdale BC (1,229) (443) (1,672) 
GMCA Mayoral Police & Crime 
Commissioner  -  (56) (56) 
GMCA Mayoral General  (including Fire 
Services) (12) (23) (35) 

Forecast Outturn (surplus)/ deficit (1,241) (522) (1,763) 
 

The following table provides the explanation of variances relating to Business 
Rates: 

Explanation of variance 

Variation 
to 

budget, 
£'000 

Covid Additional Relief given of £4.389m relating to 2021/22 
charges, partially offset by forecast decreased level of Retail 
Relief given (£500k); Section 31 government grant to offset 
the discount given is received in the Council's General Fund.  

3,889 

Forecast reduced charge relating to the bad debt provision, 
although there is uncertainty relating to the impact of current 
economic uncertainty on debt collection. 

(523) 

Actual deficit brought forward from 2021/22 is £5,842k lower 
than had been forecast as part of the 2022/23 Budget 
process. £4.4m of the variation relates to the Covid Additional 
Restrictions Funding discount which had been forecast to be 
given in 2021/22, but the scheme was not finalised until the 
beginning of the current financial year. 

(5,842) 

Deficit brought forward from 2020/21 to be repaid in 2023/24 
- 3 year spread 

1,235 

Forecast 2022/23 Outturn variance (1,241) 
 

The following table provides an explanation of variances relating to Council 
Tax: 

Page 66



16 

Explanation of variance 

Variation 
to budget, 

£'000 
Forecast reduced level of Local Council Tax Support discount given due 
to reduction in claimant numbers. There is uncertainty regarding the 
impact on individuals of the economic climate due to the cost of living 
increase, and rise in energy costs. 
Forecast £250k decreased gross Council Tax income due to lower 
property numbers than budgeted for, offset by forecast £250k increased 
Empty Property premium income.  

(750) 

Forecast increased charge relating to the bad debt provision, due to the 
impact of current economic uncertainty on debt collection. 

800 

Actual surplus brought forward from 2021/22 is £1,193k higher than had 
been forecast as part of the 2022/23 Budget process.  

(1,193) 

Deficit brought forward from 2020/21 to be repaid in 2023/24 - 3 year 
spread 

621 

Forecast 2022/23 Outturn variance (522) 
 
The Council’s share of the forecast 2022/23 Collection Fund surplus is £1,672k. 

The recovery of the Collection Fund from the impact of the Covid pandemic 
continues to be uncertain, and it is still supported by government and local 
initiatives to assist businesses and Council Tax payers. There will be a longer 
term impact on Collection Fund income which is dependent on the recovery of 
businesses and households.  

Businesses and households are now also affected by the current economic 
uncertainty relating to interest rates, inflation and energy costs. 

The impact of these issues will affect the Council’s core funding for services. 
Work is ongoing to assess the longer term impact on the Council’s financial 
position, as part of the 2023/24 Estimates process and the Medium Term 
Financial Strategy. 

 

4.7 Treasury Management 

4.7.1 The Council has adopted the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury 
Management in Local Authorities. Treasury Management activity aims to 
effectively manage the Council’s cash flow requirements through borrowing and 
investment. The service operates within CIPFA’s Prudential Code and the 
approved Treasury Management Strategy to ensure risk is appropriately 
managed when seeking to minimise the costs of borrowing and maximise 
returns on investment. 

The quarter 2 forecast position for Treasury Management is an in year saving 
of £1.515m, due to significant re-phasing of the 2021/22 Capital Programme, 
which has reduced the amount of Minimum Revenue Provision required and 
the potential cost of borrowing in 2022/23. The authority also continues to 

Page 67



17 

operate an internally borrowed position, using existing balance sheet resources 
to defer the cost of external borrowing. Forecast investment income has 
increased substantially due to Base Rate increases and the maintenance of 
higher than anticipated cash balances/ reserves. This is partially offset by a 
revenue contribution towards the 2022/23 Capital Programme which will help 
reduce future debt repayment costs. Some of the in-year saving will  directly 
fund capital schemes that would have been funded from borrowing, to reduce 
the ongoing debt repayment costs, which will help reduce the future years’ 
budget gap. 

4.7.2 Appendix D provides detail of the Treasury Management position at September 
2022. 

4.8 Alternatives considered 

4.8.1 Not reporting on financial performance puts at risk the achievement of the 
Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan. Effective budget management is critical 
to ensuring financial resources are spent in line with the budget and are 
targeted towards the Council’s priorities. Monitoring enables the early 
identification of variations against the plan and facilitates timely corrective 
action. 

 

 
Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5. Financial Implications 
 

The main body of the report provides a detailed analysis of the forecast 2022/23 
Finance Outturn position. 

 
Risk and Policy Implications 

 
6. There are no significant legal implications arising as a result of this report to the 

Cabinet and the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee, but it should be 
noted that debts, which are recoverable, can be enforced by Court action in 
accordance with the Court Procedure Rules. 

 
The current economic uncertainty and resulting inflationary pressures, 
particularly on energy and staffing costs will impact on the Council’s forecast 
spend and future year budgets, and will continue to be monitored throughout 
the year.  

Staff recruitment and retention issues are both a Council and national issue, 
particularly relating to Social Care staff. The impact of the pandemic and 
economic factors are resulting in difficulties in staff recruitment and retention. A 
recruitment fair was held earlier in the year to try to raise awareness and interest 
in the council as an employer. A budget pressure request was approved at 

Page 68



18 

August 2022 Cabinet to recruit to a Recruitment and Retention Strategy Officer 
to develop and implement recruitment and retention strategies.  

Children’s Services are dealing with high levels of demand for placements for 
children, and it is likely that demand will increase during the year. The service 
continues to proceed with its strategy, and to address issues relating to both 
the safeguarding of children, and staffing levels. The service continues to have 
a high reliance on agency staff, and agency costs continue to rise as a result of 
market conditions.  

The impact of Covid-19 pressures is forecast to continue to have an impact on 
the Council’s financial position both in 2022/23 and in the medium term.  The 
2022/23 budget and Medium Term Financial Plan include forecast lower 
income levels for Business Rates and Council Tax due to the pandemic, which 
is being offset through the use of both one off government funding and reserves 
in the short term. However, this cannot be sustained in the longer term. 
Recovery from the pandemic is being closely monitored. 

Unresolved appeals against the revaluation assessments for 2010 and 2017 
cause uncertainty and financial risk for the Business Rates income retained by 
the Council. The situation is monitored on a monthly basis to ensure that any 
changes in the trend for successful appeals are recognised due to the future 
impact on Business Rates income and the impact for the provision for any 
backdated elements. 

The Valuation Office Agency (VOA) alters rating assessments if new 
information comes to light indicating that the valuation is inaccurate. These 
could relate to a demolition, new property builds or other physical changes to a 
property. The number of alterations, financial impact and timing of the 
revaluations are not within the control of the Council. There is an on-going risk 
that issues decided nationally by the VOA could potentially impact on the 
Council’s Business Rates income.  

A Business Rates revaluation is due to take effect from April 2023. The 
Valuation Office Agency revalue all properties throughout the country. This is 
outside the control of the Council, and may result in a loss of Business Rates 
income to the Council.  

The future level of collection of Corporate Debt (including Commercial Income), 
Business Rates and Council Tax debt is a potential financial risk, particularly 
with the on-going impact of the Covid-19 pandemic, and the current economic 
uncertainty. Collection performance is monitored on a monthly basis to ensure 
that debt is recovered as efficiently and effectively as possible, whilst making 
adjustments to reflect the current circumstances, and so that any trends may 
be highlighted and action taken as necessary, at the appropriate time. Debt 
collection is likely to continue to be affected by the impact of Covid-19 and the 
economic uncertainty in this financial year. Provisions have been increased to 
reflect the increased risk of non-collection. 

Page 69



19 

Consultation 

 
7. All services engage with the production of the directorate based financial 

information within this report. The Leadership Team, the Leader, Cabinet 
Member for Finance and Corporate, and Opposition Portfolio holder for Finance 
have been informed of the forecast 2022/23 financial position of the Council 
and its implications for future years. The report will be presented to the 
Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 7th December 2022. 

 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 
8. For further information about this 

report or access to any 
background papers contact 
Samantha Smith 

No1 Riverside Floor 2  

 

For Further Information Contact: Samantha Smith, Samantha.Smith@rochdale.gov.uk  

Tel : 01706 924198 

  

Page 70

mailto:Samantha.Smith@rochdale.gov.uk


20 

Appendix A – Revenue Budget ‘Variations to budget’ narrative – Quarter 2, September 2022 

Service Narrative Budget 
£'000 

Forecast  
£'000 

Variance 
£'000 

Adult Care 
Neighbourhoods:- Increase in placements, and new pressure of £265k relating to 
the Emergency Duty Team which has traditionally been funded by Children's 
Service and has historically always a cost pressure. This is now being 
apportioned based on service use between Adults and Children's. 

49,301 50,409 (1,108) 

 Boroughwide Services:- Pressure due to higher costs in Nursing and Residential 
placements. 4,630 5,007 (377) 

 Transfer from Social Care Reserve 0 (1,000) 1,000 

  In House Provider Services:-  In year saving in staffing costs due to staff turnover. 1,797 1,527 270 

  Governance Business Support & Home Improvement Agency:- In year saving in 
staffing costs due to staff turnover. 1,413 1,198 215 

  Adult Care Variation to Budget  57,141 57,141 0 

Children's  

Cared for Children:-  There is additional Covid funding of £3.181m that is 
offsetting an overspend position.  The Cared for Children’s numbers are higher 
than the planned strategy. There have been an additional high cost external 
placements that have added an additional £1.2m of costs. The service is taking 
action to look at alternative provision. 

23,590 23,590 0 

P
age 71



21 

Service Narrative Budget 
£'000 

Forecast  
£'000 

Variance 
£'000 

  

Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND):- The main variations to budget 
relate to:  

 SEN Transport budgets are forecast to overspend by £745k due to the 
increasing number of SEN pupils.  

 The Educational Psychology Service is forecasting to overspend by £166k 
due to the need to fulfil its increasing statutory work for Education and 
Health Plans (EHPs), higher agency staffing costs and the inability to 
generate income due to staff concentrating on statutory work.  

 There is a forecast overspend relating to the High Needs DSG of £500k. 

6,777 8,518 (1,741) 

  Contribution from DSG Reserve:- 0 500 500 
  Children's Services Variation to Budget  30,367 31,608 (1,241) 
Economy 

Covid 19 Pressures :- The targeted savings in respect of desk utilisation at 
Number 1 Riverside will not be achieved in full in 2022/23. 0 60 (60) 

  Economy Services Variation to Budget  0 60 (60) 

Finance Control/ 
Interest:-  Continued internal borrowing and rephasing the capital programme,  
reducing interest expense as well as increases in investment income. This is 
partially offset by a revenue contribution towards the 2022/23 Capital Programme 
which will help reduce future debt repayment costs 

7,538 6,813 725 

Tax & Treasury Debt Repayment  -  Significant re-phasing of 2021/22 capital programme, 
reducing the MRP requirement. 10,811 10,083 728 

  

Other Income: -  Additional rents re Manchester Airport Land and interest on 
deferred loan repayments (3,864) (3,926) 62 

  Finance Control Variation to Budget 14,485 12,970 1,515 

P
age 72



22 

Service Narrative Budget 
£'000 

Forecast  
£'000 

Variance 
£'000 

Neighbourhoods 
Facilities Management:-   In year pressure due to forecast increase in staff pay 
award in relation to the Catering & Cleaning trading account with schools. There 
is also a pressure in relation to lost school contracts of £39k 

503 671 (168) 

  

Environmental Management:- There is an in year pressure of £330k relating to: 
 
£150K Essential work by arborists on diseased trees 
£45k Your Trust contract 
£30k Oil 
£80k contract increases (caddy liners/vehicle parts etc) 
£25k loss on income 

12,724 13,054 (330) 

  
Your Trust (YT) :- The pressure of £29k consists of: £23k, impact of rent review 
within existing lease terms for storage location at Scott Industrial Estate; £6k, 
other minor variations  

2,470 2,499 (29) 

  Street Lighting:- The service is reporting a pressure of £118k in respect of energy 
costs which is partially being mitigated by trimming.   5,131 5,249 (118) 

  

Strategic Housing: - Covid 19 related homelessness accommodation pressures of 
£121k have been agreed to be funded from the Covid reserve.  
There is a pressure relating to the Homelessness service area due to increased 
numbers of service users and accommodation costs, which can only be partially 
offset by government Housing Benefit subsidy. Budget provision has been 
earmarked to offset the pressure. 

2,322 2,322 0 

  Neighbourhoods Service Variation to Budget 23,150 23,795 (645) 

Resources 
Finance Services:-  In-year pressure due to increased External Audit contract 
costs and the Purchase to Pay Scheme.  These pressures are partially mitigated 
from in-year staff savings. 

2,014 2,225 (211) 

P
age 73



23 

Service Narrative Budget 
£'000 

Forecast  
£'000 

Variance 
£'000 

Other Managed Budgets:-   In-year staff savings due to interim arrangements and 
delays to recruitment. 2,923 2,679 244 

Revenues and Benefits:- In-year staff savings due to one off/temporary funding, 
plus additional income from Free School Meal Assessments. 6,133 5,970 163 

Human Resources:- In-year saving on staff costs due to reduced hours and 
temporary arrangements, plus one off funding from the CCG in 2022/23. 1,834 1,639 195 

Internal Audit:- In-year staff savings currently under review as part of a Service 
restructure.  627 587 40 

Resources Service Variation to Budget 13,531 13,100 431 
 Total Variation to Revenue Budget – 2022/23 0 

 

 

 

P
age 74



24 

Appendix B – Capital Forecast Spend by Scheme as at Quarter 2, September 2022 

Service Scheme 
2022/23 
Budget, 

£k 

2022/23 
Forecast 
Outturn, 

£k 

Variation, 
£k 

 

2023/24 
Budget, 

£k 

2024/25 
Budget, 

£k 

Total 
Budget,  

£k 

Adult Care Better Care Fund 250 250 -  - - 250 
Adult Care Disabled Facilities Grant 4,610 3,591 1,019  2,987 2,987 10,584 
Adult Care   4,860 3,841 1,019  2,987 2,987 10,834 

Children's 
Aiming High For Disabled 
Child 

42 42 - 
 

- - 42 

Children's Devolved Formula Capital 676 676 -  445 445 1,566 
Children's Early Years Capital Grant 19 19 -  - - 19 
Children's New Place Planning 10,631 2,000 8,631  28,241 5,200 44,072 

Children's 
Schools Cap Condition 
Programme 

6,062 5,062 1,000 
 

1,808 1,808 9,678 

Children's 
Special Provision Capital 
Fund 

571 571 - 
 

- - 571 

Children's CWD Residential Home 50 50 -  1,064 - 1,114 

Children’s 
High Needs Provision 
Capital Allocations 

588 588 - 
 

4,000 - 4,588 

Children's   18,639 9,008 9,631  35,558 7,453 61,650 

Economy 
Definitive ROW 
Improvement Programme 

5 5 - 
 

46 - 51 

Economy River Roch Flood Storage 1,250 1,250 
 

 4,596 - 5,846 

Economy 
Rochdale Gateways 
Environmental Programme 

5 5 - 
 

- - 5 

Economy Stakehill Industrial Estate 36 2 34  - - 36 
Economy Asset Development Fund 1,652 1,652 -  1,246 - 2,898 
Economy Property Growth Fund 8,172 8,172 -  16,385 20,000 44,557 

P
age 75



25 

Service Scheme 
2022/23 
Budget, 

£k 

2022/23 
Forecast 
Outturn, 

£k 

Variation, 
£k 

 

2023/24 
Budget, 

£k 

2024/25 
Budget, 

£k 

Total 
Budget,  

£k 

Economy 
Milnrow TC Butterworth Hall 
Flood Risk Mgt 

- - - 
 

100 - 100 

Economy Turf Hill Flood Risk Mgt 250 250 -  250 - 500 
Economy East Lancashire Railway 50 50 -  258 - 308 
Economy Lower Falinge 3 3 -  - - 3 

Economy 
Birch Fountain & Horse 
Trough-Middleton 

20 9 11 
 

- - 20 

Economy Tonge Hall 30 13 17  - - 30 
Economy Michael Faraday Avenue  597 597 -  - - 597 
Economy Rail Corridor Strategy 3,904 3,000 904  - 2,000 5,904 

Economy 
Rochdale Flood Innovation 
Programme 

400 400 - 
 

3,443 876 4,719 

Economy Towns Fund 1,450 1,544 (94)  14,125 3,834 19,409 
Economy Slopes Restoration 328 328 -  1,500 - 1,828 

Economy 
Neighbourhood Rochdale 
BLF 

3,760 - 3,760 
 

- - 3,760 

Economy Industrial Property Portfolio 700 700 -  2,049 812 3,561 

Economy 
Central Retail Park 
Residential 

- 4,660 (4,660) 
 

- - - 

Economy 
Northern Gateway 
Feasibility and Study 

292 292 - 
 

- - 292 

Economy 
Town Centres Capital 
Programme 

57,621 56,461 1,160 
 

14,025 3,719 75,365 

Economy   80,525 79,393 1,132  58,023 31,241 169,789 

Neighbourhoods 
ICT Infrastructure Refresh 
Programme 

1,089 1,089 - 
 839 444 2,372 

P
age 76



26 

Service Scheme 
2022/23 
Budget, 

£k 

2022/23 
Forecast 
Outturn, 

£k 

Variation, 
£k 

 

2023/24 
Budget, 

£k 

2024/25 
Budget, 

£k 

Total 
Budget,  

£k 
Neighbourhoods ICT Programmes (Staff) 653 653 -  500 500 1,653 
Neighbourhoods Office 365 450 309 141  - - 450 

Neighbourhoods 
Townships Capital 
Programme 

377 377 - 
 400 400 1,177 

Neighbourhoods Housing Standards Fund 1,580 1,235 345  861 800 3,241 
Neighbourhoods New Cemetery Sites 570 544 26  1,001 - 1,571 

Neighbourhoods 
Replacement Parks/Street 
Machinery 

133 133 - 
 120 120 373 

Neighbourhoods Rights Of Way 130 130 -  80 80 290 

Neighbourhoods 
Section 106 - Environmental 
Management 

772 772 - 
 434 - 1,206 

Neighbourhoods 
Townships Capital - 
Environmental Management 

198 198 - 
 - - 198 

Neighbourhoods Upgrade Play Equipment 105 105 -  75 75 255 
Neighbourhoods Dell Road Landslide 484 484 -  - - 484 
Neighbourhoods HLCP Projects 1,210 715 495  2,816 - 4,026 

Neighbourhoods 
Vehicle Replacement 
Programme 

3,408 2800 608 
 1,723 572 5,703 

Neighbourhoods 
Waste Bin Replacement 
Programme 

305 305 - 
 298 303 906 

Neighbourhoods Asset Management Group 3,803 3,803 -  2,550 2,550 8,903 
Neighbourhoods Local Transport Plan 3,807 3,607 200  2,714 2,714 9,235 

Neighbourhoods 
Townships Capital - 
Highways 

698 698 - 
 - - 698 

Neighbourhoods Burglary Reduction Scheme 100 100 -  100 100 300 
Neighbourhoods N1R Revolving Doors 120 120 -  - - 120 
Neighbourhoods Decarbonisation Scheme 1,371 1,371 -  - - 1,371 

P
age 77



27 

Service Scheme 
2022/23 
Budget, 

£k 

2022/23 
Forecast 
Outturn, 

£k 

Variation, 
£k 

 

2023/24 
Budget, 

£k 

2024/25 
Budget, 

£k 

Total 
Budget,  

£k 

Neighbourhoods J19 Feasibility 12,515 12,515 -  - - 12,515 
Neighbourhoods Developer Contributions 170 170 -  100 100 370 
Neighbourhoods GM Full Fibre Programme 337 337 -  - - 337 

Neighbourhoods 
Service Desk System 
Replacement 

160 213 (53) 
 - - 160 

Neighbourhoods 
Compulsory Purchase Order 
Programme 

2,889 2,889 - 
 2,419 1,000 6,308 

Neighbourhoods 
Travellers Authorised 
Stopping Site 

2 2 - 
 - - 2 

Neighbourhoods Climate Emergency 500 500 -  2,389 1,000 3,889 
Neighbourhoods Car Parking Machines 4 4 -  - - 4 

Neighbourhoods 
Allotments 2017-18 
Manifesto Funding 

133 83 50 
 - - 133 

Neighbourhoods Accelerated Housing 2,084 2,084 -  1,705 - 3,789 
Neighbourhoods Affordable Housing 1,742 1,742 -  80 - 1,822 

Neighbourhoods 
Customer Transformation 
Programme 

590 590 - 
 - - 590 

Neighbourhoods GM One Network 269 216 53  - - 269 
Neighbourhoods CCTV Upgrade 232 232 -  - - 232 
Neighbourhoods Library Self Service 8 8 -  - - 8 
Neighbourhoods Extended Library Hours 91 91 -  - - 91 
Neighbourhoods N1R AV Equipment 200 200 -  - - 200 

Neighbourhoods 
Property Transfers from 
Highways 

199 199 - 
 - - 199 

Neighbourhoods 
Highway Investment 
Programme – Carriage Way 

3,472 - 3,472 
 4,510 3,190 11,172 

P
age 78



28 

Service Scheme 
2022/23 
Budget, 

£k 

2022/23 
Forecast 
Outturn, 

£k 

Variation, 
£k 

 

2023/24 
Budget, 

£k 

2024/25 
Budget, 

£k 

Total 
Budget,  

£k 

Neighbourhoods Bowlee Free School 567 567 -  - - 567 
Neighbourhoods Highways Plant & Machinery 1,913 1,913 -  - - 1,913 
Neighbourhoods Beelines Award - - -  2,035 - 2,035 

Neighbourhoods 
Link4Life (Your Trust) 
Capital Project 708 708 -  

- 576 1,284 

Neighbourhoods 50,148 44,811 5,337  27,749 14,524 92,421 
Resources Investment Fund - 1,745 (1,745)  4,000 - 4,000 
Resources - 1,745 (1,745)  4,000 - 4,000 
                 
Total Capital Forecast Position at September 
2022 154,172 138,798 15,374  128,317 56,205 338,694 

 

P
age 79



29 

Appendix B (2) – 2022/23 Capital budget rephasing 

Service Narrative 
Rephasing 
Requested 
£000s 

Funding 
Source 

Adult Care Disabled Facilities Grant - expenditure 
of the DFG has picked up in 22/23 in 
comparison to 21/22 and further 
increased spend is predicted towards 
Q3/Q4. A rephase is requested as full 
year allocation and brought forward 
amount won't be fully spent in year. 

 
 

1,019 

 
 

Government 
Grant 

Children’s New Place Planning:- the building 
scheme to increase the number of 
pupil places at Brownhill Learning 
Community ASC was due for 
completion in 2022-2023 but now 
costs are expected to come into 2023-
2024 

 
 

8,631 

 
 

Government 
Grant 

Children’s Schools Capital Condition 
Programme: - a rephase is requested 
as the scheme to increase the dining 
capacity at Elmwood primary will be 
completed in the new financial year. 

 
1,000 

 
Government 

Grant 

Economy 

Birch Fountain & Horse Trough - 
Middleton: Rephase £11k to 23/24 as 
the majority of work unlikely to start in 
22/23. 

11 

 
Borrowing 

Economy 

Rail Corridor Strategy: Rephase 
£904k from 22/23 to 23/24 as 
negotiations still ongoing for design & 
survey works 

904 

 
 

Borrowing 

Economy 

Towns Fund: Rephase £494k from 
23/24 to 22/23 re New Homes project 
- works have started earlier than 
planned and funding will be spent in 
22/23. 

(494) 

 
 

External 

Economy Central Retail Park Residential: £945k 
to be rephased to 23/24 945 

 
Mixed 

Economy 

Stakehill Industrial Estate: Rephase to 
23/24 as decision on expenditure by 
the Stake hill BID board still to be 
approved 

34 

 
 

Borrowing 

Economy 

Town Centre Schemes; Requests for 
rephasing to 22/23: Town Centre East 
Feasibility: £84k to be rephased to 
23/24 to fund future spend on this 
scheme. Town Hall Adaptation and 
Restoration: £(1,018)k from Town Hall 
Phase 3 to be rephased from 23/24 to 

(285) 

 
 
 

Mixed 

Page 80



30 

Service Narrative 
Rephasing 
Requested 
£000s 

Funding 
Source 

22/23 (£(684)k to fund shortfall in 
budget for current phase 2 works and 
£(334k) (already approved) for phase 
3 design works). Town Centre 
Schemes 2016/17: £245k to be 
rephased to 23/24 as a result of work 
to be done on Richard Street element 
of the project and outstanding 
remedial works. Rochdale Town 
Centre 3 Year Strategy: Rephase 
£53k to 23/24 as unlikely to progress 
any major schemes in 22/23.  
Hey/Midd/Litt Town Centre 
Masterplans: £71k to be rephased to 
23/24 as work on the plans will 
continue in 23/24. Touchstones 
Cultural Development: £210k to be 
rephased to 23/24 due to a delay in 
the signing grant agreements & 
delays in the procurement of the 
design team. Heywood Culture Hub: 
£70k to be rephased to 23/24 due to a 
delay in the signing grant agreements 
& delays in the procurement of the 
design team 

Economy 
Tonge Hall: Rephase £17k to 23/24 to 
fund ongoing works which will 
continue into the next year 

17 
 

RCCO 

Neighbourhoods 
Office 365 - A request is made to 
rephase budget to 23/24 due to 
delays in the project 

141 
 

Borrowing 

Neighbourhoods 

Housing Standards Fund - a request 
is made to rephase part of the Towns 
Fund budget as the project will be 
completed in 23/24. 

345 

 
Government 

Grant 

Neighbourhoods 

New Cemetery Sites - a request is 
made to rephase budget to 23/24 in 
relation to accessible toilets at 
Denehurst park as work is delayed 

26 

 
Borrowing 

Neighbourhoods 

Hollingworth Lake Country Park 
(HLCP) Projects - a request is made 
to rephase budget to 23/24 in relation 
to Glamping and buildings at HLCP as 
work is delayed 

495 

 
 

Invest to 
Save 

Neighbourhoods 
Vehicle Replacement Programme - a 
request is made to rephase budget to 
23/24 in relation to purchase of 

608 
 

Borrowing 

Page 81



31 

Service Narrative 
Rephasing 
Requested 
£000s 

Funding 
Source 

vehicles as there are procurement 
delays 

Neighbourhoods 

Local Transport Plan - a request is 
made to rephase £200k of the bridges 
programme as this work needs to be 
carried out outside of the winter 
period as the work is in rivers. 

200 

 
 

Government 
Grant 

Neighbourhoods 

Allotments 2017-18 Manifesto 
Funding - a request is made to 
rephase budget to 23/24 in relation to 
allotments as there are delays in 
scheme 

50 

 
Borrowing 

Neighbourhoods 

Highways Investment Programme - a 
request is made to rephase and delay 
the commencement of the steady 
state programme due to staff 
shortages and procurement delays of 
the servicing tender. 

3,472 

 
 

Borrowing 

Resources 

Investment Fund :- a request is made 
to rephase from 23/24 to 22/23 to 
fund expenditure relating to Dell Road 
repairs £145k and £1,600k additional 
expenditure on Town Hall budgets 
relating to the renovation of the ceiling 

(1,745) 

 
 

Borrowing 

   Grand Total of Rephasing 15,374  
   

Page 82



32 

Appendix C – Collection Fund 

Business Rates 

The forecast 2022/23 outturn position relating to Business Rates is a surplus 
of £1,241k:  

Description Budget 2022/23 
Forecast Outturn 

(Surplus)/ 
Deficit 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 
Gross income (86,329) (86,329) -  
Net Small Business Rate relief 8,271 8,271 -  
Mandatory Charitable relief 4,218 4,218 -  
Discretionary relief 4,153 8,042 3,889 
Empties & Part Occupied relief 4,000 4,000 -  
Net Income (65,687) (61,798) 3,889 
Less:        
Charge re bad debt provision 1,040 517 (523) 
Allowance for cost of collection 318 318 -  
Provision for rateable value 
revaluations  1,943 1,943 -  
Renewable energy schemes 583 583 -  
Net yield (61,803) (58,437) 3,366 
2021/22 payments to 
preceptors/billing authority 61,803 61,803 -  

In year deficit -  3,366 3,366 
Deficit brought forward from 2021/22 
into 22/23 10,666 4,824 (5,842) 
Payments from preceptors/billing 
authority re 2021/22 deficit per 
2022/23 Budget process (9,431) (9,431) -  

2022/23 Forecast in year deficit/ 
(surplus) 1,235 (1,241) (2,476) 
Deficit brought forward from 2020/21 
to be repaid in 2023/24 - 3 year 
spread (1,235) -  1,235 
Net surplus -  (1,241) (1,241) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 83



33 

Council Tax 

The forecast 2022/23 position relating to Council Tax is a surplus of £522k.  

  2022/23 Forecast Council Tax Income 

Description Budget 
2022/23 
Forecast 
outturn 

(Surplus)/ 
Deficit 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 
INCOME       
Income from Council Tax (158,711) (158,461) 250 
Income from premium on Empty Properties (527) (777) (250) 
Council Tax discounts  15,755 15,755 -  
Local Council Tax Support Scheme (LCTSS) 21,565 20,815 (750) 
Prior year adjustments 211 211 -  
Total income (121,707) (122,457) (750) 
EXPENDITURE       
Charge re bad debt provision 3,043 3,843 800 
Total expenditure 3,043 3,843 800 
Net income to be raised for precept/ billing 
authority after LCTSS awarded (118,664) (118,614) 50 
2022/23 payments to Preceptors 118,664 118,664 -  
In year (surplus)/ deficit -  50 50 
Surplus brought forward from 2021/22 (776) (1,969) (1,193) 
2022/23 Payments to preceptors as per 2022/23 
Budget process 1,397 1,397 -  
2022/23 Forecast (surplus)/ deficit 621 (522) (1,143) 
Deficit brought forward from 2020/21 to be 
repaid in 2023/24 - 3 year spread (621) -  621 
Net surplus -  (522) (522) 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Page 84



34 

Appendix D - Treasury Update Quarter 2, 2022/23 

 

Introduction 

The Council has adopted the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management in 
Local Authorities. Treasury Management activity aims to effectively manage the 
Council’s cash flow requirements through borrowing and investment. The service 
operates within CIPFA’s Prudential Code and the approved Treasury Management 
Strategy to ensure risk is appropriately managed when seeking to minimise the costs 
of borrowing and maximise returns on investment. 

The quarter 2 forecast position for Treasury Management is an in year saving of 
£1.515m, due to significant re-phasing of the 2021/22 Capital Programme, which has 
reduced the amount of Minimum Revenue Provision required and the potential cost of 
borrowing in 2022/23. The authority also continues to operate an internally borrowed 
position, using existing balance sheet resources to defer the cost of external 
borrowing. Forecast investment income has increased substantially due to Base Rate 
increases and the maintenance of higher than anticipated cash balances/ reserves, 
but this is partially offset by a revenue contribution towards the 2022/23 Capital 
Programme which will help reduce future debt repayment costs. This is partially offset 
by a revenue contribution towards the 2022/23 Capital Programme which will help 
reduce future debt repayment costs. Some of the in-year saving will  directly fund 
capital schemes that would have been funded from borrowing, to reduce the ongoing 
debt repayment costs, which will help reduce the future years’ budget gap. 

 

Economic Update 

The main points to note this quarter are: 

 Persistent inflationary pressure – current CPI at 10.1% and expected to 
increase beyond 11% by the end of the year. 

 Increases in Bank of England Base Rate to deal with this – currently 2.25% 
expected to increase by 0.75% to 1% in both November and December and to 
5% overall by March 2023. 

 Gilt yields (which drive the cost of borrowing from the Public Works Loans 
Board) have increased through the quarter, initially triggered by inflationary 
pressures. Yields surged again at the end of September in response to the 
Government’s ‘mini-budget’ and its proposed fiscal loosening and potential for 
significantly higher public debt. Maturity rates at 30/9/22 were 4.95% for a 10-
year loan and 4.19% for 50 years (rates have since fallen back slightly – for 
comparison at the start of the financial year both rates were around 2.4%). 

 Increases to yields on deposits with financial institutions – a typical 3-month 
deposit at the end of September will pay around 3.2% with Money Market Funds 
at 2.0% (prior to the initial bank rate increase in December 2021 – these rates 
were around 0.15% and 0.02% respectively). 

Page 85



35 

Debt 

The table below summarises the Council’s debt position at 30/9/22.  

Debt 
Type 

Balance                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               
at 

1/04/22                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
£M 

New 
Borrowing                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               
to 30/06/22                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  

£M 

Repayments                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               
to 31/06/22                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  

£M 

Balance                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              
to 

30/06/22                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  
£M 

Average 
Rate % 

Average 
Maturity 

Years 

PWLB 
Debt 95.173                -    (3.419) 91.754        2.39         10.66  

Market 
Debt 120.000                -                       -    120.000        4.42         44.26  

Other 
Debt 0.182                -    (0.029) 

            
0.153             -             1.24  

Total 
Debt 215.355                -    (3.448) 211.907 3.48 29.68 

 

External borrowing at 30/9/22 totalled £211.907m. No additional borrowing was 
undertaken during the quarter. 

The Council’s estimated interest cost on its borrowing portfolio for the year is 
£7.529m.This compares to a revised estimate for the year of £9.339m – an overall 
saving of £1.809m.The saving is a consequence of increased rephasing of the 
2021/22 capital programme and further utilisation of internal borrowing – using existing 
cash reserves and balances to temporarily defer borrowing. 

The additional rephasing of the 2021/22 capital programme reduces the Council’s 
requirement to make minimum revenue provision by £0.714m this year. 

 The Council’s Capital Financing Requirement at 31/3/22 was £461m. Adjusted to 
remove PFI debt and externally managed debt, the Council’s Borrowing Requirement 
at year-end is £373m.  Deducting actual borrowing from this figure shows that the 
Council is currently internally borrowing by £161m before taking account of additional 
expenditure in year. 

The Council’s Operational Boundary (the limit which borrowing should not normally 
exceed) in 2022/23 (adjusted for PFI projects and externally managed debt) is £569m. 
The Authorised Limit (a control on our maximum level of borrowing) is £731m. Current 
borrowing (adjusted for PFI liabilities) is £298m – comfortably within the approved 
limits with no problems anticipated in staying within the limits through the year. 

The Council sets maturity limits to ensure it is not exposed to a requirement for large 
amounts of debt repayment at a particular time. It remained comfortably within these 
limits through the quarter as shown below.  

 

Page 86



36 

Period of Maturity 
Upper 
Limit 

Lower 
Limit Actual 

Under 12 months 60% 0% 3.3% 

Between 12 & 24 
months 60% 0% 3.2% 

Between 2 & 5 years  60% 0% 9.9% 

Between 5 & 10 years  70% 0% 9.1% 

Over 10 years  100% 25% 74.5% 

 

 Investments 

The Council continues to make its Treasury investments in accordance with the CIPFA 
Treasury Management Code of Practice, with investment priorities of: 

 Security of capital 
 Liquidity 
 Yield 

 

At the end of September the Council held short term Treasury investments of £117.5m 
(compared to a balance of £146.0m at the end of last year). The average balance in 
the quarter was £120.3m. The reduction in balances reflects the timing of receipts and 
expenditure relating to grants and reserves and progress on the capital programme 
which thus far has not required any new borrowing. 

The Council has earned £1.263m on its short-term investments in the first half of the 
year with a projection for the full year of £2.076m. This is a reasonably prudent 
estimate based on reducing balances and modest rises in interest rates through the 
remainder of the year (it is difficult to determine the extent to which rates currently 
available have already been baked in future projected increases in base rate). The 
average rate earned on short-term investments in the period was 1.229%. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 87



37 

A summary of current short-term investments is shown below: 

Credit Rating    Type of Investment   

Fitch Credit Rating Amount 
£m 

%   Investments Types Amount 
£m 

% 

AAA 37.7 32.1  Fixed Term Bank 
Deposits 

58.0 49.4 

AA- 17.0 14.5  Fixed Term Authority 
Deposits 

0.0 0.0 

A+ 54.8 46.6  Notice Accounts 12.0 10.2 

A 0.0 0.0  Call and Overnight 9.8 8.3 

A- 8.0 6.8  Money Market Funds 37.7 32.1 

Total 117.5 100.0  Total 117.5 100.0 

       

Institutions    Maturity   

Institutions:  Amount 
£m 

%  Maturing: Amount 
£m 

%  

UK Banks 45.8 39.0  Instant Call 47.5 40.4 

European Banks 5.0 4.2  Less than 1 Month 22.0 18.7 

Asia 24.0 20.4  1-3 Months 17.0 14.5 

Rest of the World 
Banks 

5.0 4.3  3-6 Months 31.0 26.4 

Money Market Funds 37.7 32.1  6 Months to 1 Year 0.0 0.0 

Total 117.5 100.0  Over 1 Year 0.0 0.0 

    Total 117.5 100.0 

  

The Council holds a longer-term investment with the CCLA Property Fund – the 
original book value of this investment was £5.0m. The shares held are currently 
valued at £4.784m. Dividend due for the first two quarters is £0.086m with an 
estimate for the full year (based on past performance) of £0.168m. 

Page 88



38 

The contribution of the short term and longer term treasury investment portfolio 
compared to the latest budget is £1.801m, net of a share of contributions paid internally 
to PFI schemes and schools.  

Officers can confirm that the approved limits within the Annual Investment Strategy 
were not breached in the half-year ended 30th September 2022. 

Page 89



            Report to Cabinet 
 

  

                                                                   

Revenue Budget Update 2023/24 to 2025/26 

 
     Executive Summary 

 
 
1 To provide an update on the Revenue Budget 2023/24 to 2025/26. The current 

forecast gap for 2023/24 is £5.280m rising to £15.803m in 2025/26 based on 
the latest information available. The main pressures relate to increased Energy 
costs, inflation on staffing and the pressures within Children’s services. The 
position reflects the known pressures and assumptions around Government 
funding which are due to be clarified in the Autumn Statement on the 17th 
November 2022. 

2       To provide an update on the Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy. The 
Medium Term Financial Strategy provides the latest budget position for the 
Council, sets out the key financial challenges and issues which will be faced 
over the period, and provides details of the assumptions and estimates which 
underpin the budget.  

 
     Recommendations 

 
 

2.1 Cabinet consider and note the updated Revenue Budget Position 2023/24 to  
2025/26, including the forecast budget gap for 2023/24 being £5.280m.      
Further work is required to set a balanced budget at Budget Council in February 
2023 after the announcement of the provisional and final settlement. 

2.2 Cabinet consider and note the update on the Council’s Medium Term Financial 
Strategy. 

2.3    Cabinet consider and note that additional asks to the Capital Programme in 
2023/24 will add an additional revenue pressure for repayment of borrowing of 
c £0.5m to the annual gap.  Consultation on the Capital Programme will take 
place over the autumn to ensure priorities are met and no further ask is added 
to the revenue budget. 

         

Date of Meeting 22nd November 2022 
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Finance and Corporate 
Report Author Sam Smith 
Public/Private Document Public 

Page 90

Agenda Item 12



           Reason for Recommendations 
 

 

3.1 Cabinet members are required to recommend a balanced 2023/24 Revenue 
Budget to Budget Council, and provisional budgets for 2024/25 to 2025/26. The 
Council is required to set a balanced budget for 2023/24 by 11th March 2023. 

3.2     The Revenue Budget and Medium Term Financial Strategy are key elements     
of the budget setting process.  

 

            Key Points for Consideration 
 

 
4.1 Timetable 

4.1.1 The Council’s budget must be approved by full Council before 11th March each 
year; this is a statutory requirement. The process begins in July with approval 
being sought for the assumptions and principles on which the budget is to be 
based. These are used as a part of the determination of the overall budget 
position. The budget timetable is detailed in Appendix 1. 

4.1.2 Financial projections are updated as further information becomes available in 
relation to the Local Government Finance Settlement and other known 
changes, including local decisions. The updated budget and feedback from 
consultations will be reported to Cabinet 14th February 2023 with 
recommendations for Budget Council 22nd February 2023, who in turn set the 
budget. 

4.1.3 Services are notified of their final approved budgets following Budget Council. 

4.2 Revenue Budget update 2023/24 to 2025/26 

4.2.1 As part of the budget setting process, the Council makes a number of 
assumptions in respect of the key elements of the Council’s revenue budget. 

4.2.2 Provisional budget assumptions were approved for 2023/24 to 2025/26 at 
Cabinet 26th July 2022. The budget assumptions have been reviewed and 
updated with the latest information available. Future reports will make Cabinet 
aware of any changes that impact on the current budget assumptions. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 91



4.2.3  An updated position is detailed in Table 1 

 Table 1 – Updated Budget Gap 2023/24 to 2025/26 

            
  2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 
  £m £m £m 
        
Budget Council Feb 2022 4.589 9.046 16.705 
        
Changes to Budget Assumptions 13.195 13.310 13.639 
        
Updated Budget Gap 17.784 22.356 30.344 
        
Mitigating Actions (12.504) (11.259) (14.541) 
        
Updated Budget Gap 5.280 11.097 15.803 

 
 
4.2.4  The report to Cabinet 26th July discussed the major changes to the budget 

assumptions from those contained in the provisional budget 2023/24 to 
2024/25 reported to Budget Council 23rd February 2022. There have been 
further changes to budget assumptions and several mitigating actions since the 
position reported to Cabinet on 26th July 2022, and these are reflected in the 
latest Revenue budget position. Table 2 details the changes to budget 
assumptions and mitigating actions since the position reported to Budget 
Council 23rd February 2022. Section 4.5 provides further detail of the budget 
assumptions and mitigating actions. 

         
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 92



          Table 2 Changes from February Budget Council to November Cabinet 
           
           

  2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 
  £m £m £m 
        
Budget Gap Cabinet 23rd February 2022 4.589 9.046 16.705 
        
Changes to assumptions       
Additional Energy Pressure 5.241 3.164 2.362 
Pay Award 4% 23/24 then 3% 1.610 2.502 3.436 
Pay Award 22/23 NJC Consultation and RLW 1.691 1.761 1.830 
Children's Strategy 2.533 2.150 2.203 
Children’s Staffing Pressure  0.876  2.489 2.564 
Additional Inflation 0.456 0.456 0.456 
Central Retail park 0.280 0.280 0.280 
Reduction in Service Grant-NIC Reduction 0.508 0.508 0.508 
        
Mitigating Actions       
Compensation Cap assumed Inflation (3.103) (3.139) (3.222) 
CTAX Base review (0.486) 0.000 0.000 
Services Grant expecting to be higher than 
budgeted (2.115) (2.115) (2.115) 
New Homes Bonus (0.600) (0.600) (0.600) 
Investment Returns (0.252) (0.252) (0.252) 
Reduction in Contributions To Reserves  (0.500) (0.500) (0.500) 
Transformation Review (1.000) (3.000) (6.200) 
Health and Social Care Reserve (1.000) (1.000) (1.000) 
Capital Programme following Qtr 1 Rephasing (0.495) (0.065) (0.064) 
Removal of NI-1.25% (0.508) (0.508) (0.508) 
Improved Collection Fund Position (2.366) (0.000) (0.000) 
Discretionary Fees & Charges-increase to 4% (0.080) (0.080) (0.080 
    
Net Changes 0.691 2.051 (0.902) 
        
Updated Budget Gap 5.280 11.097 15.803 

 
 
4.3 Spending Review 
 
4.3.1 The 2021 Spending Review (SR21) provided a 3 year funding settlement for 

Local Authorities starting in 2022/23 and covering funding expectations for 
2023/24-2024/25. The following chart shows the planned increase in English 
Councils’ core spending power for 2022/23 to 2024/25 with an expectation of a 
3% real term increase each year. 

 
 

Page 93



           

 

4.3.2 The three key outcomes of the SR21 spending review for Local Authorities 
were:- 

 An increase in general grant funding for 2022/23 of £1.6bn, with the 
expectation that this would remain at the same level for 2023/24-2024/25.  

 The Introduction of an Adult Social Care Reform Grant expected to increase 
significantly over the 3 year period as the changes are introduced.  

 Local Authorities would be expected to raise additional funds through Council 
Tax and Business Rates. 

4.3.3 SR21 confirmed the core Council Tax referendum limit would remain at 2% 
for each year within the 3 year spending review period. In addition the social 
care precept will be up to 1% per year.   

4.3.4 Social Care Reforms 

4.3.5 During the 3 year settlement period the government announced investment of 
£5.4bn in adult social care to deliver the funding and system reform 
commitments set out in the Plan. The funding package is intended to cover 
the costs to local government of implementing the charging reforms, including 
the cap, the increased capital limit, and moving towards paying a fair rate of 
care and the associated implementation costs. The government will consult 
on its proposals for the distribution of the £5.4bn funding, and keep this 
distribution under review. The following allocations from this fund were 
confirmed at SR21. 

 £3.6bn will go directly to local government over the SR21 period to 
implement the cap on personal care costs and changes to the means 

Page 94



test. This funding will also help local authorities better sustain their 
local care markets by moving towards a fairer cost of care.  

 £1.7bn over 3 years to improve the wider social care system, including 
the quality and integration of care. At least £500m of this will be 
allocated to improve qualifications, skills and wellbeing across the 
adult social care workforce. 

  Additional funding through the local government settlement to ensure 
all local authorities are able to meet core pressures in adult social care 

4.3.6 The additional health and social care funding announced was to be funded 
through the introduction of a UK-wide 1.25% Health and Social Care Levy, 
based on National Insurance contributions (NICs) to be introduced from April 
2022. However, as a result of the new budget announcements on the 23rd 
September 2022, the introduction of the Levy was overturned and the increase 
in National Insurance Contributions will no longer happen. The Government 
have confirmed that funding will remain at the same level as if the Levy was 
still in place. 

 
4.3.7   Significant work has taken place to analyse the impact of the Fair Cost of Care 

(FCOC) Review, however there is currently uncertainty on whether the planned 
reforms will continue as initially intended, or whether there will be a delay due 
to the current spending uncertainty. A paper on the latest position was 
discussed at Cabinet on 13th October before a submissions to Department of 
Health and Social Care (DHSC) on 14th October of the local market findings of 
what a FCOC should be for Rochdale and a Medium Term Market 
Sustainability Plan. 

 
4.3.8 Autumn Statement 

4.3.9 The Government announced that a Fiscal Statement was to take place on the 
31st October which would provide an indication of proposed funding changes 
to be announced in the provisional settlement in December. This has now been 
delayed to the 17th November and changed to an Autumn Statement. Any 
updates from the Autumn Statement will be reported to Cabinet on the 14th 
February 2023 along with the settlement figures.  

 
4.3.10 Due to increases in inflation and potential funding cuts, the 3% expected 

increase in core spending power announced as part of SR21 is no longer 
expected to happen. Instead potential issues and pressures are as follows:- 

   
 Funding Cuts - The Government has indicated that they are planning 

to reduce spending which is expected to mean a reduction in Local 
Authority funding allocations. 

 Council Tax Cap - As Local Authorities are constrained to raising 
Council Tax by a maximum of 1.99% plus 1% for the Adult Social Care 

Page 95



precept, Councils are facing a real term cut of circa 7% in comparison 
to cost pressures (£7m for Rochdale). 

 The Fair Funding Review - This is now expected to be delayed until 
after 2023/24. 

 Business Rates Resets - This is now expected to be delayed until after 
2023/24. 

 Business Rates 100% Retention Scheme - The pilot is likely to 
continue. 

 Adult Social Care reforms - There is now uncertainty around this being 
implemented from 2023/24.  

 Business Rates Multiplier – It is assumed this will be based on 
September RPI but unclear whether the Government will use CPI or a 
lower measure instead. 

 Service Grant - Potential risk around reductions from 2023/24 relating 
to the National Insurance cut. 
 

4.4 Medium Term Financial Strategy 
 
4.4.1 The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) is a five year plan which sets 

out the Council’s Commitment to provide services that meet the needs of 
people locally, and that represent good value for money within the overall 
resources available. The current MTFS was approved at Budget Council on 
the 23rd February 2022 and is kept under review throughout the budget 
process. 

 
4.4.2 There has been significant uncertainty as to the level of government funding 

from 2023/24, with further uncertainty as a result of the Cost of Living Crisis 
and expected reductions to funding to be announced as part of the Autumn 
Statement and December Settlement. 

 
4.4.3 The budget gap presented in this report shows a pressure of £5.280m for    

2023/24 rising to £15.803m in 2025/26, with no mitigating actions found as yet.  
As announcements are given and the provisional settlement is announced work 
will continue to address the gap for 2023/24 and reduce the gap for the further 
two years. 

 
4.4.5   An updated Medium Term Financial Strategy 2023/24 to 2027/28 will be taken 
           to Cabinet 14th February 2023 for recommendation to Budget Council 22nd   
           February 2023. 
 
4.5 Revenue Budget 2023/24 to 2025/26 – Key Areas of Note 
 
4.5.1 The updated Budget position for 2023/24 to 2025/26 is based on the best 

estimates at this point in time, and these will be reviewed once the final 
settlement figures are known.  

 

  

Page 96



4.5.2 Council Tax Increase 
 

For planning purposes, a general increase in Council Tax of 1.99% has been 
assumed for 2023/24 in line with expected referendum limits. A 1.99% increase 
has also been assumed for both 2024/25 and 2025/26. In addition an increase 
in the Adult Social Care precept of 1% has also been assumed for 2023/24 and 
2024/25, with no increase for 2025/26. 

 
Any variation in the level of Council Tax increase approved will have an impact 
on the forecast budget position. The impact of a 1% variation in the assumed 
Council Tax increase is approximately £1m, with no general increase of 1.99% 
being an additional pressure of £2.031m on the 2023/24 gap. 
 

4.5.3 Council Tax Base 

A Council Tax base for 2022/23 of 56,232 was approved by Council on 15th 
December 2021, representing the number of Band D equivalent properties that 
we collect Council Tax from. 

The Council Tax base for 2023/24 will be reviewed and formally considered by 
Cabinet on 22nd November 2022 with recommendation for approval and setting 
to December Full Council. Any changes agreed at Council in December will be 
reflected in future budget reports. 

4.5.4 Business Rates 

In 2022/23, Rochdale continues to be part of the Greater Manchester pilot for 
100% Business Rates Retention, which commenced in 2017/18.  The pilot 
authorities each retain 100% of locally-raised business rates. In return GM 
authorities forgo Revenue Support Grant (RSG) and the Public Health Grant. 
Authorities’ tariffs and top-ups are adjusted to ensure that these changes are 
without detriment to individual authorities.  

For planning purposes it has been assumed that the GM 100% Business Rates 
pilot will continue for 2023/24 onwards, although this is unknown at this stage.  

Business Rates charges are set by the government and normally increase in 
line with Consumer Prices Index (CPI) at September each year. Given the 
current high inflation levels, the budget assumes that the level of increase will 
be higher than previously forecast, with the increase reflected either via an 
increase in the Business Rates Multiplier, or via Section 31 grant compensation 
if the Government choose to limit the impact of the increase on Businesses.  
The assumptions on Business Rates income will be kept under review 
throughout the budget process, in particular the impact of the cost of living crisis 
on the estimated growth in total rateable values; the estimated level of 
unoccupied property relief; the estimated contribution to the bad debt provision; 
and the estimated contribution to the provision for appeals. 

Page 97



The Business Rates base 2023/24 will be reviewed and formally considered by 
Cabinet on 22nd November 2022 with recommendation for approval and setting 
to December Full Council. Any changes agreed at Council in December will be 
reflected in future budget reports. 

4.5.5 Business rates Revaluation 

The next Business Rates revaluation is due to take place in spring 2023, which 
is assumed to be cost neutral within the Medium Term Financial Strategy. The 
last Business Rates revaluation took place in 2017. 

4.5.6 Discretionary Fees and Charges 

Each year as part of the Budget Setting Process Discretionary Fees and 
Charges applied by the Council are reviewed and set for the upcoming financial 
year. Members are asked to consider a separate report recommending a 
general 4% uplift in these Fees and Charges and highlighting those service 
charges whereby a higher increase is proposed and those charges for which 
there will be no increase for consultation across the autumn months.  The final 
fees will be agreed at Budget Council in February 2023. 

4.6 Budget Growth / Pressures 
 
4.6.1 Energy 
 

Due to a significant rise in the cost of energy there is a forecast pressure of 
£5.241m in 2023/24. This is forecast to reduce in 2024/25 and 2025/26. 
Rochdale Council has not yet signed a contract for 2023/24 and beyond, and 
the service are currently looking at the best options to mitigate costs. 

 
4.6.2 Social Care  
 
 Childrens Social Care 

A Children’s strategy was first established in 2019 to address the pressures 
within Children’s Social Care, the strategy was a 5 year plan which included 
upfront investment to address demand and service provision before the funding 
phases out to an established position. Since the Covid-19 pandemic there has 
been a sustained increase in the numbers of referrals into the service which 
required a revision to the children’s strategy to account for the increased 
demand, the impact on placement numbers and the high caseloads of social 
workers.  
 
The additional placements as a result of Covid-19 has put unexpected pressure 
on the children’s services budget, resulting in a pressure of £2.5m in 2023/24, 
reducing to £2.2m in 2024/25. There are also staffing pressures within the 
service with an expected recurrent pressure of £2.5m by 2025/26. The strategy 
is currently being refreshed and any changes will be reported in future budget 
reports.  
 
The Health and Social Care reserve will be used to help mitigate the Social 
Care pressures within Childrens Services, with £1m committed for the next 3    
years. 

Page 98



 
Adults Social Care 
The budgeted net cost of Adult Social Care is increasing by c £4.5m per annum 
(excluding Fair Cost of Care-FCOC), this is mainly due to the increase in Adult 
Care provider fees. The potential impact of the real living wage and inflationary 
rises may increase this pressure further if these are not supported by FCOC 
funding. 

 
4.6.3 Contracts 
 

Due to the impact of inflationary rises a review of contracts due to be retendered 
has been undertaken in order to establish any potential pressures for 2023/24 
and beyond. The initial budget included £0.5m for contract uplifts and a further 
£0.457m in has been included for 2023/24 given current inflation pressures. 
 

4.6.4  Commercial Income 
 

The Council’s budget includes expectations of commercial income, some of 
which has been negatively affected by the pandemic.  
The impact of the loss of Commercial Income is estimated to last until 2027/28, 
and a model has been developed to utilise the Council’s reserves to smooth the 
impact of this loss on the Revenue Budget. 

 
4.6.5 Pay Inflation 
 

The budget approved at Budget Council on the 23rd February 2022 included a 
2% increase for pay inflation from 2023/24. This has now been increased by 
£1.6m to take it to 4%. However, the pay award for 2022/23 has not yet been 
agreed and is currently being consulted on, but the expected additional 
pressure is a further £1.7m, which is reflected in the latest budget position 
reported. 
 

4.6.6   Service Grant 
 

The Service Grant for 2023/24 is expected to be reduced for the reduction in 
NationaI Insurance Contrbutions (NIC). As yet the value isn’t known but the 
pressure is assumed to be c £0.5m, which is the cost to Rochdale of the NIC 
increase. 
 

4.6.7 Pension Contributions  
 

The tri-annual pension valuation has taken place which will result in revised 
contribution rates for the Council. Any changes will be reflected in the report to 
Cabinet 14th February 2023. 

 
4.7 Proposed actions to address the future year budget gap 

 
As listed below a number of actions have been identified and assumptions 
made in order to help address the estimated future year budget gap. Budget 
Challenge Sessions are being carried out to scrutinise Transformation and 
challenge services to help mitigate the gap and deliver priorities. 

 

Page 99



4.7.1 Future Income Allocation Estimates 
 

The current funding model assumes an increase in Government Funding as a 
result of the continuation of the service grant at 2022/23 levels and an 
inflationary linked increase in Business Rates compensation. Figures had 
previously assumed an increase in social care funding, but from recent 
announcements it is no longer expect this will happen. Confirmation of these 
funding streams or otherwise will not be known until the settlement has been 
received and therefore is underwritten by reserves for 2023/24.  Any shortfall 
from the use of reserves will be addressed in the longer term as part of the 
2024/25 budget. 

  
4.7.2 Transformation 
 

The Council has developed seven Transformation programmes which are 
estimated to generate service improvements and savings totaling a maximum 
of c £10m, with £6.2m built into the budget for 2023/24 - 2025/26. Project 
initiation documents are being developed and further updates will be provided 
in the February Budget Report. 

  
4.7.3 New Homes Bonus 
 

In February 2021 the government published a consultation seeking views on 
the future of the New Homes Bonus from 2022/23 onwards, setting out a variety 
of options for reform of this income stream. The government has yet to publish 
the results of the consultation. At this stage the budget assumes that £0.600m 
will be received in 2023/24 - 2025/26 based on prior year allocations. 

4.7.4 Discretionary Fees & Charges 
 

Discretionary Fees and Charges are reviewed on an annual basis. At Cabinet 
26th July 2022 a 2% general increase for 2023/24 was agreed for planning 
purposes. However, after further scrutiny it has been agreed to increase the 
Discretionary Fees and Charges to 4%, in order to generate additional income 
and bring the charges more in line with general inflationary increases. This will 
generate an additional c £80k. 
 

4.7.5  Other Mitigating Actions 
 

 Reduction in Contribution to Reserves-PFI - £0.500m. A review of the PFI 
budgets has been carried out and an opportunity to reduce reserve 
contributions has been identified. 

 Collection Fund Review-reduction in LCTS Claims - £0.486m - A review of 
the Collection Fund has identified that the level of discount provided is 
expected to reduce compared to the 2023/24 estimate providing a one off 
saving. 

 Investment Returns - £0.252m - Due to an increase in interest rates 
investment returns are expected to increase. 

Page 100



 Capital Rephasing – Increased rephasing of capital schemes at the end of 
2022/23 and identified at the  Qtr 1 Finance Update has reduced borrowing 
costs by £0.495m in 2023/24 on a one off basis. 

 Removal of NIC Budgets – A reduction of £0.5m due to the 1.25% NIC 
reduction. 
 

4.8  Emerging Issues 
 
4.8.1  Levies 
 

Work is still underway across Greater Manchester to determine levy charges 
for 2023/24, including the Waste disposal and Transport levies. The impact 
should be known in time to be reflected in the February Cabinet report. 
 

4.8.2 Homelessness 
 

Pressures are emerging around Homelessness and are expected to increase 
due to the cost of living crisis. There is a shortfall relating to the Housing Benefit 
Subsidy as the levels are capped.   
                                                                                          

4.8.3   Town Hall  
 

There are potential budget pressures due to the change in the operating model. 
The Town Hall reopens in 23/24 and information around the potential pressures 
are being worked on. 
 

4.8.4   Service Budget Review 
 

Work is currently ongoing to review future year budgets, which may identify 
further funding requirements. 

 
4.9 Capital Programme 

4.9.1 A separate report is presented to Cabinet on the Capital Programme for 
2023/24 - 2027/8.  Members are to note that additional asks to the programme 
in 2023/24 will add an additional revenue pressure for repayment of borrowing 
of c £0.5m to the annual gap.  Consultation on the Capital Programme will take 
place over the autumn to ensure priorities are met and no further ask is added 
to the revenue budget. 

 
4.10 Alternatives Considered 
 
4.10.1 The Council is legally obliged to set a balanced budget. The budget setting 

process is complex and must be undertaken in a planned way. It is equally 
important that assumptions used in the preparation of the budget are agreed, 
reasonable and consistently applied by all services. 

 

 

Page 101



                 Costs and Budget Summary 
 

 
5.1     The financial implications for the Revenue Budget are considered in the main 

body of the report. Table 1 highlights the financial pressures facing the Council 
in the medium term.   

5.1.1  Section 4.5 details the key pressures and mitigations to address the 2023/24 
gap which currently stands at £5.280m. Further work will take place to reduce 
the gap and ensure a balanced budget is presented to Council on 22nd 
February 2023. 

                 Risk and Policy Implications 
 

 
6.1 Risk Implications 

6.1.1 The budget forecast has been based on a number of assumptions, known 
levels of expenditure and anticipated levels of resources. Final confirmation of 
these assumptions is not expected to be known until December 2022.  

6.1.2 There are a number of areas of the Council’s budget where risks to the 
projections contained in this report have been identified. The most significant 
of these are detailed below. 

6.1.3 Current economic uncertainty-the budget assumptions will be kept under 
review as more information becomes available on the ongoing impact of the 
cost of living crisis, political uncertainty and the War in Ukraine on Council 
services.  

6.1.4 Monitoring of the 2022/23 budget will provide Cabinet with regular updates on 
any budget pressures and savings for the Council. Any associated ongoing 
implications will be incorporated into the budget projections for 2023/24 and 
future years.  

6.1.5 Government Funding – the level of government funding that the Council will 
receive in 2023/24 to 2025/26, including the Improved Better Care Fund, Social 
Care grant, and Services grant is unknown at this stage. This will be dependent 
on the 2022 Spending Review. 

6.1.6 Council Tax increase – Central Government provides a cap on the Council Tax 
increase a Local Authority can make before a referendum of the local residents 
is required. The referendum limit for 2022/23 was a 1.99% increase. A 1.99% 
general increase has been assumed for 2023/24, with a 1% social care precept 
also assumed. The assumptions included in this report are for planning 
purposes only, and will be reviewed by Cabinet leading up to a Council Tax 
recommendation at Budget Council. The impact of a 1% change in the level of 
Council Tax increase would be approximately £1m. 

6.1.7 Council Tax Collection – the cost of living crisis could affect the level of Council 
Tax collection. 

6.1.8 Council Tax Base – the estimated growth in new properties could be affected 
by the cost of living crisis. 

Page 102



6.1.9 Local Council Tax Support Scheme – the budget assumes that the Local 
Council Tax Support Scheme remains unchanged. The impact on the budget 
of a 5% change in the maximum discount allowed (currently 85%) would be 
approximately £0.6m. The impact of economic uncertainty could also affect the 
level of take up of the scheme. 

6.1.10 Business Rates – it has been assumed for planning purposes that the Greater 
Manchester 100% Retention pilot scheme will continue in 2023/24. Once the 
government’s proposals for the Business Rates retention system become clear 
the financial implications will be reviewed and the budget assumptions updated. 
The impact of economic uncertainty could affect the level of Business Rates 
income collected, the estimated growth in rateable values, or the estimated 
number of unoccupied properties.  

6.1.11 Council Services - the current economic uncertainty or general demographic 
changes could impact on the residents of the borough, leading to an increased 
cost of, or demand for, Council services.  

6.1.12 Health and Social Care - From July 2022 the previous arrangement of having 
local Clinical Commissioning Groups was replaced by Integrated Care Systems 
covering a wider area.  

6.1.13 Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA) budgets – there is a risk that 
the current economic uncertainty could affect the level of levies and other 
charges to districts. 

6.1.14 Waste Disposal Levy – the Waste Disposal Levy is calculated by a formula 
across Greater Manchester, which takes account of recycling levels. If 
Rochdale did not increase recycling at the same level as other GM Authorities 
this would impact on the levy, resulting in an increased cost to the Council.  

6.1.15 Transport Levy – The budget assumes a 1% increase for the transport levy, 
however the increase may be higher given current inflationary pressures, with 
each 1% costing circa £0.15m.  

6.1.16 Pay Award – the budget currently assumes a 4% pay award in 2023/24. An 
increase in the pay award of an additional 1% would increase the Council’s 
budget by approximately £0.8m. 

6.1.17 Inflation – impact of changes in the price of goods and services used by the 
Council compared to the percentage assumed in the budget projections. A 1% 
increase in price inflation equates to an increase in the budget of approximately 
£0.6m. 

6.1.18 Fees and charges income – the impact of any economic slowdown on levels of 
usage of charged-for Council services could lead to income levels not being 
achieved. 

6.1.19 Commercial Income – the amount of income received from commercial 
investments is subject to market forces and therefore is difficult to estimate. 

6.1.20 Investment income – potential risk from reduced interest rates and implications 
of any economic factors on the level of dividends/interest received by the 
Council. 

Page 103



6.1.21Capital Estimates – The Capital Programme which is being asked to be 
approved for consultation by Cabinet on 22nd November 2022, would increase 
the gap by £500k. Work will take place with Members and officers during the 
consultation period to attempt to reduce this cost before full approval at Budget 
Council on 22nd February 2023, with the aim of making the Capital Programme 
cost neutral. 

6.1.22 Academies – the impact of any schools converting to Academies on the 
Council’s budget. 

6.2 Legal Implications 

6.2.1 The Council is under a duty to calculate the budget in accordance with Section 
32 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 and must make three 
calculations namely: an estimate of the Council’s gross revenue expenditure; 
an estimate of anticipated income; and a calculation of the difference between 
the two. The amount of the budget requirement must be sufficient to meet the 
Council’s budget commitments and ensure a balanced budget. The amount of 
the budget requirement must leave the Council with adequate financial 
reserves. The level of budget requirement must not be unreasonable having 
regard to the Council’s fiduciary duty to its Council Tax payers and non-
domestic rate payers.   

6.2.2 Failure to make a lawful Council Tax on or before 11th March could have serious 
financial results for the Council and make the Council vulnerable to an Order 
from the Courts requiring it to make a specified increase in Council Tax. 

6.2.3 Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 places a general duty on local 
authorities to make arrangements for ‘the proper administration of their financial 
affairs'. 

6.2.4 Information must be published and included in the Council Tax demand notice. 
The Secretary of State has made regulations, which require charging 
authorities to issue demand notices in a form and with contents prescribed by 
these regulations.  

6.2.5 There is also a duty under Section 65 of the 1992 Act to consult persons or 
bodies appearing to be representative of persons subject to non-domestic rates 
in each area about proposals for expenditure (including capital expenditure) for 
each financial year. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 104



                Consultation 
 

 
7.1 Consultation will be undertaken throughout the year on various aspects of the 

budget setting process.  

7.2 Discretionary Fees and Charges – the proposed fees and charges for 2023/24 
will be brought forward for consultation with Cabinet on 22nd November 2022 
and Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 7th December 2022. 
Following consultation the fees and charges for 2023/24 will be recommended 
by Cabinet on 14th February 2023 for approval at Budget Council on 22nd 
February 2023. 

7.3 An updated Revenue Budget 2023/24 to 2025/26 and Medium Term Financial 
Strategy will be reported to Cabinet on 22nd November 2022, and Corporate 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 7th December 2022. The Revenue Budget 
2023/24 and provisional budgets for 2024/25 and 2025/26, and the Council Tax 
2023/24, will be recommended by Cabinet on 14th February 2023 for approval 
at Budget Council on 22nd February 2023.  

7.4     The Council Tax and Business Rates bases for 2023/24 will be recommended 
by Cabinet on 22nd November 2022, for approval at Council on 14th December 
2022. If agreed by members any changes to the Revenue Budget will be 
reflected in the report to Budget Council on 22nd February 2023. 

7.5 Capital Programme 2023/24 to 2027/28 - the proposed Capital Programme for 
2023/24 will be brought forward for consultation with Cabinet on 22nd November 
2022 and Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 7th December 2022. 
Consultation will also be undertaken with Township Committees. Following 
consultation the Capital Programme 2023/24 to 2027/28 will be recommended 
by Cabinet on 14th February 2023 for approval at Budget Council on 22nd 
February 2023. 

 

               Background Papers                          Place of Inspection 

 

For Further Information Contact: Samantha Smith Samantha.smith@rochdale.gov.uk 
 
Tel : 01706 924198 

 

 

  

Page 105

mailto:Samantha.smith@rochdale.gov.uk


APPENDIX 1  
Budget Timetable 2023/24 to 2025/26 – Key Dates 

Date  Meeting/Event Purpose 

2022     
Cabinet Cabinet 26 July 
Corporate O&S Corporate O&S 05 October  
    

July  

    1. Budget Update, Guidelines and Timetable 
   
July/August  Development Development of Transformation PIDS 
   

October/ 
November Member Sessions Transformation/Budget Development Sessions with 

Members 

November Cabinet Cabinet 22 November 
  Corporate O&S Corporate O&S 07 December  
      
    1. Discretionary Fees & Charges for Consultation 
    2. Revenue Budget 2023/24 to 2027/28 & MTFS Update 
     

3. Capital Programme 2023/24 to 2027/28 for 
Consultation 

November Cabinet  Cabinet 22 November 
  Corporate O&S Corporate O&S 07 December  
  Council Council 14 December  
      
    1. Council Tax and Business Rates bases 2023/24 

December Announcement Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement 

2023     

January/ February Announcement Final Local Government Finance Settlement 

February Corporate O&S Corporate O&S 06 February  
  Cabinet Cabinet 14 February 
  Budget Council Budget Council 22 February 
      
    1. Treasury Management Strategy 
    2. Medium Term Financial Strategy 
    3. Local Government Act 2003 Report 
    4. Revenue Budget and Council Tax 
    5. Capital Investment & Disposal Strategy 
    6. Capital Programme post consultation 
    7. Discretionary Fees & Charges post consultation 

Page 106



1 

Report to Cabinet 

 

Date of Meeting 22nd November 2022 

Portfolio Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Corporate  

Report Author Julie Murphy 
 

Public/Private Document Public 

 

 Capital Programme 2023/24 to 2027/28  

 
Executive Summary 

 

1.1 To outline changes to the Council’s Capital Programme 2022/23, as described 
in section 4.1.  The 2022/23 programme has decreased overall to £138.8m. 
The base budget of £157.7m agreed at Budget Council February 2022 has 
been increased by £35.3m of budget rephased from previous years at the 
2021/22 Year End, had £5.5m of capital budget changes, and as part of the Q1 
and Q2 Budget Monitoring reduced by £59.9m for expenditure which has been 
reviewed and rephased into future years. 

1.2. To outline the Council’s proposed Capital Programme 2023/24 to 2027/28, as 
a basis for consultation. 

1.3 To outline to Members’  the risks of borrowing to finance the Capital Programme 
and its long term impacts on the longer term financial sustainability of the 
Council and Treasury Management Strategy (TMS), as discussed in section 
4.3. 

1.4 Some of the assumed external funding included in the programme is still subject 
to clarification from Government and other sources and in some cases may 
involve bids for funds. It is therefore recommended that all approvals are 
subject to confirmation of funding allocations. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 107

Agenda Item 13



2 

Recommendations 

 

2.1 Cabinet consider and approve the proposed changes to the Capital Programme 
2022/23. 

 
2.2 Cabinet consider and approve the Capital Programme 2023/24, and provisional 

programmes for 2024/25 to 2027/28, as a basis for consultation, subject to 
confirmation of grant funding allocations, as detailed in Appendix 1. 

2.3 Cabinet considers and note that if the proposed Capital Programme is approved 
for consultation this will add an additional revenue pressure for repayment of 
borrowing of c £0.5m to the annual gap. 

2.4 Cabinet consider and approve next steps of the consultation process which will 
take place over the autumn to ensure priorities are met and no further ask is 
added to the revenue budget. 

   
Reason for Recommendation 

 

3.1 Cabinet members are required to recommend a balanced 2023/24 Revenue 
Budget to Budget Council, and provisional budgets for 2024/25 to 2025/26.  

3.2 The Council is required to set a balanced budget for 2023/24 by 11th March 
2023.  

3.3 The Capital Programme is a key element of the budget setting process. 

 
Key Points for Consideration 

 
 
4.1 Capital Programme Review 2022/23 

4.1.1 As reported to Cabinet 26th July, a review of the current Capital Programme 
was in progress. 

4.1.2 Due to the ongoing pressures being placed on the Council, a review of the 
Capital programme has been undertaken to reduce the future debt repayment 
burden on the Council as part of the Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 
and to understand spend in the current year and the impact on the Council’s 
cash flow. 

4.1.3 The objective of the review of the 2022/23 capital budgets across the Council 
was to consider whether schemes could be re-prioritised, rephased into future 
years or reduced, which can reduce the forecast revenue cost.  

Page 108



3 

4.1.4 As a result of the review and rephasing that has taken place since the 2022/23 
Capital Programme was agreed, an one off revenue saving of £0.495m has 
been identified for 2023/24, which is reflected in the latest revenue budget gap 
being reported to November Cabinet for 2023/24. 

4.1.5 The Capital Programme budget for 2022/23 at Quarter 2 Finance Update 
Report if approved by Cabinet on 22nd November 2022 will be £138.797m, this 
being £157.702m approved as the new programme at February Budget 
Council, £35.346m rephased from 2021/22 into 2022/23, £5.512m of capital 
budget changes, and reduced by £59.763m of budget that has been reviewed 
and rephased into future years. 

4.1.6 An updated position is detailed in Table 1 

Table 1 Updated Capital Programme 2022/23 to 2024/25 

 2022/23 
£’000s 

2023/24 
£’000s 

2024/25 
£’000s 

Budget Council February 2022 157,702 89,006 57,138 
Rephasing Brought Forward from previous years 35,346 (2,604) - 
Capital Budget Changes 5,512 - - 
Capital Budget returned - (1,906) (933) 
Rephasing requested Quarter 1 & 2 (59,763) 59,763 - 
Budget as at end of September 2022 138,797 144,259 56,205 

 

4.1.7 The rephasing from the 2022/23 programme which has been identified and 
agreed with Directorates, is detailed in appendix 2. 

4.1.8 Any rephasing at the year-end from Q3 and Q4 will be carried forward and 
added to the opening budget total.  

4.2       Capital Programme 2023/24 to 2027/28 
 

4.2.1 The Capital Investment and Disposal Strategy including the 2023/24 – 2027/28 
Capital programme will be presented to Cabinet in February and Council on 
22nd February 2023. 

4.2.2 The strategy is a requirement from Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy (CIPFA) for all local authorities to demonstrate a high level long 
term view of capital expenditure, financing and treasury management activity 
to contribute to the provision of services, an overview of risk in capital items 
and the implications of capital expenditure on the future financial sustainability. 

4.2.3 To address the CIPFA requirements, the Strategy will address longer term 
aspirations for the borough with capital requirements and detail the short to 
medium term capital spend in a five year programme. 

 
 
 

Page 109



4 

4.2.4    The programme aims to: 
 Deliver investment in the Borough to support the Borough wide priorities, 

including economic benefit and gross value added to the Borough; 
 Deliver investment in Service Provision to deliver future savings; 
 Maintain and enhance the Council’s assets; 
 Meet Statutory provision; 
 Provide value for Money. 

 
 
4.2.5 The Capital Programme continues to align with the Council’s priorities: 

 Place Plan – aligning capital investment to support the borough’s economic 
growth potential and continue to regenerate our town centres. 

 Corporate Plan – ensuring the borough maintains its high standard of quality 
building and public space. 

 Asset Strategy – aiming to hold fewer but more efficient assets, realising 
maximum value from the estate whilst safeguarding its staff, customers and 
other building users. 

 
4.2.6 Over the summer period Services were asked to submit Capital Bid requests for 

the 2023/24 to 2027/28 Programme. This resulted in £82.1m of new bids over 
the 5 year programme which included £44.9m to be funded from new prudential 
borrowing. This new borrowing would add approximately £1.9m to the budget 
gap in future years. 

 
4.2.7 Follow up meetings were held with Assistant Directors, Heads of Services, 

Project Leads and Finance Support Services. This resulted in some of the bids 
being re-profiled and smoothed across the 5 year programme and some bids 
have been removed from this process. 

 
4.2.8  As a result of the above revised bids of £62.3m have now been submitted which 

includes £22.1m to be funded from new prudential borrowing. This has reduced 
the revenue cost of new borrowing to £1.261m. 

 
4.2.6 The revised additional Capital Schemes identified as part of the 2023/24 Capital 

Programme are summarised in table 3 below and table 4 provides details of the 
funding source for each project. Full details of each scheme are within Appendix 
3. 

 

Page 110



5 

Table 3 Additional Capital Schemes 
 

Directorate Scheme 23/24 
£’000 

24/25 
£’000 

25/26 
£’000 

26/27 
£’000 

27/28 
£’000 

Children’s Services Residential Mainstream Children’s Homes 1,400 - - - - 
Children’s Services Total  1,400 - - - - 
Neighbourhoods Ash Die Back Management Programme 100 100 100 - - 

Neighbourhoods Resurfacing Car Park at RSPCA Centre 255 - - - - 

Neighbourhoods Video Surveillance System Improvements (CCTV) 285 - - - - 

Neighbourhoods Veritas Data Discovery Tool 88 - - - - 

Neighbourhoods Library Equipment Upgrade 200 12 12 12 12 

Neighbourhoods Provision of Move on Accommodation 3,120 - - - - 
Neighbourhoods Park Play Area fit for purpose 150 75 - - - 

Neighbourhoods Rochdale Town Hall – fit out 521 - - - - 

Neighbourhoods Construction of 14 units of temporary accommodation  350 - - - - 

Neighbourhoods Customer Relations Management (CRM) 397 396 333 - - 

Neighbourhoods Intranet 150 - - - - 

Neighbourhoods Total  5,616 583 445 12 12 

Economy Springfield Park Barn 500 - - - - 
Economy Rochdale Town Hall Restoration Project Phase 3 4,320 1,680 - - - 
Economy Hopwood Hall College 4,974 - - - - 

Economy Levelling Up Heywood and Middleton 15,349 4,650 - - - 

P
age 111



6 

Directorate Scheme 23/24 
£’000 

24/25 
£’000 

25/26 
£’000 

26/27 
£’000 

27/28 
£’000 

Economy Levelling Up Rochdale 13,250 6,650 - - - 

Economy Total  38,393 12,980 - - - 
Resources Transformation - - 2,000 - - 

Resources Total  - - 2,000 - - 

Overall Total Cost  45,409 13,563 2,445 12 12 

P
age 112



7 

Table 4 Funding Source for additional Capital Schemes 
 
Scheme Funding Source 23/24 

£’000 
24/25 
£’000 

25/26 
£’000 

26/27 
£’000 

27/28 
£’000 

Residential Mainstream Children’s Homes Prudential Borrowing 1,400 - - - - 
Ash Die Back Management Programme Prudential Borrowing 100 100 100 - - 
Video Surveillance System Improvements (CCTV) Prudential Borrowing 285 - - - - 
Veritas Data Discovery Tool Prudential Borrowing 88 - - - - 
Library Equipment Upgrade Prudential Borrowing 200 12 12 12 12 
Provision of Move on Accommodation Prudential Borrowing 3,120 - - - - 
Park Play Area fit for purpose Prudential Borrowing 150 75 - - - 
Rochdale Town Hall – fit out Prudential Borrowing 521 - - - - 
Construction of 14 units of temporary accommodation  Prudential Borrowing 350 - - - - 
Customer Relations Management (CRM) Prudential Borrowing 397 396 333 - - 
Intranet Prudential Borrowing 150 - - - - 
Springfield Park Barn Prudential Borrowing 500 - - - - 
Rochdale Town Hall Restoration Project Phase 3 Prudential Borrowing 4,320 1,680 - - - 
Hopwood Hall College Prudential Borrowing 4,974 - - - - 
Total Prudential Borrowing 16,555 2,263 445 12 12 
Levelling Up Heywood and Middleton Grant 15,349 4,650 - - - 
Levelling Up Rochdale Grant 13,250 6,650 - - - 
Total Grant 28,599 11,300 - - - 
Transformation Invest to Save - - 2,000 - - 
Resurfacing Car Park at RSPCA Centre Invest To Save 210 - - - - 
Total Invest to Save 210 - 2,000 - - 

Resurfacing Car Park at RSPCA Centre Existing Scheme 45 - - - - 
 Existing Scheme 45 - - - - 

Overall Total  45,409 13,563 2,445 12 12 

P
age 113



8 

4.2.7 A number of the new Capital bids will help to manage existing overspends that 
are currently being reported by Service’s, for example the new Children’s homes 
should help manage the cost pressures being faced by Children’s Services for 
expensive placements, and the Moving On accommodation will help reduce 
homelessness costs. 

 
4.2.8 Given the current Government funding uncertainty, Levelling Up Funds may be 

at risk and the proposed schemes may need to reduce. 
 
4.2.9  The current economic crisis is causing inflationary pressures which are 

impacting on the profiling and overall cost of existing schemes. As part of the 
Capital bids process Services were asked to review their capital schemes and 
provide details of the latest revised budget requirement over the 3 year period 
(2022/23 to 2024/25). These inflationary pressure requests would add 
approximately £0.750m to the budget gap. 

 
4.2.10 Should be noted that within the inflationary pressures request there is £2.609m 

of match funded schemes with the Arts Council (ACE). Discussion will progress 
with ACE to understand if additional funding will come forward to address this 
pressure. If this does not occur discussion will need to be held with Members to 
priorities the scheme to reduce this pressure. 

 
4.2.10 A number of mitigating actions took place to reduce the value of inflation 

requested including:- 
 Capping inflation requests at 20% as some schemes had requested a 

25% increase 
 Removal of inflation for Highways Steady State, requesting that the 

service manage within existing budgets. 
 Reduction in the budget ask for Compulsory Purchase Orders. 
 Managing the ICT request through rephasing of existing budgets. 

 
4.2.11  Table 5 below details the revised inflationary pressures identified by Services 

on their existing capital schemes following the mitigating actions identified 
above which have resulted in a revised cost of approximately £0.519m. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 114



9 

 Table 5 Inflationary Pressures 
 
  

Service Capital Scheme 2022/23 
£’000 

2023/24 
£’000 

2024/25 
£’000 

Total 
£’000 

Neighbourhoods Delivering High Value Housing 417 341 - 758 
Neighbourhoods Asset Management Group (AGM) 601 510 510 1,621 
Neighbourhoods N1R Revolving Doors 30 - - 30 
Neighbourhoods Compulsory Purchase Order Programme 572 455 300 1,327 
Neighbourhoods External Commissions 50 - 45 95 
Neighbourhoods Housing Standards Fund 178 172 160 510 
Neighbourhoods ICT Infrastructure Refresh Programme - 17 38 55 
Neighbourhoods New Cemetery Sites - 295 - 295 
Neighbourhoods Upgrade Play Equipment 10 8 8 25 
Neighbourhoods Vehicle Replacement Programme 511 259 86 855 
Neighbourhoods Waste Bin Replacement Programme 61 60 61 181 
Total Neighbourhoods  2,430 2,115 1,207 5,752 
 Town Centres Capital Programme     
Economy Cultural Development Fund Touchstones - 930 999 1,929 
Economy Heywood Culture Hub Arts Council - 680 - 680 
Economy Town Hall Phase 2 & 3 - 200 - 200 
Economy Town Hall Square - 400 - 400 
Total Economy  - 2,210 999 3,209 
Adult Care Disabled Facilities Grant - - 800 800 
Total Adult Care  - - 800 800 
Overall Inflationary Pressures  2,430 4,325 3,006 9,761 

 

P
age 115



10 

4.2.12 Given the current economic climate and Government funding uncertainty the 
following options have been considered for the funding of the new Capital 
schemes and the inflationary pressures identified. The options have been split 
into temporary and ongoing funding. 

 
 Temporary funding options 

 Slippage from existing schemes 
 Rephase budget from future year’s 

 
           Ongoing funding options 

 Capital Receipts 
 External Grants 
 Contribution from Revenue / Reserves 
 Use of existing Investment Fund  

 
4.2.13 To mitigate the increased cost of the new capital bids and inflationary pressures 

£5m Capital Receipts and £5m of Reserves will be used to fund Capital 
Schemes in 2023/24 to reduce the ongoing cost of borrowing repayments. This 
will reduce the annual revenue cost by circa £1.1m per annum. 

 
4.2.14 A transfer of £2m from the existing Capital Investment fund budget will be made 

to help fund new capital bids for 2023/24. This will reduce the annual revenue 
cost by circa £0.2m per annum. 

 
 
4.2.15 Table 6 below provides details of the borrowing costs for borrowing for the new 

capital bids and the inflationary pressure and the mitigating actions to reduce 
the total cost of borrowing. 

 
Table 6 Debt repayment costs and mitigating actions 
 

  £'000 Comments 
Cost of Inflationary Pressures 750 Inflationary Pressure requests (22/23 

and 23/24) 
Changes to inflation requests    
Change from 25% to 20% 
increases 

(38) Inflation increase capped at 20% - 
affects multiple bids 

Removal of Steady State (69) Request for additional inflation 
removed, programme to be managed 
within budget 

Compulsory Purchase Order 
Programme 

(110) Reallocation of requests over the 
years 

ICT Infrastructure Refresh 
Programme 

(14) Budget to be brought forward from 
2023/24  

Net Cost of Inflation 519  
Cost of new borrowing 1,261 New Capital bids 23/24 
Total Debt Repayment Costs 1,780   
Mitigating Actions 

 
  

Use of £5m Capital Receipts (566)   
Use of Revenue/ Reserves 
contribution £5m 

(566)   

Page 116



11 

  £'000 Comments 
Use of £2m Investment Fund (227)   
Invest to Save - RSPCA Car park (18) Will be funded through increased car 

parking income 
Total of Mitigating Actions (1,377)   
Revised Total Debt Repayment 
Costs 

403   

 
4.2.16As above the revised cost of borrowing is an annual debt repayment of     

£0.403m. With £0.090m of revenue running costs included within the new bids 
would add a total of £0.493m to the budget gap. The budget gap for 2023/24 is 
currently forecast to be circa £5.28m before this. 

 
4.2.17 If the current Capital Programme is approved by Cabinet for consultation on 

22nd November 2022 this will increase the budget gap by £0.493m. The 
consultation period will be used to try to mitigate the impact of this before full 
approval at Budget Council on 22nd February 2023. 

 
4.2.18  Along with the Council’s current priorities, the proposed Capital Programme 

has been developed for 2023/24 to 2027/28, taking into consideration the 
available resources. 

 
4.2.19 The approach for setting the 2023/24 capital budget has followed the steps 

below: 
 Initial budget as provisionally approved at Budget Council on 22nd February 

2022. 
 Review of current capital programme as described at 4.1. 
 Consideration of new schemes in the current financial climate. 
 Review sessions with, Director of Economy and the Assistant Directors 

within the Neighbourhoods Directorate, followed by approval to progress the 
proposed programme by the Council’s Leadership Team. 

 
4.2.20 Appendix 1 details the proposed Capital Programme for 2023/24 and 

provisional Capital Programmes for 2024/25 to 2027/28 including the rephasing 
detailed in section 4.1.  Appendix 2 detailed the rephasing of schemes as 
approved in the Quarter 1 Finance Update, plus those rephased as part of the 
Quarter 2 Finance Update which being reported to Cabinet on 22nd November. 
 

4.2.21 Table 7 shows the total proposed Capital expenditure for 2023/24 to 2027/28 
summarised by Directorate and the funding source. With Table 8 summarising 
the establishment of the programme from Council in February 2022. 

 
Table 7 Summary of Capital Programme and funding source 
 
Directorate 23/24 

£’000 
24/25 
£’000 

25/26 
£’000 

26/27 
£’000 

27/28 
£’000 

Adult Care 4,006 3,787 2,987 2,987 2,987 
Children’s Services 46,589 7,453 7,453 7,453 7,453 
Economy 99,759 45,220 815 717 - 
Neighbourhoods 43,218 15,739 15,399 14,508 14,508 
Public Health 568 576 100 - - 

Page 117



12 

Directorate 23/24 
£’000 

24/25 
£’000 

25/26 
£’000 

26/27 
£’000 

27/28 
£’000 

Resources 2,255 - 4,000 - 1,000 
Total Requirement 196,395 72,775 30,754 25,665 25,948 
Funding Source      
Government Grants 96,272 27,720 10,779 10,779 10,779 
Other Grants 3,794 876 815 717 - 
Contributions 3,348 2,714 2,714 2,714 2,714 
Prudential Borrowing 64,196 20,118 13,035 10,609 11,044 
Prudential Borrowing (Invest to 
Save) 

27,196 21,092 3,156 1,156 1,156 

General Capital Receipts 1,346 100 100 100 100 
Revenue Contribution to Capital 
Outlay (RCCO) 

243 155 155 155 155 

Total Funding 196,395 72,775 30,754 25,665 25,948 
 
 
Table 8 Buildup of Capital Programme 
 
 23/24 

£’000 
24/25 
£’000 

25/26 
£’000 

26/27 
£’000 

27/28 
£’000 

Programme Budget Council 
February 2022 

89,006 57,138 28,309 25,653 - 

Programme extension to 27/28 - - - - 25,948 
In-Year Budget Adjustments (4,445) (933) - - - 
New Schemes 45,409 13,563 2,445 12 12 
Inflationary Pressures 6,727 3,007    
Rephasing 59,763 - - - - 
Proposed Programme 196,395 72,775 30,754 25,665 25,948 

 

4.2.19 The Capital schemes listed in appendix 1 are categorised as follows: 
 Annual Allocation – These schemes receive annual allocations either as a 

result of external funding, or because the capital investment is essential for 
the Council to maintain current service delivery or to meet statutory 
responsibilities. 

 Scheme started in previous years – These schemes are multi-year schemes 
that commenced prior to 20223/24. 

 New Bid – These are new schemes or schemes requiring additional funding 
for the 2023/24 capital programme or future years. 

 
4.2.20 The 2023/24 Capital Programme includes Schemes totaling £67.4m to be 

funded from Prudential Borrowing, £19.8m of which are new additions to the 
programme as detailed in Table 4 and £6.8m of which is inflationary pressures 
as detailed in Table 5. 

 
4.2.21 A small number of the new capital schemes have ongoing revenue running   

costs totaling £0.090m. 
 

Page 118



13 

4.2.22 The next steps as part of the consultation on the Capital Programme will be to              
hold challenge sessions with Member’s and Director’s, Assistant Directors and 
Heads of Service. The aim of these sessions will be to. 

 
• Challenge new bids/ inflationary pressures that are not supporting service 

delivery or intended to reduce service costs.  
 

•  Review existing capital programme  
o Are we able to stop, or pause planned capital schemes? 
o Can annual allocations be slowed down/ pushed back/ reduced? 
o Capital Budget Challenge session to take place 

 
  
4.3     Prudential Borrowing 
 
4.3.1 Table 7 highlights the funding streams for the programme, the majority are 

funded from prudential borrowing including Invest to Save Schemes (£53.8m).  
The borrowing classed as Invest to Save are included within the MTFS and 
longer term financial sustainability calculations as having income / budget 
reductions to offset the borrowing costs. The repayment of the main borrowing 
is added to the annual budget requirements. If invest to save schemes do not 
achieve the offset, the prudential borrowing costs are added to the budget 
requirement in the MTFS. 

4.3.2 Any borrowing which the Council undertakes is governed by the Treasury 
Management Strategy (TMS), which sets out an Authorised Limit and 
Operational Boundary to place a ceiling on overall borrowing. However, it 
should be noted that, these limits are calculated based upon the value of the 
approved capital programme, therefore if the level of the Capital Programme 
increases the upper value to which the Council can borrow increases. In light 
of proposed investments / increasing capital expenditure detailed in this report, 
the Council needs to consider additional limits for the level of borrowing it feels 
is acceptable, such as the percentage of available resources that are committed 
to debt repayment and therefore are not available for the delivery of services. 
This debt exposure limit would have to include schemes classified as invest to 
save which in theory have the ability to repay their own debt charges as 
mentioned above, as this allows us to understand the worst case scenario if the 
schemes do not achieve. 

4.3.4 The operational boundary is set at £569m and the authorised limit for borrowing 
at £731m in the TMS for 2022/23.  The operational boundary is lower than the 
authorised limit to allow for unforeseen borrowing.  The current level of 
borrowing is £298m which is significantly lower than the operational limit.  As 
stated above though the limits increase as the programme increases. 

4.3.5 An alternative threshold for the operational boundary / borrowing limit could be 
calculated as a percentage of net revenue expenditure.  This ratio is shown with 
the TMS as the affordability indicator and is calculated net of invest to save 
schemes.  The indicator for 2023/24 is 9.35%.  If invest to save schemes are 

Page 119



14 

included as per the current programme and revenue budget the indicator 
increases to 11.90%.   

4.3.6 There is no external guidance on what the affordability indicator should be and 
CIFPA as the professional body have been questioned as to if there should be 
a range in which the affordability indicator should sit for a local authority i.e. 10 
– 15% but this has not been confirmed and remains with each individual 
authority to decide. 

4.3.7 The risks of committing to high levels of borrowing for the Council include:- 

 Having long term commitments to repay which reduce the level of funds to 
deliver services 

 Changing interest rates 
 Need to refinance in future years 

4.4 Alternatives Considered 

4.4.1 The Council is legally obliged to set a balanced budget. The budget setting 
process is complex and must be undertaken in a planned way. It is equally 
important that assumptions used in the preparation of the budget are agreed, 
reasonable and consistently applied by all services. 

4.4.2 A number of alternative elements of the Capital Programme were considered 
in the development of the programme, the one which is presented is of the most 
strategic/community value and is aligned with the Council’s priorities and 
therefore forms the basis for consultation, on the understanding that any 
alternatives offered during that process will be considered. 

 
Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5.1 Costs and Budget Summary 

5.1.1 As the cost of the proposed Capital programme is greater than the capital 
receipts and external funding available, borrowing is required to fund the 
difference. This has an impact on the Council’s Revenue budget. This is not 
currently reflected within the budget estimates and the gap in the Revenue 
Budget 2023/24 to 2025/26 Cabinet papers as a review is taking place to 
mitigate the additional costs. 

5.1.2 Borrowing requires repayment of both the principle sum borrowed and 
associated interest over a given number of years. The total budgeted cost of 
borrowing for 2023/24 is £24.9m, increasing to £26.0m in 2024/25. 

5.1.3 The Capital budget is funded from a number of sources: borrowing, capital 
receipts, revenue contribution to capital outlay and external 
funding/contributions. Borrowing has an implication for the Council’s revenue 
budget as the Council has to make provision to repay the cost of borrowing. 

Page 120



15 

5.1.4 The Council is able to borrow resources for capital schemes. The revenue 
implications of this option are that for every £1m of capital expenditure there is 
revenue costs to repay borrowing. Table 7 below provides details of the 
revenue costs to repay borrowing over different time scales.  

Years Annual Costs 
£’000 

6 203 
8 161 

11 127 
20 86 
40 61 

 
 

Risk and Policy Implications 

 
6.1 Risk Implications  

6.1.1 There are a number of areas of the Council’s Capital Programme where risks 
to the projections contained in this report have been identified. The most 
significant of these are detailed below. 

6.1.2 By committing to capital spend funded via Prudential Borrowing the Local 
Authority is committing to the long term revenue costs of interest and capital 
repayments, the funding for which must be reflected in the revenue budget and 
MTFS. 

6.1.3 The forecast cost implications are based on the current estimated PWLB 
borrowing rates, however these are subject to change and may increase which 
would lead to additional revenue costs. The current cost of borrowing is higher 
than budgeted due to the current economic uncertainty, however this is 
expected to be short term. The Council will look to delay borrowing decisions 
until interest rates have reduced to mitigate this risk. 

 
6.1.4 The Invest to Save Schemes included in the Programme assume that the cost 

of borrowing will be covered by income generation or savings, however this is 
not guaranteed and needs to be monitored carefully. 

 
6.1.5 Externally funded schemes cannot start until confirmation of the required 

funding has been received. This is a particular risk where the scheme is reliant 
on external funding with the provisional budget being based on forecast income. 
Should the level of income not be received, the level of expenditure would need 
to be considered to allow the scheme to progress with a reduced budget. 

 
6.1.6 The economic climate due to the current cost of living crisis and war in Ukraine 

are having an impact on inflation and therefore causing an increase in the price 

Page 121



16 

of building materials. This is impacting on the delivery of schemes within the 
current programme within the approved budget. 

 
6.1.7 Health and Safety – the Capital Programme aims to mitigate any risks 

surrounding health and safety by ensuring Council assets are in a good state 
of repair. 

 
6.1.8 Climate Emergency and Sustainability – within the Capital Programme there 

are a number of schemes dedicated to Climate Emergency and Sustainability. 
 Climate Emergency – Carbon Neutral 
 GM Air Quality Monitoring 

6.2 Legal Implications 

6.2.1 The Council is legally obliged to set a balanced Revenue Budget. The revenue 
impact of the Capital Programme is included within the overall Revenue Budget 
for 2023/24 to 2025/26. 

 

Consultation 

 
7.1 The proposed Capital Programme for 2023/24 will be brought forward for 

consultation with Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 7th December 
2022. Consultation will also be undertaken with Township Committees. 
Following consultation the Capital Programme 2023/24 to 2027/28 will be 
recommended by Cabinet on 14th February 2023 for approval at Budget Council 
on 22nd February 2023. 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 
8. Individual bid requests Reports Floor 2, Number 1 Riverside 

Email on request 

 

For Further Information Contact: Samantha Smith, Samantha.Smith@rochdale.gov.uk  

Tel : 01706 924198 

 

Page 122

mailto:Samantha.Smith@rochdale.gov.uk


Appendix 1 Capital Programme 2023/24 to 2027/28

DIRECTORATE SCHEME 
NAME 

SCHEME DESCRIPTION FUNDING SOURCE 2023/24 
£’000 

2024/25 
£’000 

2025/26 
£’000 

2026/27 
£’000 

2027/28 
£’000 

Adult Care Disabled 
Facilities 
Grant 

The legislative framework 
governing DFGs is provided 
by the 'Housing Grants, 
Construction and 
Regeneration Act 1996'. 
Since 1990, local authorities 
have been under a statutory 
duty to provide grant aid to 
disabled people for a range 
of adaptations in their 
homes. 

External Grant / Contribution      4,006       3,787       2,987       2,987       2,987  

TOTAL    4,006 3,787 2,987 2,987 2,987 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 123



Appendix 1 Capital Programme 2023/24 to 2027/28

DIRECTORATE SCHEME NAME SCHEME DESCRIPTION FUNDING SOURCE 2023/24 
£’000 

2024/25 
£’000 

2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 

Children's Services Devolved Formula 
Capital 

Schools will develop and 
commission individual schemes 
to improve condition and 
suitability within their buildings 
with guidance and approval 
from the Council. 
Academy conversions may 
reduce the Department for 
Education allocation in future 
years. 

External Grant / 
Contribution 

445 445 445 445 445 

Children's Services New Place 
Planning 

Provision of additional school 
places to meet statutory duty 
through a programme of works 
combining internal remodelling, 
new build or demountable 
classroom units.  
Future years funding allocations 
determined by the Department 
for Education. Estimated figures 
and may change. 

External Grant / 
Contribution 

36,872 5,200 5,200 5,200 5,200 

Children's Services Schools Capital 
Condition 
Programme 

Development of a programme 
of works to resolve major 
condition and improvement 
issues in school buildings in line 
with the Local Authority's Asset 
Management Strategy and Local 
Policy Statement. 
Academy conversions may 
reduce the Department for 
Education allocation in future 
years. 

External Grant / 
Contribution 

2,808 1,808 1,808 1,808 1,808 

P
age 124



Appendix 1 Capital Programme 2023/24 to 2027/28

DIRECTORATE SCHEME NAME SCHEME DESCRIPTION FUNDING SOURCE 2023/24 
£’000 

2024/25 
£’000 

2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 

Children's Services CWD Residential 
House 

Costing the purchase of a house 
that would provide a 3 -4 bed 
children's home for young 
people with complex needs to 
achieve cost savings. Will 
include examination of whether 
the purchase of such a building 
would, along with the revenue 
costs, reduce the cost of current 
and future placements in the 
context of growing demand. 

External Grant / 
Contribution 

1,064 - - - - 

Children's Services High Needs 
Provision Capital 
Allocation 

The High Needs Provision 
Capital Allocations (HNPCA) to 
support local authorities to  
deliver new places and improve 
existing provision for children 
and young people with  
Special Educational Needs and 
Disabilities (SEND), particularly 
those with more complex needs, 
and for those pupils that require  
alternative provision, which we 
collectively refer to as ‘high 
needs’ provision. 

External Grant / 
Contribution 

4,000 - - - - 

Children's Services Residential 
Mainstream 
Children's Homes 

The scheme is looking to 
provide two small Children’s 
Homes within the Borough of 
Rochdale to widen the offer of 
internal provision and to 
increase the flexibility for 
placement panel to better place 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

1,400 
    

P
age 125



Appendix 1 Capital Programme 2023/24 to 2027/28

DIRECTORATE SCHEME NAME SCHEME DESCRIPTION FUNDING SOURCE 2023/24 
£’000 

2024/25 
£’000 

2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 

children. This would be, two bed 
provision for each home. It is 
becoming increasingly difficult 
to find good external provision 
and it’s also becoming more and 
more expensive. 

TOTAL    46,589 7,453 7,453 7,453 7,453 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 126



Appendix 1 Capital Programme 2023/24 to 2027/28

DIRECTORATE SCHEME NAME SCHEME DETAIL FUNDING 
SOURCE 

2023/24 
£’000 

2024/25 
£’000 

2025/26 
£’000 

2026/27 
£’000 

2027/28 
£’000 

Economy Rochdale & Littleborough 
Flood Relief Scheme 

The River Roch catchment is the 
main river network in Rochdale 
Borough and is vulnerable to 
extensive flood risks affecting 
communities, businesses, town 
centres and infrastructure 
including power, rail and roads. 
The Environment Agency have 
identified the River Roch 
catchment as one of their regional 
priorities for their capital 
investment programme and 
propose a series of flood storage 
areas and improved defences to 
reduce the risk of serious flooding 
for over 1000 homes and 
businesses. 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

4,596               -                  -                  -                   
-    

Economy Milnrow town 
centre/Butterworth Hall 
Brook flood risk 
management 

Working with the Environment 
Agency and United Utilities to 
identify and develop a Milnrow 
Drainage Strategy with solutions to 
reduce flood risk from surface 
water in Milnrow town centre and 
from Butterworth Hall Brook which 
affects property between Water 
Street and Dale Street. Proposals 
for Butterworth Hall Brook will 
include a future proposal for Flood 
Defence Grant in Aid working with 
the Environment Agency. 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

100                           -                  -                  -                   
-    

P
age 127



Appendix 1 Capital Programme 2023/24 to 2027/28

DIRECTORATE SCHEME NAME SCHEME DETAIL FUNDING 
SOURCE 

2023/24 
£’000 

2024/25 
£’000 

2025/26 
£’000 

2026/27 
£’000 

2027/28 
£’000 

Invest to 
Save 

550                           -                  -                  -                   
-    

Economy Solar Farm To provide match funding for an 
externally funded project to 
construct an approved solar farm 
with associated infrastructure on 
Council owned land at Chamber 
House Farm, Heywood 

External 
Grant / 
Contribution 

450                           -                  -                  -                   
-    

Economy Rail Corridor Strategy To support the delivery of physical 
regeneration projects around the 
Borough's 5 existing railway 
stations such as new housing and 
commercial space, park and ride, 
highway and public realm work as 
well as support feasibility work to 
develop a Masterplan and new 
station at Slattocks.   

Prudential 
Borrowing 

904             2,000                        -                  -                   
-    

Economy Drake Street - Phases II & III This project aims to work with 
businesses and property owners to 
restructure the mix of uses, 
improve infrastructure and 
connectivity, increase footfall and 
promote independent retail and 
increased town centre living in the 
area. 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

50               -                  -                  -                   
-    

Economy Upperbanks The Upperbanks scheme is a key 
regeneration priority for the 
Council and is an important 
component of the on-going 
regeneration of Rochdale town 
centre. The development will 
provide two new apartment blocks 
providing 242 high quality 

Invest to 
Save 

4,842               -                  -                  -                   
-    

P
age 128



Appendix 1 Capital Programme 2023/24 to 2027/28

DIRECTORATE SCHEME NAME SCHEME DETAIL FUNDING 
SOURCE 

2023/24 
£’000 

2024/25 
£’000 

2025/26 
£’000 

2026/27 
£’000 

2027/28 
£’000 

apartments for rent, together with 
a 146 bed Hampton by Hilton 
hotel.  

Economy Rochdale Town Hall 
restoration (phase 2) 

Town Hall (phase 2) is the part 
National Lottery Heritage Fund 
(NLHF) - an £8.95m funded project 
to restore the building. There is 
now an additional requirement 
needed to support the following: 
- top up budget due to previous 
expenditure used for essential 
maintenance and improvements  
- NLHF round 1 approval was 
predicated upon RBC underwriting 
£3m of external funding yet to be 
secured.  
- cover for potential inflationary 
costs 
- additional RDA Project 
Management, due diligence costs, 
and fees for specialist advice  

Prudential 
Borrowing 

1,225               -                  -                  -                   
-    

Economy Rochdale Town Hall Square - 
phase 2 

Further works within Rochdale 
Town Hall Square 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

3,642               -                  -                  -                   
-    

Economy East Lancashire Railway Project is to support ELR extension 
into Castleton to connect direct rail 
access to mainline giving 
accessibility to visitors from across 
northern England together with 
investment at Heywood station.  
The ELR mainline project will be a 
landmark heritage attraction for 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

258               -                  -                  -                   
-    

P
age 129



Appendix 1 Capital Programme 2023/24 to 2027/28

DIRECTORATE SCHEME NAME SCHEME DETAIL FUNDING 
SOURCE 

2023/24 
£’000 

2024/25 
£’000 

2025/26 
£’000 

2026/27 
£’000 

2027/28 
£’000 

the Borough with significant 
physical and economic benefits for 
regeneration of Castleton District 
centre. 

Economy Rochdale Town Centre 3 
year strategy 

Funding will support the delivery of 
interventions identified in the 
strategy including physical projects 
(property improvements & public 
realm works), economic initiatives 
to complement the current 
business rates reduction scheme, 
the development of strategies and 
interventions for upper Yorkshire 
Street and Water Street, and 
promoting development 
opportunities. 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

214                           -                  -                  -                   
-    

Economy Town Centre East Feasibility This scheme will support capital 
investment in the Rochdale 
Riverside (Phase1) retail and 
leisure scheme 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

371               -                  -                  -                   
-    

Economy Property Growth Fund  Acquisition and development of 
property with the primary aims of 
strategic regeneration, business 
growth, job creation and enhancing 
social or economic value, with 
secondary aims of portfolio 
diversification and the 
achievement of a financial return in 
order to cover the costs of 
investment and provide for whole-
life asset maintenance costs and 

Invest to 
Save 

15,385 20,000               -                  -                   
-    

P
age 130



Appendix 1 Capital Programme 2023/24 to 2027/28

DIRECTORATE SCHEME NAME SCHEME DETAIL FUNDING 
SOURCE 

2023/24 
£’000 

2024/25 
£’000 

2025/26 
£’000 

2026/27 
£’000 

2027/28 
£’000 

future fluctuations in property 
investment income 

Economy Asset Development Fund To create jobs and build the local 
economy by buying 
properties/developing properties. 

Capital 
Receipts 

1,246               -                  -                  -                   
-    

Economy Rochdale Flood innovation 
programme 

The project will deliver a 
neighbourhood flood and climate 
resilience project focused on 
Littleborough and Wardleworth. It 
will deliver complementary 
activities to the Environment 
Agency Flood Alleviation Project 
for the River Roch through 
reducing and improving 
management of residual flood risks 
from fluvial and surface water 
sources to homes, businesses and 
community assets. The project is 
funded as part of a national 
programme of 25 projects included 
in the Environment Agency/Defra 
Flood and Coastal Resilience and 
Innovation Programme.  

External 
Grant / 
Contribution 

3,443 876 815 717                
-    

Economy Industrial Units - Capital 
Programme 

To carry out urgent works across 
the Council’s industrial estates (118 
units across 10 estates) to bring 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

2,049 812               -                  -                   
-    

P
age 131



Appendix 1 Capital Programme 2023/24 to 2027/28

DIRECTORATE SCHEME NAME SCHEME DETAIL FUNDING 
SOURCE 

2023/24 
£’000 

2024/25 
£’000 

2025/26 
£’000 

2026/27 
£’000 

2027/28 
£’000 

the units to a compliant and 
lettable standard.  

Economy Towns Fund - New Homes 
Central Rochdale 

Land acquisition and remediation 
prior to new house building by RBH 
& private developers 

External 
Grant / 
Contribution 

360               -                  -                   
-    

               
-    

Economy Towns Fund - Heritage Skills 
Studio 

Development of training facility as 
part of the Town Hall restoration 

External 
Grant / 
Contribution 

180             137                          -                  -                   
-    

Economy Towns Fund - AMPI New Training and research facility 
to be located at Kingsway Business 
park 

External 
Grant / 
Contribution 

10,191        3,697                       -                  -                   
-    

Economy Towns Fund - Kingsway Delivery of the units will 
complement the adjacent Logic at 
Kingsway scheme, completed in 
2019, which delivered small units 
within Kingsway Business Park as 
well as strengthening the offering 
of the strategic employment site 
itself. The 420 acre Kingsway 
Business Park is the key 
employment site for the Borough 
and neighbouring areas. With 70% 
of the workforce living within 
Rochdale and generating a GVA of 
over £30m per annum, the 
Business Park is key to unlocking 
the full potential of Rochdale 

External 
Grant / 
Contribution 

500               -                  -                  -                   
-    

P
age 132



Appendix 1 Capital Programme 2023/24 to 2027/28

DIRECTORATE SCHEME NAME SCHEME DETAIL FUNDING 
SOURCE 

2023/24 
£’000 

2024/25 
£’000 

2025/26 
£’000 

2026/27 
£’000 

2027/28 
£’000 

External 
Grant / 
Contribution 

1,969          1,480                        -                  -                   
-    

Prudential 
Borrowing 

930             999                          -                  -                   
-    

Economy Cultural Development Fund  The project will deliver 3 priorities 
from Rochdale's cultural strategy: 
1. Establish a town-centre Cultural 
Improvement District incorporating 
existing assets, new spaces and 
improved public realm. Invest in 
signage, branding, paving, lighting, 
art, programming and marketing to 
improve attraction, wayfinding and 
experience, knit together 
development zones and make new 
connections across the town 
through culture. 
2. Rebrand, reconfigure and 
reimagine Touchstones to create a 
flagship arts and heritage hub at 
the heart of the Creative 
Improvement District with new 
flexible spaces for production, 
enterprise, innovation, education, 
events, collections, exhibitions and 
performances. 
3. Pilot an innovative Cultural 
Cooperative building on existing 
networks, best practice models and 
research. 

Invest to 
Save 

700             700                          -                  -                   
-    

Economy Heywood Cultural Hub This project will deliver a key 
priority from Rochdale Borough’s 
Creative and Cultural Asset 

External 
Grant / 
Contribution 

557             327                          -                  -                   
-    

P
age 133



Appendix 1 Capital Programme 2023/24 to 2027/28

DIRECTORATE SCHEME NAME SCHEME DETAIL FUNDING 
SOURCE 

2023/24 
£’000 

2024/25 
£’000 

2025/26 
£’000 

2026/27 
£’000 

2027/28 
£’000 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

680                           -                  -                  -                   
-    

Strategy to invest and revitalise 
Heywood Civic Centre, a much-
loved multi-purpose cultural hub at 
the heart of its community. We’ll 
invest in physical & digital 
infrastructure, inside & out, to 
improve building access, 
experience, efficiency & 
environmental impact. We’ll create 
space to co-locate new inclusive 
community arts delivery and 
participation alongside existing 
event programming that is 
ambitious & locally relevant. 

Invest to 
Save 

453             212                         -                  -                   
-    

Economy Rochdale Town Centre 
Slopes Restoration 

The Slopes between the Town Hall 
and the Parish Church form the 
core to the historic town centre. 
These Slopes have been neglected 
and vandalised for decades and are 
now in a state of extreme disrepair. 
Slopes will be improved, restored 
and made safe. 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

1,500                        -                  -                  -    - 

Economy Turf Hill Flood Risk 
Management 

 A section of Turf Hill Road and 
adjacent streets has experienced 
ongoing internal flooding to a 
number of properties from surface 
water flooding. Proposals have 
been developed with United 
Utilities and the Environment 
Agency to reduce flood risks 
through an enhanced surface 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

250                          -                  -                  -    - 

P
age 134



Appendix 1 Capital Programme 2023/24 to 2027/28

DIRECTORATE SCHEME NAME SCHEME DETAIL FUNDING 
SOURCE 

2023/24 
£’000 

2024/25 
£’000 

2025/26 
£’000 

2026/27 
£’000 

2027/28 
£’000 

water drainage scheme for the 
area. 

Economy Definitive Right of Way 
Improvement Programme 

This co-funds the Environmental 
Gateway scheme which delivers 
the natural flood management 
project. A definitive map is a legal 
requirement to reflect the latest 
Rights of Way and bridleways in 
the Borough. 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

46                            -                  -                  -    - 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

945            1,000                      -                  -    - Economy Central Retail Park 
Residential 

Design and enabling works on key 
residential site identified in the Rail 
Corridor strategy and Rochdale 
Station Gateway masterplan External 

Grant / 
Contribution 

2,400          -  -  -  -  

Economy Stakehill Industrial Estates This funding is to support the 
ongoing work for the proposed 
Stakehill Business Improvement 
District (BID). This would be as 
match funding for implementation 
of physical schemes as determined 
by the BID Steering Group.  

Prudential 
Borrowing 

      34         - - - - 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

158             - - - - Economy Fire Station Museum Ground 
and First Floors 

Project to create a co-working 
office space in the 1st floor of the 
old fire station with excellent 
transport and digital connectivity.  

External 
Grant / 
Contribution 

87               - - - - 

Economy Tonge Hall Emergency Works Tonge Hall is a grade 2 listed manor 
house in Middleton.  Emergency 

RCCO 18               - - - - 

P
age 135



Appendix 1 Capital Programme 2023/24 to 2027/28

DIRECTORATE SCHEME NAME SCHEME DETAIL FUNDING 
SOURCE 

2023/24 
£’000 

2024/25 
£’000 

2025/26 
£’000 

2026/27 
£’000 

2027/28 
£’000 

works are required on the building 
as a result of disrepair.  

Economy Birch Fountain & Horse 
Trough Middleton 

Repair and relocation of the listed 
Edgar Wood Horse Trough in Birch 
Village.  

Prudential 
Borrowing 

12               - - - - 

Economy Heywood/Middleton/ 
Littleborough - Town Centre 

 Development of the Town Centre 
Masterplans  

RCCO 71               - - - - 

Economy East Lancashire Railway - 
Heywood 

Project is to support ELR extension 
into Castleton to connect direct rail 
access to mainline giving 
accessibility to visitors from across 
northern England together with 
investment at Heywood station.  
The ELR mainline project will be a 
landmark heritage attraction for 
the Borough with significant 
physical and economic benefits for 
regeneration of Castleton District 
centre. 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

           
258  

              -                  -                  -                   
-    

Economy Springfield Park Barn Springfield Park Barn is occupied by 
a number of community uses, 
including Marland Golf, generating 
a nominal income. The property is 
in a state of disrepair with part of 
the building closed on health and 
safety grounds. A condition survey 
has identified works required 
amounting to £2.25m. Due to rising 
costs it is anticipated this amount 
may increase. The funding will 
support bringing the building back 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

           
500  

              -                  -                  -                   
-    

P
age 136



Appendix 1 Capital Programme 2023/24 to 2027/28

DIRECTORATE SCHEME NAME SCHEME DETAIL FUNDING 
SOURCE 

2023/24 
£’000 

2024/25 
£’000 

2025/26 
£’000 

2026/27 
£’000 

2027/28 
£’000 

into good repair with a proposal to 
seek a mix of community and 
commercial uses for the building, 
generating a future income for the 
Council.   

Economy Rochdale Town Hall 
Restoration Project Phase 3 

We are requesting funds to 
complete the restoration of the 
Town Hall. This last phase includes 
all floors of the west wing of the 
building to provide civic and 
ceremonial spaces such as the 
Council Chamber and Mayor's 
Parlour, disabled access and 
changing places facility, back of 
house offices and storage and the 
restoration of the ground floor. 
The work includes specialist 
conservation cleaning and repair 
work, full MEP replacement, repair 
of the organ, creation of a balcony 
over the Porte Cochere and Town 
Hall car park and EV infrastructure 
and ASHP facility. 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

4,320          1,680                        -                  -                   
-    

Economy Hopwood Hall College Hopwood Hall College and 
University Centre is expanding and 
developing its Higher Education 
offer with a focus on courses that 
lead to careers.  The College and 
Council have a joint ambition to 
increase participation rates in 
higher level qualifications that 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

4,974                        -                  -                  -                   
-    

P
age 137



Appendix 1 Capital Programme 2023/24 to 2027/28

DIRECTORATE SCHEME NAME SCHEME DETAIL FUNDING 
SOURCE 

2023/24 
£’000 

2024/25 
£’000 

2025/26 
£’000 

2026/27 
£’000 

2027/28 
£’000 

increase employment prospects, 
skills, wages and productivity for 
local businesses.  Department for 
Education (DfE) funding has been 
secured in principle for a 
replacement teaching block for 16 
– 19 years old at the Rochdale 
campus.  The project is to directly 
fund the construction of an 
additional storey to the building to 
accommodate a university centre 
to complement the evening course 
offer, and contribution to wider 
Town Centre regeneration.  The 
project will parallel a new 
development on the Middleton 
campus which has funding and 
under construction  

Economy Levelling Up Heywood & 
Middleton 

Levelling Up Fund bid for £20m  - 
Improvements to Middleton Arena 
and Heywood Civic Centre with 
associated highways and public 
realm improvements 

External 
Grant / 
Contribution 

     
15,349  

4,650                     -                  -                   
-    

Economy Levelling Up Rochdale Levelling Up Fund bid for £20m - 
The redevelopment of Rochdale 
Railway Station concourse and new 
housing development on the 
Central Retail park site. 

External 
Grant / 
Contribution 

      
13,250  

   6,650                     -                  -                   
-    

TOTAL    99,759 45,220 815 817 - 

 

P
age 138



Appendix 1 Capital Programme 2023/24 to 2027/28

DIRECTORATE SCHEME NAME SCHEME DESCRIPTION FUNDING 
SOURCE 

2023/24 
£’000 

2024/25 
£’000 

2025/26 
£’000 

2026/27 
£’000 

2027/28 
£’000 

Neighbourhoods Replacement 
Parks/Street 
Machinery 

The programme is a rolling 
replacement scheme for replacement 
of the Council's 550 plus pieces of 
machinery. The programme aims to 
replace assets when they have 
exceeded the most cost-effective 
period of operation. 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

120 120 120 120 120 

Neighbourhoods Rights Of Way The programme is a rolling scheme 
for carrying out the statutory 
function of maintaining the Council's 
Rights of Way network.  

Revenue 
Contribution to 
Capital Outlay 

80 80 80 80 80 

Neighbourhoods Upgrade Play 
Equipment 

To maintain within legislative 
requirements and guidelines the 
current level of Fixed Play provision 
across the borough. 

Revenue 
Contribution to 
Capital Outlay 

92 83 75 75 75 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

1,401 478 472 964 964 Neighbourhoods Vehicle 
Replacement 
Programme 

To replace existing vehicles at the 
end of their optimum asset life.  
Remove vehicles from the 
programme due to changes in 
requirements and add new 
requirements into acquisition and 
replacement schedule. 
Partially Invest to Save scheme 
relating to decision to purchase fleet 
vehicles rather than hire.   

Invest to Save 1,700 180 1,156 1,156 1,156 

Neighbourhoods Waste Bin 
Replacement 
Programme 

Scheme is to replace wheelie bins 
which are no longer fit for purpose, 
and increased demand for new bins 
as they were first introduced in 1991 
and have an estimated life of 10 
years.  The scheme may also increase 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

419 364 303 303 303 

P
age 139



Appendix 1 Capital Programme 2023/24 to 2027/28

DIRECTORATE SCHEME NAME SCHEME DESCRIPTION FUNDING 
SOURCE 

2023/24 
£’000 

2024/25 
£’000 

2025/26 
£’000 

2026/27 
£’000 

2027/28 
£’000 

recycling rates which in turn would 
reduce the cost of waste disposal. 

Neighbourhoods New Cemetery 
Sites 

Toilet provision in Denehurst Park 
and to cover the cost of replacing the 
cremators at Rochdale Cemetery.  

Prudential 
Borrowing 

1,322 - - - - 

Neighbourhoods Section 106 To facilitate the completion of the 
Hollin, Alkrington, Balderstone Park, 
Stansfield and Robinson's Common 
play schemes 

External Grant / 
Contribution 

434 - - - - 

Neighbourhoods Highways 
Investment 

Continuing investment in Rochdale’s 
Highways Infrastructure, across roads 
and footpaths. 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

1,602 - - - - 

Neighbourhoods Local Transport 
Plan 

To continue the aspirations of the 
Rochdale Highways Capital 
Programme and be more effective in 
identifying and responding to the 
Local Transport Plan shared priorities 
of Safety, Air Quality, Congestion and 
Accessibility.  

External Grant / 
Contribution 

2,914 2,714 2,714 2,714 2,714 

Neighbourhoods Compulsory 
Purchase Order 
Programme 

Acquisition of private land and 
buildings where current owner fails 
to bring asset into use either 
blighting the area or preventing 
further economic/physical 
development. Compulsory Purchase 
Order powers will be used but an 
offer must first be made to purchase 
the asset through negotiation. 
Budget is required to fund the 
purchase price or compensation, 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

3,446 1,300 1,000 1,000 1,000 

P
age 140



Appendix 1 Capital Programme 2023/24 to 2027/28

DIRECTORATE SCHEME NAME SCHEME DESCRIPTION FUNDING 
SOURCE 

2023/24 
£’000 

2024/25 
£’000 

2025/26 
£’000 

2026/27 
£’000 

2027/28 
£’000 

staffing costs, legal and valuation 
fees (external and internal). 
Subsequent disposal of some assets 
will offset some of the costs.   

Neighbourhoods Delivering High 
Value Housing 

The programme aims to deliver over 
1,000 new higher value homes in the 
borough over a ten year period, 
through proactive site assembly and 
promotion of development 
opportunities, using council and 
privately owned land. The aim is to 
facilitate the development of higher 
value housing in order to attract and 
retain economically active 
households. This will generate 
Council Tax, section 106 and New 
Homes Bonus revenue to support 
local services, as well as attracting 
more disposal income to the 
borough, retaining local spend and 
boosting place-based regeneration.  

Prudential 
Borrowing 

2,463                -                    -                   -                 -    

Neighbourhoods Housing 
Standards Fund 

Scheme proposes to improve private 
sector dwellings & environments. 
Interventions include 
-emergency repairs to owner-
occupied properties 
-works in default to private rented 
properties 
-corrective works to houses in 
multiple occupation 
-tenancy/rent bonds for residents 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

1,150 960 800 800 800 

P
age 141



Appendix 1 Capital Programme 2023/24 to 2027/28

DIRECTORATE SCHEME NAME SCHEME DESCRIPTION FUNDING 
SOURCE 

2023/24 
£’000 

2024/25 
£’000 

2025/26 
£’000 

2026/27 
£’000 

2027/28 
£’000 

desperate to access decent 
accommodation unable to access 
social housing 
- bring empty properties and vacant 
land back into use 
- tackle fuel poverty and energy 
efficiency issues in the private 
housing stock    

Neighbourhoods Towns Fund - 
Strategic 
Gateway Sites 

Land remediation of CPO’d sites prior 
to new housing   

External Grant / 
Contribution 

406              - - - - 

Neighbourhoods ICT 
Infrastructure 
Refresh 
Programme 

To refresh, on a rolling programme 
the ICT estate. To remove the need 
for individual Services & Directorates 
to hold funds related to ICT 
equipment. Preventing purchasing of 
non-strategic & inappropriate ICT.  To 
control and make the spend on ICT 
equipment the most efficient and 
cost effective by maintaining a 
relatively small annual amount as 
opposed to large investments every 
7/8 years 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

461 482 444 444 444 

Neighbourhoods ICT Programmes 
(Staff) 

To deliver the Council's ICT projects 
utilising existing ICT staff, to reduce 
the Capital required each year. The 
programmes deliver a variety of 
objectives for each business area and 
are assessed against business cases 
to check that they are in line with 
corporate objectives 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

500 500 500 500 500 

P
age 142



Appendix 1 Capital Programme 2023/24 to 2027/28

DIRECTORATE SCHEME NAME SCHEME DESCRIPTION FUNDING 
SOURCE 

2023/24 
£’000 

2024/25 
£’000 

2025/26 
£’000 

2026/27 
£’000 

2027/28 
£’000 

Neighbourhoods Asset 
Management 
Group  

To adequately maintain the property 
portfolio and ensure that the Council 
comply with any statutory, and 
Health & Safety regulations. The 
scheme also aims to reduce the 
maintenance backlog and improve 
the reduced property holding to 
accommodation standards.  

Prudential 
Borrowing 

2,861 2,260 1,750 1,750 1,750 

Neighbourhoods Your Trust - 
Whole Life 
Costing 

To adequately maintain the Link4Life 
property portfolio and to ensure that 
the Council, as landlord, complies 
with any statutory and health & 
safety regulations. 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

800 800 800 800 800 

Neighbourhoods Burglary 
Reduction 
Scheme 

Implement alley gating schemes and 
gating orders on alleys to reduce the 
number of burglaries and improve 
neighbourhood safety. 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

100 100 100 100 100 

Neighbourhoods Climate 
Emergency - 
Carbon Neutral 

The Council has declared a climate 
emergency and will work towards 
becoming carbon neutral by 2038.  
This investment of £5M over the next 
five years is a clear statement of 
intent that the Council takes this 
matter seriously and is prepared to 
invest in driving initiatives across the 
areas of energy, travel and transport, 
homes, workplaces and public 
buildings, consumption and 
production of resources  and our 
natural environment. 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

2,389 1,000 950 -                    - 

P
age 143



Appendix 1 Capital Programme 2023/24 to 2027/28

DIRECTORATE SCHEME NAME SCHEME DESCRIPTION FUNDING 
SOURCE 

2023/24 
£’000 

2024/25 
£’000 

2025/26 
£’000 

2026/27 
£’000 

2027/28 
£’000 

Neighbourhoods Townships 
Capital 
Programme 

An annual allocation of Capital Funds 
allocated on a pro rata basis and 
agreed by each of the 5 Township 
Committees 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

400 400 400 400 400 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

5,702 2,851 2,851 2,851 2,851 Neighbourhoods Highways 
Steady State 
Fund 

To maintain the current condition, a 
certain amount of funding is required 
each year to achieve “steady state”. 
Steady state is where the network is 
maintained at its current level and 
the amount of highway maintenance 
balances the annual level 
deterioration 

External Grant / 
Contribution 

678 339 339 339 339 

Capital Receipts 100              100 100 100 100 Neighbourhoods Highways Fees To investigate and develop proposals 
linked to the Traffic Calming motion 
including professional fees Prudential 

Borrowing 
50                 45 - - - 

Neighbourhoods GM ONE 
Network 

Following on from GM Full Fibre 
project where new fibre optic cabling 
is laid across GM, GMCA are taking a 
collective approach to procuring and 
running their WAN services through 
building own platform 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

395              - - - - 

Neighbourhoods Whitworth 
Road Rough 
Sleeping 
Accommodation 
Programme 

A scheme to deliver purpose built 
accommodation for the homeless in 
Rochdale. 

External Grant / 
Contribution 

80                 - - - - 

P
age 144



Appendix 1 Capital Programme 2023/24 to 2027/28

DIRECTORATE SCHEME NAME SCHEME DESCRIPTION FUNDING 
SOURCE 

2023/24 
£’000 

2024/25 
£’000 

2025/26 
£’000 

2026/27 
£’000 

2027/28 
£’000 

Neighbourhoods Towns Fund - St 
Mary's Gate 

A Highway improvement scheme 
which addresses the lack of available 
surface crossing points across St 
Mary’s Gate which is a dual 
carriageway road around the Town 
Centre. The scheme is centred on 
providing sustainable accessibility to 
the Town Centre from the residential 
areas on the outskirts of the Town 
Centre as well as Rochdale Infirmary 
by promoting vastly improved 
walking and cycling facilities 

External Grant / 
Contribution 

2,035           - - - - 

Neighbourhoods Hollingworth 
Lake Country 
Park -
Replacement 
WAC 

 A scheme to replace / update the 
existing Water Activities Centre at 
Hollingworth Lake. An important part 
of the overall work on improving the 
facility offer around the Lake in an 
attempt to improve the health and 
wellbeing of the residents of the 
borough. 

Invest to Save 2,816           - - - - 

Neighbourhoods Allotments 
(Manifesto) 

 The Borough of Rochdale currently 
has 524 allotment plots.  The 
Government’s Thorpe Report 
recommended that Councils provide 
15 allotment plots per 1,000 
households. At 94,263 households 
Rochdale BC should have 1,414 plots. 
Environmental Management (EM) 
propose to meet demand by creating 
new allotment sites, which would 
increase provision by 100 new plots 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

50                 - - - - 

P
age 145



Appendix 1 Capital Programme 2023/24 to 2027/28

DIRECTORATE SCHEME NAME SCHEME DESCRIPTION FUNDING 
SOURCE 

2023/24 
£’000 

2024/25 
£’000 

2025/26 
£’000 

2026/27 
£’000 

2027/28 
£’000 

every year for the next five years.   
This would increase the number of 
plots to over 1,000. 

Neighbourhoods Hollingworth 
Lake Country 
Park - suite of 
projects 

 Projects including High Nets, 
improvements to the Cottage and 
Palatine buildings, picnic tables & 
signage and improvements to the car 
parks - all designed to improve the 
facilities around the lake to help 
improve the health and wellbeing of 
the residents of the borough. 
The introduction of a glamping 
facility at the Lake to accompany the 
other facility improvements planned 
at the Lake. 

Invest to Save 495             - - - - 

Neighbourhoods Office 365  Significant programme of work 
which will impact every part of the 
organisation and its 
partners/agencies/suppliers in 
migrating the Council from the old 
existing Microsoft solution to the 
new required solution which will 
ensure Council Services have the 
necessary business tools to perform 
duties and functions within a secure 
and up-to-date IT infrastructure. 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

141              - - - - 

Neighbourhoods Ash Die Back 
Management 
Programme 

Ash dieback is a tree disease that will 
kill over the next ten years 90% all 
Ash Trees. We are therefore 
expecting 1,200 street ash trees to 
die and approximately 5 to 7 times as 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

100              100 100 -  - 

P
age 146



Appendix 1 Capital Programme 2023/24 to 2027/28

DIRECTORATE SCHEME NAME SCHEME DESCRIPTION FUNDING 
SOURCE 

2023/24 
£’000 

2024/25 
£’000 

2025/26 
£’000 

2026/27 
£’000 

2027/28 
£’000 

many in parks and open spaces.  Cost 
to fell and in some cases stump grind 
/ make good pavement, replace  

Invest to Save 210              -  -  -  -  Neighbourhoods Resurfacing Car 
Park at RSPCA 
Centre 

The car park at the new RSPCA centre 
(formerly known as the Visitors 
Centre at Hollingworth Lake Country 
Park) is in a significant state of 
disrepair. Concerns have been 
expressed by the RSPCA as to the 
state of the car park and apart from 
being in a visually poor state of 
repair, the lack of lines between the 
spots means that income isn't being 
maximised on those days when 
visitor numbers are large. There is 
currently no capital budget for the 
upkeep / refurbishment of council car 
parks, so a specific request is being 
made for this particular site.  

Existing Funding 45                 -  -  - - 

Neighbourhoods Video 
Surveillance 
System 
Improvements 

The current Video Surveilance System 
includes some old analogue cameras 
and there is a deficiency of cameras 
in Heywood and Middleton.  Capital 
funding was secured to replec some 
of the cameras in 2022 - 23.  
However, it has become clear that 
additonal investment is needed 
improve the VSS system coverage to 
include additonal crime hot spots and 
developing areas of the borough to 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

285              -  -  -  -  

P
age 147



Appendix 1 Capital Programme 2023/24 to 2027/28

DIRECTORATE SCHEME NAME SCHEME DESCRIPTION FUNDING 
SOURCE 

2023/24 
£’000 

2024/25 
£’000 

2025/26 
£’000 

2026/27 
£’000 

2027/28 
£’000 

improve public safety.  These areas 
include Kirkholt in Middleton, 
resdential developments close to the 
Town Centre.  In addtion to this there 
are infrastructure improvements 
needed.   

Neighbourhoods Veritas Data 
Discovery Tool 

A recent internal audit report on 
Corporate Records Management 
returned an assurance opinion of 
limited. Whilst some of the 
recommendations focused upon 
information governance, other 
recommendations related to the vast 
amount of data that is currently 
stored on shared network drives, in 
folders and files. The majority of this 
data, has no retention schedules 
attached, no data owner assigned 
and has been retained for longer 
than is legally required in accordance 
with GDPR. Due to the high volume 
of data on the network shares (in the 
region  of 60TB) a number of data 
discovery tools have been 
investigated, culminating in a proof 
of concept (POC)  being undertaken 
with a product entitled Data Insight 
provided by Veritas on a sample of 
folders/files. 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

88                 -  -  -  -  

P
age 148



Appendix 1 Capital Programme 2023/24 to 2027/28

DIRECTORATE SCHEME NAME SCHEME DESCRIPTION FUNDING 
SOURCE 

2023/24 
£’000 

2024/25 
£’000 

2025/26 
£’000 

2026/27 
£’000 

2027/28 
£’000 

Neighbourhoods Library 
Equipment 
Upgrade 

Rochdale is proud to maintain 16 
fantastic library branches across the 
borough. Some of the branches are 
very old and still have original 
equipment. This project would 
involve upgrading and replacing 
items such as shelving, display 
equipment and installing study desks 
and areas for use by small businesses 
owners. The use of libraries has 
changed over the years as has the 
reasons people visit. Many now use 
our digital resources, need space to 
study or meet with a health trainer or 
advice professional so we would like 
to reconfigure some branches to 
create the spaces needed. 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

200              12                 12                 12                 12               

Neighbourhoods Provision of 
Move on 
Accommodation 

An opportunity has arisen to acquire 
the Observer Building on Drake 
Street. The building has been largely 
converted in 25 flats and requires 
some finishing. The acquisition and 
retention of the property would 
allow the Council to control the 
occupation of the property, which 
would not be possible if the property 
is privately owned and managed. The 
proposal would meet member 
aspiration to provide affordable 
accommodation and the renaissance 
of Drake Street. The additional 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

3,120           -   - -  -  

P
age 149



Appendix 1 Capital Programme 2023/24 to 2027/28

DIRECTORATE SCHEME NAME SCHEME DESCRIPTION FUNDING 
SOURCE 

2023/24 
£’000 

2024/25 
£’000 

2025/26 
£’000 

2026/27 
£’000 

2027/28 
£’000 

provision would help meet the rising 
demand for one bed 
accommodation. 

Neighbourhoods Customer 
Relations 
Management 
(CRM) 

The current CRM is unsupported and 
is not fully utilised. Recent reports 
from both Socitm and PWC have 
identified the requirement to have a 
robust CRM implemented within the 
Council. A  CRM will initially provide 
the Contact Centre with a single view 
of the customer. It is envisaged that 
any CRM procurement will be 
implemented on a phased basis. 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

397              396              333              -  -  

Neighbourhoods Intranet The current Council Intranet is now 
outdated and requires replacing with 
a more robust offering which reflects 
the current and future requirements 
of the organisation. The current 
platform on which the Intranet 
resides, SharePoint 2013 is 
unsupported from April 2023. The 
current intranet is becoming 
increasingly difficult to develop both 
in terms of functionality and content. 
There is a clear requirement for a 
new Intranet. 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

150              -  -  -  -  

P
age 150



Appendix 1 Capital Programme 2023/24 to 2027/28

DIRECTORATE SCHEME NAME SCHEME DESCRIPTION FUNDING 
SOURCE 

2023/24 
£’000 

2024/25 
£’000 

2025/26 
£’000 

2026/27 
£’000 

2027/28 
£’000 

Neighbourhoods Park Play Areas 
Fit for Purpose 

Multiple parks and open spaces play 
area refurbishment.   
5 play areas (Queen's Park and Argyle 
street in Heywood. Opposite Town 
Hall, Coptrod and Stanney Brook in 
Rochdale) have reached end of 
lifespan and will need most / all 
equipment replacing over the next 
three years on safety grounds.  
Total cost £225k, split £75k p.a over 
three years 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

150              75                -  -  -  

Neighbourhoods Rochdale Town 
Hall - Fit out 

Rochdale Town Hall is undergoing a 
significant restoration project to 
create both a community asset and a 
high-quality venue for functions and 
events. 
The capital funds requested will 
ensure that the final stages of the 
project, primarily the fit out of 
furniture, fittings and equipment, will 
be completed to an appropriate 
standard. In order to ensure the 
operational model is as viable as 
possible, a premium price point is 
targeted and quality finishes will be 
vital in ensuring the product and the 
service provided meets the high 
expectations of premium-paying 
customers.  

Prudential 
Borrowing 

521              -  -  -  -  

P
age 151



Appendix 1 Capital Programme 2023/24 to 2027/28

DIRECTORATE SCHEME NAME SCHEME DESCRIPTION FUNDING 
SOURCE 

2023/24 
£’000 

2024/25 
£’000 

2025/26 
£’000 

2026/27 
£’000 

2027/28 
£’000 

Neighbourhoods Construction of 
14 Units of 
Temp 
Accommodation 

Funding is sought to build 14 units of 
temporary accommodation on 
council-owned land. To be funded 
through private sector borrowing 
supplemented by a DLUHC Rough 
Sleeper Grant the rising costs of 
borrowing, materials and labour have 
put the scheme at risk resulting in a 
grant of between £350k and £800k 
being sought from the council. The 
developer will receive £836k DLUHC 
Rough Sleeper grant if they 
commence works before 31/3/23, 
this grant has been factored in when 
calculating the gap in funding. 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

350             -  -  -  -  

Neighbourhoods Your Trust 
(Link4Life) 
equipment 

On-going update and replacement of 
leisure centre equipment across the 
borough.  

Prudential 
Borrowing 

568 576 100 - - 

TOTAL    43,786 16,315 15,499 14,508 14,508 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 152



Appendix 1 Capital Programme 2023/24 to 2027/28

DIRECTORATE SCHEME NAME SCHEME DESCRIPTION FUNDING SOURCE 2023/24 
£’000 

2024/25 
£’000 

2025/26 
£’000 

2026/27 
£’000 

2027/28 
£’000 

Resources Investment Fund To allow funding of Capital Schemes 
to be brought forward into the 
2023/24 programme and allocation 
of capital funds to urgent scheme 
requests during the financial year 
e.g. sink holes in the roads. Approval 
for spend to be delegated to the 
Chief Finance Officer, and Portfolio 
holder. 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

     2,255             -         2,000             -         1,000  

Resources Transformation The review of Transformation is 
currently underway, with PwC 
leading the productions of PIDs for 
the 7 programmes. Until the PIDS 
are complete we won't really 
understand the full cost of the 
programmes and whilst funding is 
available in the transformation fund, 
we don't know whether it will be 
sufficient. This bid has been 
submitted just in case it isn't and will 
be removed if we do indeed have 
sufficient funds. 

Prudential 
Borrowing / Invest 
to Save 

           -               -         2,000             -               -    

TOTAL    2,255 - 4,000 - 1,000 

P
age 153



                 Appendix 2 
Capital rephasing 2022/23 
 

Scheme 22/23 
Current 
Budget 

Rephasing 22/23 
Revised 
Budget 

 23/24 
Current 
Budget 

Rephasing 23/24 
Revised 
Budget 

New Place Planning 28,041 (18,041) 10,000  10,200 18,041 28,241 
CWD Residential Home 1,114 (1,064) 50  - 1,064 1,064 
High Needs Provision Capital Allocations 4,588 (4,000) 588  - 4,000 4,000 
Investment Fund 2,000 (2,000) -  2,000 2,000 4,000 
New Cemetery Sites 1,571 (1,001) 570  - 1,001 1,001 
Section 106 - Environmental Management 1,206 (433) 773  - 433 433 
HLCP Projects 4,026 (2,816) 1,210  - 2,816 2,816 
Climate Emergency 1,889 (1,389) 500  1,000 1,389 2,389 
Highways Investment Programme - Carriage 
Way 

4,792 (1,320) 3,472  - 1,320 1,320 

Town Centres Capital Programme 50,489 5,733 56,222  17,509 (5,733) 11,776 
Rochdale Flood Innovation Programme 2,886 (2,486) 400  957 2,486 3,443 
Towns Fund 6,953 (5,503) 1,450  8,621 5,503 14,124 
Industrial Property Portfolio 1,704 (1,002) 702  1,047 1,002 2,049 
Property Growth Fund 14,172 (6,000) 8,172  7,191 6,000 13,191 
East Lancashire Railway 308 (258) 50  - 258 258 
Asset Development Fund 2,898 (1,246) 1,652  - 1,246 1,246 
Milnrow TC/Butterworth Hall Brook Flood 100 (100) -  - 100 100 
Turf Hill Flood Risk Management 500 (250) 250  - 250 250 
Slopes Restoration 1,000 (500) 500  1,000 500 1,500 
River Roch Flood Storage 1,346 (96) 1,250  4,500 96 4,596 
Definitive Right Of Way Improvement 
Programme 

51 (46) 5  - 46 46 

Link4Life Capital Project (Your Trust) 1,276 (568) 708  - 568 568 
Total Quarter 1 132,910 (44,386) 88,524  54,025 44,386 98,411 

 

P
age 154



Scheme 22/23 
Current 
Budget 

Rephasing 22/23 
Revised 
Budget 

 23/24 
Current 
Budget 

Rephasing 23/24 
Revised 
Budget 

Disabled Facilities Grant 4,610 (1,019) 3,591  2,987 1,019 4,006 
New Place Planning 10,631 (8,631) 2,000  28,241 8,631 36,872 
Schools Capital Condition Programme 6,062 (1,000) 5,062  1,808 1,000 2,808 
Birch Fountain & Horse Trough Middleton 20 (11) 9  - 11 11 
Rail Corridor Strategy 3,904 (904) 3,000  - 904 904 
Towns Fund 1,450 94 1,544  14,125 (94) 14,031 
Central Retail Park Residential - 900 900  - (900) (900) 
Stakehill Industrial Estate 36 (34) 2  - 34 34 
Town Centres Capital Programme 57,621 (1,160) 56,461  14,025 1,160 15,185 
Tonge Hall 30 (17) 13  - 17 17 
Windows 365 450 (141) 309  - 141 141 
Housing Standards Fund 1,580 (345) 1,235  861 345 1,206 
New Cemetery Sites 570 (26) 544  1,001 26 1,027 
Hollingworth Lake Country Park (HLCP) Projects 1,210 (495) 715  2,816 495 3,311 
Vehicle Replacement Programme 3,408 (608) 2,800  1,723 608 2,331 
Local Transport Plan 3,807 (200) 3,607  2,714 200 2,914 
Allotments 2017-18 Manifesto Funding 133 (50) 83  - 50 50 
Highways Investment Programme – Carriage Ways 3,472 (3,472) -  4,510 3,472 7,982 
Investment Fund - 1,745 1,745  4,000 (1,745) 2,255 
Total Quarter 2 98,994 (15,374) 83,620  78,811 15,374 94,185 

P
age 155



            Report to Cabinet 
 

  

                                                                   

Discretionary Fees & Charges 2023/24 

 
     Executive Summary 

 
 
1.1 Discretionary Fees and Charges are reviewed on an annual basis. At Cabinet 

26th July 2022 a 2% general increase in Discretionary Fees and Charges for 
2023/24 was agreed for planning purposes, subject to exemptions to be agreed. 
 

1.2 After further review it has been agreed to increase the Discretionary Fees and 
Charges to 4%, in order to generate additional income and bring the charges 
more in line with general inflationary increases. 

1.3     This report details the proposed Discretionary Fees and Charges for 2023/24 
as a basis for consultation, and details those charges proposed to be exempt 
from the general 4% increase. 

 
     Recommendations 

 
 
2.1 Cabinet approves the updated Discretionary Fees and Charges for 2023/24, as 

a basis for consultation. 

2.2 Cabinet approves the charges exempt from the general 4% increase, as set  
       out in paragraph 4.3.       

2.3 Cabinet approve the different % increases, as set out in paragraph 4.4. 

 

           Reason for Recommendations 
 

 

3.1 The fees and charges in this report have been proposed by each Directorate, 
taking into account the 4% general uplift in Discretionary Fees and Charges. 

Date of Meeting 22nd November 2022 
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Finance and Corporate 
Report Author Sam Smith 
Public/Private Document Public 

Page 156

Agenda Item 14



3.2     It is recommended not to apply a 4% increase to the fees and charges detailed 
in paragraph 4.3.  

3.3     It is recommended to apply the different % increases to the fees and charges 
detailed in paragraph 4.4. 

 

            Key Points for Consideration 
 

  

4.1 The Authority carries out an annual review of discretionary fees and charges as 
part of the budget setting process. It is a requirement of this process that 
Cabinet agrees an appropriate general level of increase. For the 2023/24 
financial year Cabinet 26th July 2022 approved a general increase of 2%, as a 
basis for consultation. However in light of the rising inflationary increases it has 
been agreed that a general increase of 4% would be more appropriate. 

4.2 In most cases charges have been rounded to the nearest pound. The amended 
proposed fee levels for the 2023/24 financial year, which take into account 
rounding’s, are included in Appendix 1. Where 4% is applied and the increase 
is less than 50p, there will not be an increase in the charge. 

4.3 After consultation with Directorates, it is requested that the 4% increase not 
be applied to the following areas: 

           Taxi Licences – Taxi licensing must operate by law on a cost recovery basis. 
Work is ongoing to develop GM common minimum licensing standards. This 
GM work includes a standardised methodology for fee setting. It is proposed 
to hold the fees until the methodology has been finalised and then a full 
review of Rochdale’s fees will be undertaken in line with the GM standardised 
approach. 

           Food Hygiene Charges – Charges amended to ensure consistency with 
other Greater Manchester authorities  

           Wheeled Bins - Cabinet 31st August 2021 approved that the charge to 
developers would be set at £25. Bins will be supplied free of charge to 
householders 

           Town Hall Meeting Rooms – All charges are suspended until the completion 
of the restoration works. 

           Music Service Charges – Based on a benchmarking exercise, charges are 
set to reflect the competitive private tuition market, and therefore maximise 
potential income streams. 

           Liability Orders – In line with Government guidance, current charges cover 
the cost incurred. A further increase is not recommended. 

Page 157



           Car Boot Sales – Charges held in order to maintain usage levels. 

           Traffic Regulation Orders - Temporary Carnivals, fetes and similar events - 
Charges to non-profit / non-commercial organisations to be held at current 
level.  

           Car Parking – Budget Pressure funding has been provided to the service in 
previous financial years. Increasing the charges is likely to bring further 
financial pressure to the service. 

           Burial Fees & Charges - Maintain competitiveness amongst neighbouring 
authorities as RBC already has some of the highest fees when analysing the 
latest benchmarking (APSE) data. 

           Charities Support Management Charge – Benchmarking data shows that 
Rochdale’s charges are higher than other GM Authorities, so a further 
increase is not recommended. 

           Careline – Careline charges to service users need to remain affordable and         
offer good value for money to encourage elderly and vulnerable people who 
would benefit from the service to choose to buy it. There are options for 
service users to buy Careline type services from the private sector so to 
ensure that charges remain competitive no increase is recommended.  

4.4      After consultation with Directorates, it is requested that the following areas be 
increased by the percentages below:  

           Building Regulation Decision Notice Enquiry - The proposed fee has 
increased from £48 to £55, which is a 14.6% increase. This is due to the cost 
of staff time in dealing with urgent requests and issuing copy certificates for 
customers who wish for this work to be prioritised, so that their sale is not 
unduly effected. 

           Provision of Late Completions Inspections & Issue of Completion 
Certificates - The proposed fee has increased from £197 to £225, which is a 
14.6% increase. This is due to the cost of staff time in dealing with urgent 
requests for late inspections and issuing of certificates, so that the customers 
sale is not unduly effected. 

 Registrars – Attendance at Weddings at Approved Venues -The fees 
should remain at 2% in order to remain competitive with ceremony fees in 
neighbouring districts, and to support local businesses by encouraging 
couples to have their ceremonies at venues within the borough of Rochdale. 

 Planning-Pre Application Consultancy Charge - The proposed fee has 
increased by 5% in order to cover the cost of officer time. 

           Pest Control Fees - The Pest Control fees have been reviewed and 
completely overhauled with the introduction of a new two tier fee structure for 
domestic treatments. Fees are reduced for households who receive Council 

Page 158



Tax Support. Those households not in receipt of CT Support will pay the full 
fee. Commercial rates are set at full cost recovery rates and discounts are not 
offered. See Appendix 1 for the rates. 

4.5 Alternatives Considered 
 
 The alternative is not to review or increase our fees and charges. This would 

potentially reduce the income available to the Council and make it more difficult 
to achieve a balanced budget. 

 

                 Costs and Budget Summary 
 

 
5.1 A full list of all proposed fees and charges for 2023/24 is included in Appendix 

1.  

5.2     Taking into account the exceptions mentioned in 4.3, and other increases in 4.4, 
the proposal to increase charges in line with inflation is forecast to generate a 
further c. £160k contribution per annum towards running costs. 

                 Risk and Policy Implications 
 

 
6.1 Each Directorate has reviewed its charges against relevant legislation to ensure 

that all transactions remain compliant with the relevant statutes governing Local 
Authority activities.  

                Consultation 
 

 
7.1 All Directorates engage in the production of the proposed charges identified 

within this report. The Leadership Team, Cabinet Member for Finance, and the 
opposition Portfolio Holder for Finance have been informed of the proposed 
charges for 2023/24. This report will be submitted to Corporate Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee on 7th December 2022. 

 

               Background Papers                          Place of Inspection 

 

For Further Information Contact: Samantha Smith Samantha.smith@rochdale.gov.uk 
 
Tel : 01706 924198 

Page 159

mailto:Samantha.smith@rochdale.gov.uk


Appendix 1 – Discretionary Fees and Charges 2023/24 

 

Strategic Housing       

Sub-Area Ref Desc 

Current 
Charge 
2022/23 

(£) 

Proposed 
Charge 
2023/24 

(to nearest £) 
Increase 

(£) 
Proposed 

% Increase 
Strategic Housing R0347 Landlord's First Application £926.00 £963.00 £37.00 4.00% 
Strategic Housing R0348 Landlord's Subsequent Application £785.00 £816.00 £31.00 4.00% 
Strategic Housing R0349 Five Yearly Inspection £48.00 £50.00 £2.00 4.00% 

Strategic Housing R0350 Supplement For Inadequate Applications £153.00 £159.00 £6.00 4.00% 

Strategic Housing R0351 Supplement For Initial Refusal Of A Licence £1,018.00 £1,059.00 £41.00 4.00% 
Strategic Housing R0352 Managing Agent Fee £195.00 £203.00 £8.00 4.00% 

Strategic Housing R0353 
Houses In Multiple Occupation Licensing Scheme Fees: 
Supplement For: Variations To A Licence £315.00 £328.00 £13.00 4.00% 

Strategic Housing R2085 
Rented accommodation -service of statutory notices, up to 10 
deficiencies £356.00 £370.00 £14.00 4.00% 

Strategic Housing R2086 Further charge for each subsequent additional  deficiency £12.00 £12.00 £0.00 4.00% 
 

 

 

 

 

P
age 160



Environmental Management       

Sub-Area Ref Desc 

Current 
Charge 
2022/23 

(£) 

Proposed 
Charge 
2023/24 

(to nearest £) 
Increase 

(£) 
Proposed 

% Increase 

Environmental Management R1029 Mini Soccer League (Bowlee) Per Pitch £52.00 £54.00 £2.00 4.00% 

Environmental Management R1030 
Mini Soccer League without accommodation per 
season £147.00 £153.00 £6.00 4.00% 

Environmental Management R1031 Mini Soccer League with accommodation £235.00 £244.00 £9.00 4.00% 

Environmental Management R1032 Rounder's League £1,185.00 £1,232.00 £47.00 4.00% 

Environmental Management R1033 Pitch Letting without changing accommodation £438.00 £456.00 £18.00 4.00% 

Environmental Management R1034 Pitch Letting with changing accommodation £758.00 £788.00 £30.00 4.00% 

Environmental Management R1035 Friendly Letting without changing accommodation  £55.00 £57.00 £2.00 4.00% 

Environmental Management R1036 Friendly Letting with changing accommodation £81.00 £84.00 £3.00 4.00% 

Environmental Management R1078 Mot Tests - Private £50.00 £52.00 £2.00 4.00% 

Environmental Management R1080 Repairs - Private £48.00 £50.00 £2.00 4.00% 

Environmental Management R0905 1100L Wheeled Bin £480.00 £499.00 £19.00 4.00% 

Environmental Management R0906 

240L Wheeled Bin (Cabinet 31st August 2021 
approved that the charge to developers would be 
set at £25.  Bins will be supplied free of charge to 
householders) £25.00 £25.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Environmental Management R0907 360L Wheeled Bin £59.00 £61.00 £2.00 4.00% 

P
age 161



Environmental Management R0908 660L Wheeled Bin £402.00 £418.00 £16.00 4.00% 

Environmental Management R1888 

140L Wheeled Bin (Cabinet 31st August 2021 
approved that the charge to developers would be 
set at £25.  Bins will be supplied free of charge to 
householders) 

£25.00 £25.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Environmental Management R2087 880L Wheeled Bin £420.00 £437.00 £17.00 4.00% 

Environmental Management R0984 Individual Rides £73.00 £76.00 £3.00 4.00% 

Environmental Management R0985 Bouncy Castles £73.00 £76.00 £3.00 4.00% 

Environmental Management R0986 Adult Season Ticket £57.00 £59.00 £2.00 4.00% 

Environmental Management R0987 Adult Day Pass £6.00 £6.00 £0.00 4.00% 

Environmental Management R0988 Junior/Concession Season Ticket £33.00 £34.00 £1.00 4.00% 

Environmental Management R0989 Junior/Concession Day Pass £4.00 £4.00 £0.00 4.00% 
No increase proposed             

Environmental Management R2088 
Any Household White Goods Item that would be 
taken on moving house  £17.00 £17.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Environmental Management R0913 
Small Electrical Items (Hi - Fi Systems, 
Microwaves, TV's) Up To 5 Items £17.00 £17.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Environmental Management R0942 

Bed, Mattress, Carpet, Chairs, Suites - Any General 
household item That would be taken on moving 
house. £11.00 £11.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Environmental Management   Allotments Charge per square metre £0.50 £0.50 £0.00 0.00% 

Environmental Management R0943 Medical Referee Fee £29.00 £29.00 £0.00 0.00% 
Environmental Management R1037 Bowlee Car Boot Sales - Car Park £2.50 £2.50 £0.00 0.00% 

Environmental Management R1038 Bowlee Car Boot Sales - Sellers (Car) £15.00 £15.00 £0.00 0.00% 

P
age 162



Environmental Management R1039 
Bowlee Car Boot Sellers (Estate cars, Small Vans & 
4x4) £20.00 £20.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Environmental Management R1040 Bowlee Car Boot Sellers (Transit Van and upward) £25.00 £25.00 £0.00 0.00% 
Environmental Management R0944 Full Grave £1,098.00 £1,098.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Environmental Management R0945 Non-Resident £1,976.00 £1,976.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Environmental Management   Non-attended cremations £425.00 £425.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Environmental Management   Accompanied visits/search £100.00 £100.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Environmental Management R1898 Transfer of ownership of plot £75.00 £75.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Environmental Management   Lost papers/deeds £30.00 £30.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Environmental Management   Scattering of ashes £30.00 £30.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Environmental Management R1896 Sedum Matting £105.00 £105.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Environmental Management R0946 Cremated Remains - Resident £722.00 £722.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Environmental Management R0947 Cremated Remains - Non-Resident £1,305.00 £1,305.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Environmental Management R0950 Private Grave Adult Resident £950.00 £950.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Environmental Management R0951 Private Grave Adult Non-Resident £1,425.00 £1,425.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Environmental Management R0952 Private Grave With Chamber £353.00 £353.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Environmental Management R0955 Public Grave Adult £225.00 £225.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Environmental Management R0956 Cremated Remains Up To FT Resident £256.00 £256.00 £0.00 0.00% 

P
age 163



Environmental Management R0957 Cremated Remains Up To FT Non-Resident £461.00 £461.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Environmental Management R0958 
Cremated Remains Per Additional (No 
Suggestions) £72.00 £72.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Environmental Management R0959 Cremated Remains Under Turf £56.00 £56.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Environmental Management R0960 General Charges: Use Of Cemetery Chapel £113.00 £113.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Environmental Management R0961 General Charges: Concrete Heading £252.00 £252.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Environmental Management R0962 General Charges: Additional Inscription £42.00 £42.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Environmental Management R0963 Right To Erect Memorial £141.00 £141.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Environmental Management R0964 Number stone £102.00 £102.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Environmental Management R0967 Cremation Fees Adult £726.00 £726.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Environmental Management R0968 Burial Of Remains Cremated Elsewhere In Garden £68.00 £68.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Environmental Management R0990 Book Of Remembrance £108.00 £108.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Environmental Management R0991 Book Of Remembrance £145.00 £145.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Environmental Management R0992 Book Of Remembrance £202.00 £202.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Environmental Management R0993 Floral Designs £108.00 £108.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Environmental Management R0994 Other Designs £189.00 £189.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Environmental Management R0995 Memorial Cards £39.00 £39.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Environmental Management R0996 Memorial Cards £51.00 £51.00 £0.00 0.00% 

P
age 164



Environmental Management R0997 Memorial Cards £70.00 £70.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Environmental Management R0998 Rose Bush & Plaque For 10 yrs. £155.00 £155.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Environmental Management R0999 Memorial Wall Plaque For 10 yrs. £143.00 £143.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Environmental Management R1667 Replacement/Additional Plaques £78.00 £78.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Environmental Management R1668 Replacement Memorial £42.00 £42.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Environmental Management R1000 Children's Garden Plaque For 10 yrs. £143.00 £143.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Environmental Management R1001 Memorial Stone Vase For 10 yrs. £547.00 £547.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Environmental Management R1002 Stone Niche For 20 yrs. - Small £293.00 £293.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Environmental Management R1003 Stone Niche For 20 yrs. - Large £421.00 £421.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Environmental Management R1004 Stone Niche For 20 yrs. - Re Open £63.00 £63.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Environmental Management R1005 Stone Niche For 20 yrs. - Urn £52.00 £52.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Environmental Management R1006 Letters for Stone Niche For 20 yrs. - Black £3.80 £3.80 £0.00 0.00% 

Environmental Management R1007 Letters for Stone Niche For 20 yrs. - Gold £4.00 £4.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Environmental Management R1008 Re-letter for Stone Niche For 20 yrs. - Black £1.05 £1.05 £0.00 0.00% 

Environmental Management R1009 Re-letter for Stone Niche For 20 yrs. - Gold £2.00 £2.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Environmental Management R1010 New Tree & Plaque £192.00 £192.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Environmental Management R1011 Bronze Memorial Plaque For 10 yrs. - Double £366.00 £366.00 £0.00 0.00% 

P
age 165



Environmental Management R1012 Bronze Memorial Plaque For 10 yrs. - Single £185.00 £185.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Environmental Management R1013 Search Fee £42.00 £42.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Environmental Management R1014 Wooden Casket £59.00 £59.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Environmental Management R1015 Wooden Cross / Stone Marker & Plaque £133.00 £133.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Environmental Management R1016 Accompanied Selection Of New Graves £51.00 £51.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Environmental Management R1513 Memorial Bench and Plaque with ten year lease £948.00 £948.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Environmental Management R0983 Site Fees £800.00 £800.00 £0.00 0.00% 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 166



Public Protection       

Sub-Area Ref Desc 

Current Charge 
2022/23 

(£) 

Proposed 
Charge 
2023/24 

(to nearest £) 
Increase 

(£) 
Proposed 

% Increase 

Public Protection R1891 Food Hygiene Rescore £175.00 £182.00 £7.00 4.00% 

Public Protection   Food premises pre-inspection £125.00 £130.00 £5.00 4.00% 

Public Protection R1107 Car Boot Sales - Fee per car £4.30 £4.50 £0.20 4.00% 
Public Protection R1109 Council Car Boot Sales - fee per car £4.30 £4.50 £0.20 4.00% 
Public Protection R1112 Administration Fee For Work In Default £49.00 £51.00 £2.00 4.00% 

Public Protection R1113 Information Search Fee: Minimum Charge (Up To 
First Hour) £105.00 £109.00 £4.00 4.00% 

Public Protection R1114 Information Search Fee: Each Subsequent Hour 
Or Part Thereof £43.00 £45.00 £2.00 4.00% 

Public Protection R1115 Reclamation Of Stray Dogs £109.00 £113.00 £4.00 4.00% 

Public Protection R1117 Individual Export Certificate request with 5 or 
more working days’ notice £85.00 £88.00 £3.00 4.00% 

Public Protection R1118 
Batch Certs Only Applicable In Strictly Limited 
Circumstances (Inc. Low Risk Product And 
Subject To A Audit System) 

£201.00 £209.00 £8.00 4.00% 

Public Protection R1268 Grant, renewal, transfer fee for Sexual 
Establishment Venue (SEV) £1,675.00 £1,742.00 £67.00 4.00% 

Public Protection R1269  Street Trading: - Annual Consent £1,002.00 £1,042.00 £40.00 4.00% 
Public Protection R1270 Street Trading: - Annual Licence £1,447.00 £1,505.00 £58.00 4.00% 

Public Protection R1271 Street Trading: - Consent To Cover Trading At 
Specific Event: Up To 5 days £233.00 £242.00 £9.00 4.00% 

Public Protection R1272 Street Trading: - Consent To Cover Trading At 
Specific Event: Up To 2 days £93.00 £97.00 £4.00 4.00% 

Public Protection R1273 Ear Piercing/Tattooing/Acupuncture £167.00 £174.00 £7.00 4.00% 
Public Protection R1282 Licensing Pre - Application Consultation Fee £34.00 £35.00 £1.00 4.00% 
Public Protection R1283 Licensing Street Trading - Change Of Vehicle £59.00 £61.00 £2.00 4.00% 

Public Protection R1825 Scrap Metal Dealers Site Licence (grant and 
renewal) £760.00 £790.00 £30.00 4.00% 

P
age 167



Public Protection R1826 Scrap Metal Dealers Site Licence (multiple sites) 
£745 plus £620 

per additional 
site 

£760 plus £620 
per additional 

site 
£15.00 4.00% 

Public Protection R1828 Scrap Metal Licence Variation; change from 
collector's licence to site licence £760.00 £790.00 £30.00 4.00% 

Public Protection R1829 Scrap Metal Licence Variation; change from site 
licence to collector's licence £314.00 £327.00 £13.00 4.00% 

Public Protection R1830 Scrap Metal Licence Variation; change of 
licensee's details £17.00 £18.00 £1.00 4.00% 

Public Protection R1831 Scrap Metal Licence Variation; change licenced 
sites £22.00 £23.00 £1.00 4.00% 

Public Protection R1832 Scrap Metal Licence Variation; change site 
managers £58.00 £60.00 £2.00 4.00% 

Public Protection R1833 Scrap Metal certified copy of licence £22.00 £23.00 £1.00 4.00% 

Public Protection R1440 Misc.: Information Letter (Cost Includes Up To 1 
Hours Work And A Cost Of Letter) £99.00 £103.00 £4.00 4.00% 

Public Protection R1441 Misc.: Information Check (Each Subsequent Hour 
Or Part Thereof) £23.00 £24.00 £1.00 4.00% 

Public Protection R1442 Misc.: Insurance £51.00 £53.00 £2.00 4.00% 
Public Protection R1443 Hourly Rate For Work Not Included Below £117.00 £122.00 £5.00 4.00% 
Public Protection R1444 Hourly Rate : Weights Up To 5 kg £9.00 £9.00 £0.00 4.00% 
Public Protection R1445 Hourly Rate: Weights Above 5 kg £11.00 £11.00 £0.00 4.00% 
Public Protection R1446 Linear Measures - Not Exceeding 3 Meters £12.00 £12.00 £0.00 4.00% 

Public Protection R1447 Linear Measures: Capacity (Without Division): Not 
Exceeding 1 Litre £241.00 £251.00 £10.00 4.00% 

Public Protection R1448 Linear Measures: Capacity (Without Division): 
Cubic Ballast £41.00 £43.00 £2.00 4.00% 

Public Protection R1449 Linear Measures: Capacity (Without Division) 
Liquid Capacity: Templates £70.00 £73.00 £3.00 4.00% 

Public Protection R1450 Weighing Instruments Imperial Or Metric Units: Up 
To 15 kg £43.00 £45.00 £2.00 4.00% 

Public Protection R1451 Weighing Instruments Imperial Or Metric Units: Up 
To 100 kg  £60.00 £62.00 £2.00 4.00% 

Public Protection R1452 Weighing Instruments Imperial Or Metric Units: Up 
To 250 kg £79.00 £82.00 £3.00 4.00% 

P
age 168



Public Protection R1453 Weighing Instruments Imperial Or Metric Units: Up 
To 1 Tonne £149.00 £155.00 £6.00 4.00% 

Public Protection R1454 Weighing Instruments Imperial Or Metric Units: Up 
To 10 Tonne £236.00 £245.00 £9.00 4.00% 

Public Protection R1455 Weighing Instruments Imperial Or Metric Units: Up 
To 30 Tonne £491.00 £511.00 £20.00 4.00% 

Public Protection R1456 Weighing Instruments Imperial Or Metric Units: Up 
To 60 Tonne £736.00 £765.00 £29.00 4.00% 

Public Protection R1457 Measuring Instruments: Intoxicating Liquors: Up 
To 150 ml £31.00 £32.00 £1.00 4.00% 

Public Protection R1458 Measuring Instruments: Intoxicating Liquors: 
Other £32.00 £33.00 £1.00 4.00% 

Public Protection R1459 Liquid Fuel And Lubricants £104.00 £108.00 £4.00 4.00% 

Public Protection R1460 Unsubdivisional Container: Multigrade-Single 
Outlet £144.00 £150.00 £6.00 4.00% 

Public Protection R1461 Unsubdivisional Container: Price Adjustment: 
Other £257.00 £267.00 £10.00 4.00% 

Public Protection R1462 Unsubdivisional Container: Price Adjustment: 
Other-Single Outlet £115.00 £120.00 £5.00 4.00% 

Public Protection R1463 Unsubdivisional Container: Price Adjustment: 
Other   £154.00 £160.00 £6.00 4.00% 

Public Protection R1464 Unsubdivisional Container: Multi-Outlets: 1 Meter £167.00 £174.00 £7.00 4.00% 
Public Protection R1465 Unsubdivisional Container: Multi-Outlets: 2 Meters £270.00 £281.00 £11.00 4.00% 
Public Protection R1466 Unsubdivisional Container: Multi-Outlets: 3 Meters £369.00 £384.00 £15.00 4.00% 
Public Protection R1467 Unsubdivisional Container: Multi-Outlets: 4 Meters £466.00 £485.00 £19.00 4.00% 
Public Protection R1468 Unsubdivisional Container: Multi-Outlets: 5 Meters £567.00 £590.00 £23.00 4.00% 
Public Protection R1469 Unsubdivisional Container: Multi-Outlets: 6 Meters £661.00 £687.00 £26.00 4.00% 
Public Protection R1470 Unsubdivisional Container: Multi-Outlets: 7 Meters £778.00 £809.00 £31.00 4.00% 
Public Protection R1471 Unsubdivisional Container: Multi-Outlets: 8 Meters £864.00 £899.00 £35.00 4.00% 

Public Protection R1472 Road Tanker Fuel (Above 100 Litres): Meter 
System: Wet Hose £272.00 £283.00 £11.00 4.00% 

Public Protection R1473 Road Tanker Fuel (Above 100 Litres): Meter 
System: Dry Hose £306.00 £318.00 £12.00 4.00% 

Public Protection R1474 Road Tanker Fuel (Above 100 Litres): Dipstick 
System: To 7600 Litres £241.00 £251.00 £10.00 4.00% 

Public Protection R1475 Road Tanker Fuel (Above 100 Litres): Dipstick 
System: Initial £33.00 £34.00 £1.00 4.00% 

P
age 169



Public Protection R1476 Road Tanker Fuel (Above 100 Litres): Dipstick 
System: Spare £33.00 £34.00 £1.00 4.00% 

Public Protection R1477 Road Tanker Fuel (Above 100 Litres): Dipstick 
System: Replace £65.00 £68.00 £3.00 4.00% 

Public Protection R1481 Primary Authority Agreement Hourly rate £101.00 £105.00 £4.00 4.00% 

Public Protection R1279 Grant, renewal or transfer fee for Sex Shop 
Establishment £1,218.00 £1,267.00 £49.00 4.00% 

Public Protection R1827 Scrap Metal Collectors Licence (grant and 
renewal) £314.00 £327.00 £13.00 4.00% 

Public Protection   Hand delivery of export certificates to trader 
premises within Rochdale borough £38.00 £40.00 £2.00 4.00% 

Public Protection   Pleasure Boat Licence (carrying up to 12 
passengers) £360.00 £374.00 £14.00 4.00% 

Public Protection   Public Health funeral officer recharge cost - hourly 
rate per officer £87.00 £90.00 £3.00 4.00% 

Public Protection   Work in default / non-compliance officer recharge 
cost - hourly rate per officer £87.00 £90.00 £3.00 4.00% 

No increase 
proposed             

Public Protection R1877 Food hygiene Advisory Visit - hourly rate £81.00 £81.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Public Protection R1435 Private Hire Operators: 1 Vehicle (1 year licence) £208.00 £208.00 £0.00 0.00% 
Public Protection   Private Hire Operators: 1 Vehicle (5 year licence) £1,042.00 £1,042.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Public Protection R1436 Private Hire Operators: 2 - 10 Vehicles (1 year 
licence) £396.00 £396.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Public Protection   Private Hire Operators: 2 - 10 Vehicles (5 year 
licence) £1,980.00 £1,980.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Public Protection R1437 Private Hire Operators: 11 - 20 Vehicles (1 year 
licence) £556.00 £556.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Public Protection   Private Hire Operators: 11 - 20 Vehicles (5 year 
licence) £2,781.00 £2,781.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Public Protection R1438 Private Hire Operators: 21 - 30 Vehicles (1 year 
licence) £713.00 £713.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Public Protection   Private Hire Operators: 21 - 30 Vehicles (5 year 
licence) £3,561.00 £3,561.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Public Protection   Private Hire Operators: 31 - 40 Vehicles (1 year 
licence) £872.00 £872.00 £0.00 0.00% 

P
age 170



Public Protection   Private Hire Operators: 31 - 40 Vehicles (5 year 
licence) £4,356.00 £4,356.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Public Protection   Private Hire Operators: 41 - 50 Vehicles (1 year 
licence) £1,028.00 £1,028.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Public Protection   Private Hire Operators: 41 - 50 Vehicles (5 year 
licence) £5,138.00 £5,138.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Public Protection   Private Hire Operators: 51 - 60 Vehicles (1 year 
licence) £1,184.00 £1,184.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Public Protection   Private Hire Operators: 51 - 60 Vehicles (5 year 
licence) £5,919.00 £5,919.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Public Protection   Private Hire Operators: 61 - 70 Vehicles (1 year 
licence) £1,340.00 £1,340.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Public Protection   Private Hire Operators: 61 - 70 Vehicles (5 year 
licence) £6,700.00 £6,700.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Public Protection   Private Hire Operators: above 70 Vehicles (1 year 
licence) £1,495.00 £1,495.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Public Protection   Private Hire Operators: above 70 Vehicles (5 year 
licence) £7,478.00 £7,478.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Public Protection R1417 Drivers: Initial Application (1 year licence) £110.00 £110.00 £0.00 0.00% 
Public Protection   Drivers: Initial Application (3 year licence) £258.00 £258.00 £0.00 0.00% 
Public Protection R1418 Drivers: Renewal (1 year licence) £74.00 £74.00 £0.00 0.00% 
Public Protection R1419 Drivers: Combined Initial (1 year) £168.00 £168.00 £0.00 0.00% 
Public Protection   Drivers: Combined initial (3 year)  £420.00 £420.00 £0.00 0.00% 
Public Protection R1420 Drivers: Combined Renewal (1 year) £126.00 £126.00 £0.00 0.00% 
Public Protection R1422 Drivers: Replacement Badge £19.00 £19.00 £0.00 0.00% 
Public Protection R1424 Drivers: Duplicate Licence £13.00 £13.00 £0.00 0.00% 
Public Protection R1425 Drivers: Replacement Lanyard £3.20 £3.20 £0.00 0.00% 
Public Protection R1426 Drivers: Drivers Declaration £8.40 £8.40 £0.00 0.00% 
Public Protection R1427 Vehicles: Annual Fee with MOT included £339.00 £339.00 £0.00 0.00% 
Public Protection R1427 Vehicles: Annual Fee without MOT  £291.00 £291.00 £0.00 0.00% 
Public Protection R1428 Vehicles: Plate Fee £38.00 £38.00 £0.00 0.00% 
Public Protection R1429 Change Of Vehicle £122.00 £122.00 £0.00 0.00% 
Public Protection R1430 Change Of Owner £38.00 £38.00 £0.00 0.00% 
Public Protection R1431 Retest Charge £62.00 £62.00 £0.00 0.00% 
Public Protection R1432 Duplicate Licence £13.00 £13.00 £0.00 0.00% 
Public Protection R1433 Replacement Window Stickers £6.30 £6.30 £0.00 0.00% 

P
age 171



Public Protection   Front plate carrier £22.00 £22.00 £0.00 0.00% 
Public Protection   Rear plate carrier £29.00 £29.00 £0.00 0.00% 
Public Protection   Button and key £1.10 £1.10 £0.00 0.00% 
Public Protection   Window pouch £6.30 £6.30 £0.00 0.00% 
Public Protection   Area Knowledge Re-test £43.00 £43.00 £0.00 0.00% 
Public Protection   Coaching session £43.00 £43.00 £0.00 0.00% 
Public Protection   Coaching (missed appointment) £43.00 £43.00 £0.00 0.00% 
Public Protection   Drivers Renewal (3 year licence) £222.00 £222.00 £0.00 0.00% 
Public Protection   Drivers: Combined Renewal (3 year) £378.00 £378.00 £0.00 0.00% 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 172



Animal Licensing        

Sub-Area Ref Desc 

Current 
Charge 
2022/23 

(£) 

Proposed 
Charge 
2023/24 

(to nearest £) 
Increase 

(£) 
Proposed 

% Increase 
    Dog Breeding:         

Public Protection   Application Fee £296.00 £308.00 £12.00 4.00% 
Public Protection   Grant Fee 1 year < 5 dogs £150.00 £156.00 £6.00 4.00% 
Public Protection   Grant Fee 1 year 5 - 10 dogs £155.00 £161.00 £6.00 4.00% 
Public Protection   Grant Fee 1 year 10 - 15 dogs £160.00 £166.00 £6.00 4.00% 
Public Protection   Grant Fee  1 year > 15 dogs £165.00 £172.00 £7.00 4.00% 
Public Protection   Grant Fee 2 year < 5 dogs £261.00 £271.00 £10.00 4.00% 
Public Protection   Grant Fee 2 year 5 - 10 dogs £266.00 £277.00 £11.00 4.00% 
Public Protection   Grant Fee 2 year 10 - 15 dogs £271.00 £282.00 £11.00 4.00% 
Public Protection   Grant Fee  2 year > 15 dogs £276.00 £287.00 £11.00 4.00% 
Public Protection   Grant Fee 3 year < 5 dogs £372.00 £387.00 £15.00 4.00% 
Public Protection   Grant Fee 3 year 5 - 10 dogs £377.00 £392.00 £15.00 4.00% 
Public Protection   Grant Fee 3 year 10 - 15 dogs £383.00 £398.00 £15.00 4.00% 
Public Protection   Grant Fee  3 year > 15 dogs £388.00 £404.00 £16.00 4.00% 

              
    Boarding of cats and / or dogs:         

Public Protection   Application Fee £294.00 £306.00 £12.00 4.00% 
Public Protection   Grant Fee 1 years £145.00 £151.00 £6.00 4.00% 
Public Protection   Grant Fee 2 years £256.00 £266.00 £10.00 4.00% 
Public Protection   Grant Fee 3 years £323.00 £336.00 £13.00 4.00% 

              
    Selling Animals as Pets (Pet Shops):         

Public Protection   Application Fee £294.00 £306.00 £12.00 4.00% 
Public Protection   Grant Fee 1 year £145.00 £151.00 £6.00 4.00% 
Public Protection   Grant Fee 2 years £256.00 £266.00 £10.00 4.00% 
Public Protection   Grant Fee 3 years £367.00 £382.00 £15.00 4.00% 

              
    Hiring out Horses:         

P
age 173



Public Protection   Application Fee £400.00 £416.00 £16.00 4.00% 
Public Protection   Grant Fee 1 year < 10 horses £150.00 £156.00 £6.00 4.00% 
Public Protection   Grant Fee 1 year 10 - 19 horses £155.00 £161.00 £6.00 4.00% 
Public Protection   Grant Fee 1 year 20 - 29 horses £160.00 £166.00 £6.00 4.00% 
Public Protection   Grant Fee 1 year > 30 horses £165.00 £172.00 £7.00 4.00% 
Public Protection   Grant Fee 2 year < 10 horses £324.00 £337.00 £13.00 4.00% 
Public Protection   Grant Fee 2 year 10 - 19 horses £329.00 £342.00 £13.00 4.00% 
Public Protection   Grant Fee 2 year 20 - 29 horses £335.00 £348.00 £13.00 4.00% 
Public Protection   Grant Fee 2 year > 30 horses £341.00 £355.00 £14.00 4.00% 
Public Protection   Grant Fee 3 year < 10 horses £500.00 £520.00 £20.00 4.00% 
Public Protection   Grant Fee 3 year 10 - 19 horses £506.00 £526.00 £20.00 4.00% 
Public Protection   Grant Fee 3 year 20 - 29 horses £511.00 £531.00 £20.00 4.00% 
Public Protection   Grant Fee 3 year > 30 horses £516.00 £537.00 £21.00 4.00% 

              
    Dangerous Wild Animals (2 year licence only):         

Public Protection   Application Fee Dwarf Caiman or Serval £294.00 £306.00 £12.00 4.00% 

Public Protection   Application Fee Other animal 
Price on 

application 
Price on 

application n/a n/a 
Public Protection   Grant Fee ( 2 year licence) Dwarf Caiman or Serval £145.00 £151.00 £6.00 4.00% 

Public Protection   Grant Fee ( 2 year licence) Other animal 
Price on 

application 
Price on 

application n/a n/a 
              
    Zoo Licence:         

Public Protection   Application Fee 
Price on 

application 
Price on 

application n/a n/a 

Public Protection   Grant Fee 
Price on 

application 
Price on 

application n/a n/a 
              
    All Licenses:         

Public Protection   Variation Fee £48.00 £50.00 £2.00 4.00% 

Public Protection   Inspection of additional premises 
£52.00 per 

hour 
£53.00 per 

hour £1.00 4.00% 
Public Protection   Certified copy of licence £20.00 £21.00 £1.00 4.00% 

 

P
age 174



Pest Control 
Fees       

Sub-Area Ref Desc 

Current 
Charge 
2022/23 

(£) 

Proposed 
Charge 
2023/24 

(to nearest 
£) 

Increase 
(£) 

Proposed 
% 

Increase 
    Domestic / Residential fees - with advanced payment;          
    Public Health Pests         

Public Protection R1893 Rats - Full fee (Includes 2 revisits) £28.00 £45.00 £17.00 60.00% 

Public Protection R1983 
Rats - Discounted fee for households on Council Tax Support 
(Includes 2 revisits) £28.00 £20.00 -£8.00 -29.00% 

Public Protection R1894 Mice - Full fee (Including 2 revisits) £28.00 £45.00 £17.00 60.00% 

Public Protection R1894 Mice - Discounted fee for households on Council Tax Support £28.00 £20.00 -£8.00 -29.00% 
Public Protection New PH Insects - Fleas - Full Fee  £90.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Public Protection New 
PH Insects - Fleas - Discounted Fee for households on Council 
Tax Support  £45.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Public Protection New PH Insects - Cockroaches - Full Fee  £90.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Public Protection New 
PH Insects - Cockroaches - Discounted Fee for households on 
Council Tax Support  £45.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Public Protection New PH Insects - Bedbugs - Full Fee  £180.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Public Protection New 
PH Insects - Bedbugs - Discounted Fee for households on 
Council Tax Support  £90.00 £0.00 0.00% 

    Non-Public Health Pests         
Public Protection R1292 Wasps nest - Full Fee £81.00 £120.00 £39.00 48.00% 

Public Protection R1292 
Wasps Nest - Discounted fee for households on Council Tax 
Support £81.00 £70.00 -£11.00 -13.00% 

Public Protection R2090 Ants - Full Fee  £81.00 £120.00 £39.00 48.00% 

Public Protection R2090 Ants - Discounted fee for households on Council Tax Support 
£81.00 £70.00 -£11.00 -13.00% 

P
age 175



Public Protection New Non PH Insects - Dermestes / Carpet beetles - Full Fee  £180.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Public Protection New 
Non PH Insects - Dermestes / Carpet beetles - Discounted Fee 
for households on Council Tax Support  £90.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Public Protection New Non PH Insects - Biscuit beetles - Full Fee  £180.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Public Protection New 
Non PH Insects - Biscuit beetles - Discounted Fee for 
households on Council Tax Support  £90.00 £0.00 0.00% 

    Commercial Fees;         

Public Protection R1290 
Commercial Premises - Pest Control Work -  price per hour 
minimum charge of 1 hour (Based on historical data, if new data 
identifies that the full unit cost/hourly 

£121.00 £126.00 £5.00 4.00% 

Public Protection R1291 Commercial Premises - Wasp Nest - price per nest with 
advanced payment £81.00 £150.00 £69.00 85.00% 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 176



Registrars             

Sub-Area Ref Desc 

Current 
Charge 
2022/23 

(£) 

Proposed 
Charge 
2023/24 

(to nearest £) 
Increase 

(£) 

Proposed 
% 

Increase 
Registrars R1376F Plastic Wallets £0.80 £1.00 £0.20 4.00% 
Registrars R1388F Att At Partnership Ceremonies At App Ven: M-F £320.00 £333.00 £13.00 4.00% 
Registrars R1389F Att At Partnership Ceremonies At App Ven: Sat £343.00 £357.00 £14.00 4.00% 
Registrars R1390F Att At Partnership Ceremonies At App Ven: Sun/BH £393.00 £409.00 £16.00 4.00% 
Registrars R1382F Attendance At Weddings At Approved Venues: Sat £420.00 £428.00 £8.00 2.00% 
Registrars R1381F Attendance At Weddings At Approved Venues: Mon-Fri £396.00 £404.00 £8.00 2.00% 
Registrars R1383F Attendance At Weddings At Approved Venues: Sun/BH £448.00 £457.00 £9.00 2.00% 
Registrars R1394F Civil Naming and Renewal Of Vows - App Ven: M-F £227.00 £236.00 £9.00 4.00% 
Registrars R1395F Civil Naming and Renewal Of Vows - App Ven: Sat £282.00 £293.00 £11.00 4.00% 
Registrars R1396F Civil Naming and Renewal Of Vows - App Ven: Sun/BH £320.00 £333.00 £13.00 4.00% 
Registrars R1393F Civil Naming and Renewal Of Vows - Red Rose Ste: Sun/ £275.00 £286.00 £11.00 4.00% 
Registrars R1391F Civil Naming and Renewal Of Vows - Red Rose: M- £155.00 £161.00 £6.00 4.00% 
Registrars R1392F Civil Naming and Renewal Of Vows -  Red Rose: Sa £205.00 £213.00 £8.00 4.00% 
Registrars R1385F Marriage / Civil Ceremony Fees -  Red Rose Ste: Sun/BH £245.00 £255.00 £10.00 4.00% 
Registrars R1384F Marriage / Civil Ceremony Fees: Red Rose Ste: Sat £183.00 £190.00 £7.00 4.00% 
Registrars R1397F Name Deed - Adult £60.00 £62.00 £2.00 4.00% 
Registrars R1398F Name Deed - Child £65.00 £68.00 £3.00 4.00% 
Registrars R1408F Name Deed - Family Application £198.00 £206.00 £8.00 4.00% 
Registrars R1399F Purchase Of Additional Name Deed £13.00 £14.00 £1.00 4.00% 
Registrars R1400F Licensing Of Venues Of Civil Ceremonies £1,359.00 £1,413.00 £54.00 4.00% 
Registrars R1367F Marriage / Civil Ceremony Fees:  Red Rose Ste (M-Th) £118.00 £123.00 £5.00 4.00% 
Registrars R1374F Ceremonies: Provisional Ceremony Booking Fee £34.00 £35.00 £1.00 4.00% 
Registrars R1401F Citizenship Ceremonies - Private Ceremonies: M-F £170.00 £177.00 £7.00 4.00% 
Registrars R1402F Citizenship Ceremonies - Private Ceremonies: Sat £253.00 £263.00 £10.00 4.00% 
Registrars R1403F Citizenship Ceremonies - Private Ceremonies: Sun £343.00 £357.00 £14.00 4.00% 
Registrars R1886 Marriage / Civil Ceremony Fees : Roche Suite( Fri) £145.00 £151.00 £6.00 4.00% 
Registrars R1812 Credit Card Fee (non-VATable Purchases) £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 4.00% 
Registrars   Passport Forms £10.00 £10.00 £0.00 4.00% 

P
age 177



Libraries       

Sub-Area Ref Desc 

Current 
Charge 
2022/23 

(£) 

Proposed 
Charge 
2023/24 

(to nearest 
£) 

Increase 
(£) 

Proposed 
% 

Increase 
Libraries Various Item Request £4.00 £4.00 £0.00 4.00% 
Libraries Various Talking Books, Playaways & Learn a Language £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 4.00% 
Libraries Various Library Fine (overdue items per day) £0.30 £0.30 £0.00 4.00% 
Libraries Various Maximum Level Of Fine For Overdue Books £13.00 £14.00 £1.00 4.00% 
Libraries Various Meeting Room - Priv Sect / Profit Making Groups £19.00 £20.00 £1.00 4.00% 
Libraries Various Computer Printouts (A4 B and W) £0.30 £0.30 £0.00 4.00% 
Libraries Various Photocopying (A4 B+W) £0.30 £0.30 £0.00 4.00% 

Libraries Various Play Sets / Music Sets £10.00 £10.00 £0.00 4.00% 

Libraries Various Microfilm prints £2.00 £2.00 £0.00 4.00% 

Libraries Various Replacement Membership Cards (Adult) £3.00 £3.00 £0.00 4.00% 
Libraries Various Replacement Membership Cards (Under 17 / Over 60) £1.35 £1.35 £0.00 4.00% 
Libraries Various Computer Printouts (A4 Colour) £1.00 £1.00 £0.00 4.00% 
Libraries   Local History Digital Photography prints £4.20 £4.20 £0.00 4.00% 
Libraries   Local History Digital Photography prints £8.00 £8.00 £0.00 4.00% 
Libraries   Local History Digital Photography prints £16.00 £17.00 £1.00 4.00% 
Libraries Various A4 colour  £1.00 £1.00 £0.00 4.00% 
Libraries Various Lost or damaged Books £3.00 £3.00 £0.00 4.00% 

Libraries   A3 colour £1.20 £1.20 £0.00 4.00% 

Libraries   A3 Black & White £0.40 £0.40 £0.00 4.00% 
 

 

 

 

P
age 178



Resources           

Sub-Area Ref Desc 

Current 
Charge 
2022/23 

(£) 

Proposed 
Charge 
2023/24 

(to nearest £) 
Increase 

(£) 
Proposed 

% Increase 
Legal & HR R0092 Conf On Official Docs – to prove on Elect Reg £21.00 £22.00 £1.00 4.00% 
Legal & HR R0093 Public Path Orders:- Within Gen Range + Adv Costs £1,600.00 £1,664.00 £64.00 4.00% 
Legal & HR R0094 Public Path Orders:- Additional Rates £172.00 £179.00 £7.00 4.00% 
Legal & HR R0095 Street Closure:- Within A General Range £1,600.00 £1,664.00 £64.00 4.00% 
Legal & HR R0096 Street Closure:- Additional Rates £172.00 £179.00 £7.00 4.00% 
Legal & HR R0113 Sales Of Land And Property: Under £5,000 £973.00 £1,012.00 £39.00 4.00% 

Legal & HR R0114 
Sales Of Land And Property: 
£5,001 - £10,000 £973.00 £1,012.00 £39.00 4.00% 

Legal & HR R0115 
Sales Of Land And Property: 
£10,001 - £15,000 £973.00 £1,012.00 £39.00 4.00% 

Legal & HR R0116 
Sales Of Land And Property: 
£15,001 - £20,000 £1,442.00 £1,500.00 £58.00 4.00% 

Legal & HR R0117 
Sales Of Land And Property: 
£20,001 - £25,000 £1,442.00 £1,500.00 £58.00 4.00% 

Legal & HR R0118 
Sales Of Land And Property: 
£25,001 - £30,000 £1,442.00 £1,500.00 £58.00 4.00% 

Legal & HR R0119 
Sales Of Land And Property: 
£30,001 - £60,000 £1,787.00 £1,858.00 £71.00 4.00% 

Legal & HR R0120 
Sales Of Land And Property: 
£60,001 - £100,000 £2,227.00 £2,316.00 £89.00 4.00% 

Legal & HR R0121 
Sales Of Land And Property: 
£100,001 - £250,000 £2,915.00 £3,032.00 £117.00 4.00% 

Legal & HR R0122 Sales Of Land And Property: Over £250,000 £3,542.00 £3,684.00 £142.00 4.00% 

Legal & HR R0123 Auctions 4% or £2000 
min 

4% or £2000 
min n/a n/a 

Legal & HR R0124 Redemptions (One Per Charge) £233.00 £242.00 £9.00 4.00% 
Legal & HR R0125 Redemptions (Two Charges) £454.00 £472.00 £18.00 4.00% 
Legal & HR R0126 Mortgage Questionnaires £227.00 £236.00 £9.00 4.00% 
Legal & HR R0127 Deeds Of Postponement £801.00 £833.00 £32.00 4.00% 

P
age 179



Legal & HR R0128 Title Questionnaires:- Up To 20 Questions £154.00 £160.00 £6.00 4.00% 
Legal & HR R0129 Title Questionnaires:- Above 20 Questions £154.00 £160.00 £6.00 4.00% 
Legal & HR R0130 Title Questionnaires:- Per Additional Question (>20) £10.00 £10.00 £0.00 4.00% 
Legal & HR R0132 Registration Fees:- Commercial £227.00 £236.00 £9.00 4.00% 
Legal & HR R0133 Registration Fees:- Private £120.00 £125.00 £5.00 4.00% 
Legal & HR R0134 Registration Fees:- Sealing Fee £82.00 £85.00 £3.00 4.00% 
Legal & HR R0135 Registration Fees:- Copies For Solicitors £82.00 £85.00 £3.00 4.00% 
Legal & HR R0136 Shop Leases £2,123.00 £2,208.00 £85.00 4.00% 
Legal & HR R0137 Licenses:- Community and Residential Commercial £779.00 £810.00 £31.00 4.00% 
Legal & HR R0138 Licenses:- License To Assign £1,111.00 £1,155.00 £44.00 4.00% 
Legal & HR R0139 Licenses:- License To Sublet (Multiple Licenses) £1,111.00 £1,155.00 £44.00 4.00% 
Legal & HR R0140 Deeds Of Variation, Rectification etc. £801.00 £833.00 £32.00 4.00% 
Legal & HR R0141 Surrender £801.00 £833.00 £32.00 4.00% 
Legal & HR R0142 Deeds Of Easement:- Residential £801.00 £833.00 £32.00 4.00% 
Legal & HR R0143 Deeds Of Easement:- Commercial £1,600.00 £1,664.00 £64.00 4.00% 
Legal & HR R0144 Agreements To Adopt Highways £1,857.00 £1,931.00 £74.00 4.00% 
Legal & HR R0145 Section 106 Agreements (Planning Agreements) £1,600.00 £1,664.00 £64.00 4.00% 
Legal & HR R0146 Section 278 Agreements (Highway Works) £1,600.00 £1,664.00 £64.00 4.00% 
Legal & HR R0147 Building Agreements £2,123.00 £2,208.00 £85.00 4.00% 
Legal & HR R0148 Leases/Premiums – Residential £2,123.00 £2,208.00 £85.00 4.00% 
Legal & HR R0149 Industrial Leases - £2,123.00 £2,208.00 £85.00 4.00% 

Commercial R0110 Copies Of Documents 
£1.15 (min 

£25) 
£1.17 (min 

£25) £0.00 4.00% 
Commercial R0111 Charities Admin – Committee Services Meeting £38.00 £40.00 £2.00 4.00% 
Commercial R1882 Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) £15.00 £16.00 £1.00 4.00% 
Legal & HR   Loan/Facility Agreements £2,123.00 £2,208.00 £85.00 4.00% 
Legal & HR   Temporary Public Path Orders £849.00 £883.00 £34.00 4.00% 
Legal & HR   Commercial Leases £2,123.00 £2,208.00 £85.00 4.00% 
Legal & HR   Community Leases £1,061.00 £1,103.00 £42.00 4.00% 

No increase proposed             

Legal & HR 
R0098F - 

a Local Land Charges Search:- Full Search CON29 £161.00 £161.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Legal & HR 
R0098F - 

b Local Land Charges Search £21.00 £21.00 £0.00 0.00% 

P
age 180



Legal & HR R0099F 
Local Land Charges Search:- Part 2 Enquiries numbered 
4 to 21 £37.00 £37.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Legal & HR   
Local Land Charges Search:- Part 2 Enquiries number 
22 common land £24.00 £24.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Legal & HR R0100F Local Land Charges Search:- Additional Enquiries £37.00 £37.00 £0.00 0.00% 
Legal & HR R0101F Local Land Charges Search:- Extra Parcels Of Land £24.00 £24.00 £0.00 0.00% 
Legal & HR R0103F Local Land Charges Search:- Copy Searches £26.00 £26.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Legal & HR NEW 
Local Land Charges Search:- Extra Parcels Of Land - 
LLC1 £1.00 £1.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Legal & HR NEW Local Land Charges Search:- Personal Searches £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 0.00% 
Finance Services R0107 Charities Support Management Charge £47.00 £47.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Finance Services R0410 Liability Order - Council Tax £101.50 £102.00 £0.50 0.00% 

Finance Services R0411 Liability Order - NNDR £123.50 £124.00 £0.50 0.00% 

Finance Services R0507 Charges for Blue Badge £10.00 £10.00 £0.00 0.00% 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 181



Highways             

Sub-Area Ref Desc 

Current 
Charge 
2022/23 

(£) 

Proposed 
Charge 
2023/24 

(to nearest £) 
Increase 

(£) 

Proposed 
% 

Increase 
Highways R0838 Parking Dispensations £44.00 £46.00 £2.00 4.00% 
Highways R0839 Parking Suspensions: Pay & Display Bays £34.00 £35.00 £1.00 4.00% 

Highways R0840 Parking Suspensions: Limited Waiting Bays/Disabled 
Bays/Loading Bays/Taxi Ranks £34.00 £35.00 £1.00 4.00% 

Highways R0618 Extension Of S.38 Agreement £1,062.00 £1,104.00 £42.00 4.00% 
Highways R0619 S.278/S.106 Agreement Where Built By RMBC £1,887.00 £1,962.00 £75.00 4.00% 

Highways R0626 
Where Built By Developer, Value Of Works Assessed By 
RMBC: Up To £45,000 £4,785.00 £4,976.00 £191.00 4.00% 

Highways R0627 
Where Built By Developer, Value Of Works Assessed By 
RMBC: Up To £20,000 £3,551.00 £3,693.00 £142.00 4.00% 

Highways R0628 
Where Built By Developer, Value Of Works Assessed By 
RMBC: Up To £10,000 £2,237.00 £2,326.00 £89.00 4.00% 

Highways R0629 
Re-Submission Of Plans To Check Compliance With 
Specification And Design £135.00 £140.00 £5.00 4.00% 

Highways R0630 Highway Records Information £97.00 £101.00 £4.00 4.00% 

Highways R0634 
Placement Of Skips On The Highway: Registration Of Firm & 
Vetting £447.00 £465.00 £18.00 4.00% 

Highways R0635 
Placement Of Skips On The Highway: One-Off Permit For 
Non-Registered Firm £121.00 £126.00 £5.00 4.00% 

Highways R0636 Placement Of Skips On The Highway: Removal Of Skip £360.00 £374.00 £14.00 4.00% 
Highways R0637 Licence For Placement Of Scaffold Over Highway £142.00 £148.00 £6.00 4.00% 

Highways R0638 
Licence For Placement Of Hoardings, Cranes & MEWP's On 
The Highway £142.00 £148.00 £6.00 4.00% 

Highways R0639 Vehicular Crossings: Domestic £118.00 £123.00 £5.00 4.00% 
Highways R0640 Vehicular Crossings: Industrial £180.00 £187.00 £7.00 4.00% 
Highways R0641 Accident Debris Removal £197.00 £205.00 £8.00 4.00% 
Highways R0642 Recoverable Works: Admin Fees £125.00 £130.00 £5.00 4.00% 
Highways R0650 Street Café License’s: Annual License – permanent fittings £552.00 £574.00 £22.00 4.00% 
Highways   Erection of tourist signs on the highway £275.00 £286.00 £11.00 4.00% 
Highways   Erection of new housing site signs in the highway £275.00 £286.00 £11.00 4.00% 

P
age 182



Highways   
Road closures for commercial events on the highway using 
RTRA section 16A. £580.00 £603.00 £23.00 4.00% 

Highways   
Supply of copies of Traffic Orders (excludes requests from 
GMP) £173.00 £180.00 £7.00 4.00% 

Highways R0650 Street Café License’s: Annual License £507.00 £527.00 £20.00 4.00% 
Highways R0652 Street Café License’s: Annual Renewal Of License £159.00 £165.00 £6.00 4.00% 

Highways R0853 
Home Watch Sign Consents (approval to place sign on the 
highway only) £51.00 £53.00 £2.00 4.00% 

Highways R0854 
Application For Privately Funded Temporary Direction Signs 
(Housing Dev't Signs) £146.00 £152.00 £6.00 4.00% 

Highways R0855 Advance Direction Signs: Non Commercial (per sign face) £313.00 £326.00 £13.00 4.00% 
Highways R0856 Advance Direction Signs: Commercial (per sign face) £521.00 £542.00 £21.00 4.00% 

Highways R0614 Sponsored Boundary Signs Negotiable Negotiable n/a n/a 

Highways R0615 Sponsored Roundabout Signs Negotiable Negotiable n/a n/a 

Highways R0616 S38/S278 & S228 Agreements (Highways) Value Of Works 
Assessed By RMBC: Over £1.5M 5% 5% n/a n/a 

Highways R0617 S38/S278 & S228 Agreements (Highways) Value Of Works 
Assessed By RMBC: Over £100,000 6% 6% n/a n/a 

Highways R0620 Design And Supervision For Works Up To: £100,000 18% 18% n/a n/a 
Highways R0621 Design And Supervision For Works Up To: £150,000 15% 15% n/a n/a 

Highways R0624 
Where Built By Developer, Value Of Works Assessed By 
RMBC: Over £100,000 5% 5% n/a n/a 

Highways R0625 
Where Built By Developer, Value Of Works Assessed By 
RMBC: Over £45,000 6% 6% n/a n/a 

Highways R0633 Bollards To Prevent Access (Non-Highway) Negotiable Negotiable n/a n/a 

Highways R0643 
S38/S278 & S228 Agreements (Highways) Value Of Works 
Assessed By RMBC: Up To £100,000 Negotiable Negotiable n/a n/a 

Highways R0645 Traffic Regulation Orders: Permanent/Experimental Negotiable Negotiable n/a n/a 
Highways R0648 Traffic Regulation Orders: Permanent Road Closures Negotiable Negotiable n/a n/a 
Highways R0649 Road Marking Requests Negotiable Negotiable n/a n/a 

P
age 183



Highways   Production of Traffic management Plan for events or 
roadworks 

At cost (min 
£500) 

At cost (min 
£500) n/a n/a 

Highways   Design and provision of road signage, barriers, etc. to 
facilitate an event or roadworks. 

At cost (min 
£500) 

At cost (min 
£500) n/a n/a 

Highways R0836 Parking Permits: Residents £54.00 £56.00 £2.00 4.00% 
Highways R0849 Parking Permits: Replacement for lost permit £29.00 £30.00 £1.00 4.00% 
Highways R0646 Traffic Regulation Orders: Temporary/Emergency £986.00 £1,025.00 £39.00 4.00% 

No increase 
proposed             

Highways R0647 

Traffic Regulation Orders: Temporary Carnivals, Fetes & 
Similar Events I.E. Charity Or Non-Commercial/Non-Profit 
Making £200.00 £200.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0653 
Five Day Car Park Pass - The Holme/Leisure Centre Class 1 
- Month 1 £37.00 £37.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0654 
Five Day Car Park Pass - The Holme/Leisure Centre Class 1 
- Month 2 £74.00 £74.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0655 
Five Day Car Park Pass - The Holme/Leisure Centre Class 1 
- Month 3 £111.00 £111.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0656 
Five Day Car Park Pass - The Holme/Leisure Centre Class 1 
- Month 4 £148.00 £148.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0657 
Five Day Car Park Pass - The Holme/Leisure Centre Class 1 
- Month 5 £185.00 £185.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0658 
Five Day Car Park Pass - The Holme/Leisure Centre Class 1 
- Month 6 £222.00 £222.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0659 
Five Day Car Park Pass - The Holme/Leisure Centre Class 1 
- Month 7 £259.00 £259.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0660 
Five Day Car Park Pass - The Holme/Leisure Centre Class 1 
- Month 8 £296.00 £296.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0661 
Five Day Car Park Pass - The Holme/Leisure Centre Class 1 
- Month 9 £333.00 £333.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0662 
Five Day Car Park Pass - The Holme/Leisure Centre Class 1 
- Month 10 £370.00 £370.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0663 
Five Day Car Park Pass - The Holme/Leisure Centre Class 1 
- Month 11 £407.00 £407.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0664 
Five Day Car Park Pass - The Holme/Leisure Centre Class 1 
- Month 12 £444.00 £444.00 £0.00 0.00% 

P
age 184



Highways R0665 
Five Day Car Park Pass - The Holme/Leisure Centre Class 2 
- Month 1 £44.00 £44.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0666 
Five Day Car Park Pass - The Holme/Leisure Centre Class 2 
- Month 2 £88.00 £88.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0667 
Five Day Car Park Pass - The Holme/Leisure Centre Class 2 
- Month 3 £132.00 £132.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0668 
Five Day Car Park Pass - The Holme/Leisure Centre Class 2 
- Month 4 £176.00 £176.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0669 
Five Day Car Park Pass - The Holme/Leisure Centre Class 2 
- Month 5 £220.00 £220.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0670 
Five Day Car Park Pass - The Holme/Leisure Centre Class 2 
- Month 6 £264.00 £264.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0671 
Five Day Car Park Pass - The Holme/Leisure Centre Class 2 
- Month 7 £308.00 £308.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0672 
Five Day Car Park Pass - The Holme/Leisure Centre Class 2 
- Month 8 £352.00 £352.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0673 
Five Day Car Park Pass - The Holme/Leisure Centre Class 2 
- Month 9 £396.00 £396.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0674 
Five Day Car Park Pass - The Holme/Leisure Centre Class 2 
- Month 10 £440.00 £440.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0675 
Five Day Car Park Pass - The Holme/Leisure Centre Class 2 
- Month 11 £484.00 £484.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0676 
Five Day Car Park Pass - The Holme/Leisure Centre Class 2 
- Month 12 £528.00 £528.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0677 
Six Day Car Park Pass - The Holme/Leisure Centre Class 1 - 
Month 1 £41.00 £41.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0678 
Six Day Car Park Pass - The Holme/Leisure Centre Class 1 - 
Month 2 £82.00 £82.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0679 
Six Day Car Park Pass - The Holme/Leisure Centre Class 1 - 
Month 3 £123.00 £123.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0680 
Six Day Car Park Pass - The Holme/Leisure Centre Class 1 - 
Month 4 £164.00 £164.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0681 
Six Day Car Park Pass - The Holme/Leisure Centre Class 1 - 
Month 5 £205.00 £205.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0682 
Six Day Car Park Pass - The Holme/Leisure Centre Class 1 - 
Month 6 £246.00 £246.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0683 
Six Day Car Park Pass - The Holme/Leisure Centre Class 1 - 
Month 7 £287.00 £287.00 £0.00 0.00% 

P
age 185



Highways R0684 
Six Day Car Park Pass - The Holme/Leisure Centre Class 1 - 
Month 8 £328.00 £328.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0685 
Six Day Car Park Pass - The Holme/Leisure Centre Class 1 - 
Month 9 £369.00 £369.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0686 
Six Day Car Park Pass - The Holme/Leisure Centre Class 1 - 
Month 10 £410.00 £410.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0687 
Six Day Car Park Pass - The Holme/Leisure Centre Class 1 - 
Month 11 £451.00 £451.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0688 
Six Day Car Park Pass - The Holme/Leisure Centre Class 1 - 
Month 12 £492.00 £492.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0689 
Six Day Car Park Pass - The Holme/Leisure Centre Class 2 - 
Month 1 £48.00 £48.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0690 
Six Day Car Park Pass - The Holme/Leisure Centre Class 2 - 
Month 2 £96.00 £96.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0691 
Six Day Car Park Pass - The Holme/Leisure Centre Class 2 - 
Month 3 £144.00 £144.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0692 
Six Day Car Park Pass - The Holme/Leisure Centre Class 2 - 
Month 4 £192.00 £192.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0693 
Six Day Car Park Pass - The Holme/Leisure Centre Class 2 - 
Month 5 £240.00 £240.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0694 
Six Day Car Park Pass - The Holme/Leisure Centre Class 2 - 
Month 6 £288.00 £288.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0695 
Six Day Car Park Pass - The Holme/Leisure Centre Class 2 - 
Month 7 £336.00 £336.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0696 
Six Day Car Park Pass - The Holme/Leisure Centre Class 2 - 
Month 8 £384.00 £384.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0697 
Six Day Car Park Pass - The Holme/Leisure Centre Class 2 - 
Month 9 £432.00 £432.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0698 
Six Day Car Park Pass - The Holme/Leisure Centre Class 2 - 
Month 10 £480.00 £480.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0699 
Six Day Car Park Pass - The Holme/Leisure Centre Class 2 - 
Month 11 £528.00 £528.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0700 
Six Day Car Park Pass - The Holme/Leisure Centre Class 2 - 
Month 12 £576.00 £576.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0701 Five Day Car Park Passes - Middleton Class 1 - Month 1 £25.00 £25.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0702 Five Day Car Park Passes - Middleton Class 1 - Month 2 £50.00 £50.00 £0.00 0.00% 

P
age 186



Highways R0703 Five Day Car Park Passes - Middleton Class 1 - Month 3 £75.00 £75.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0704 Five Day Car Park Passes-  Middleton Class 1 - Month 4 £100.00 £100.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0705 Five Day Car Park Passes - Middleton Class 1 - Month 5 £125.00 £125.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0706 Five Day Car Park Passes - Middleton Class 1 - Month 6 £150.00 £150.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0707 Five Day Car Park Passes - Middleton Class 1 - Month 7 £175.00 £175.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0708 Five Day Car Park Passes - Middleton Class 1 - Month 8 £200.00 £200.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0709 Five Day Car Park Passes - Middleton Class 1 - Month 9 £225.00 £225.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0710 Five Day Car Park Passes - Middleton Class 1 - Month 10 £250.00 £250.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0711 Five Day Car Park Passes - Middleton Class 1 - Month 11 £275.00 £275.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0712 Five Day Car Park Passes - Middleton Class 1 - Month 12 £300.00 £300.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0713 Five Day Car Park Passes - Middleton Class 2 - Month 1 £32.00 £32.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0714 Five Day Car Park Passes - Middleton Class 2 - Month 2 £64.00 £64.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0715 Five Day Car Park Passes - Middleton Class 2 - Month 3 £96.00 £96.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0716 Five Day Car Park Passes - Middleton Class 2 - Month 4 £128.00 £128.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0717 Five Day Car Park Passes - Middleton Class 2 - Month 5 £160.00 £160.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0718 Five Day Car Park Passes - Middleton Class 2 - Month 6 £192.00 £192.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0719 Five Day Car Park Passes - Middleton Class 2 - Month 7 £224.00 £224.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0720 Five Day Car Park Passes - Middleton Class 2 - Month 8 £256.00 £256.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0721 Five Day Car Park Passes - Middleton Class 2 - Month 9 £288.00 £288.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0722 Five Day Car Park Passes - Middleton Class 2 - Month 10 £320.00 £320.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0723 Five Day Car Park Passes - Middleton Class 2 - Month 11 £352.00 £352.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0724 Five Day Car Park Passes - Middleton Class 2 - Month 12 £384.00 £384.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0725 Six Day Car Park Passes - Middleton Class 1 - Month 1 £28.00 £28.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0726 Six Day Car Park Passes - Middleton Class 1 - Month 2 £56.00 £56.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0727 Six Day Car Park Passes - Middleton Class 1 - Month 3 £84.00 £84.00 £0.00 0.00% 

P
age 187



Highways R0728 Six Day Car Park Passes - Middleton Class 1 - Month 4 £112.00 £112.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0729 Six Day Car Park Passes - Middleton Class 1 - Month 5 £140.00 £140.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0730 Six Day Car Park Passes - Middleton Class 1 - Month 6 £168.00 £168.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0731 Six Day Car Park Passes - Middleton Class 1 - Month 7 £196.00 £196.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0732 Six Day Car Park Passes - Middleton Class 1 – Month 8 £224.00 £224.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0733 Six Day Car Park Passes - Middleton Class 1 – Month 9 £252.00 £252.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0734 Six Day Car Park Passes - Middleton Class 1 – Month 10 £280.00 £280.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0735 Six Day Car Park Passes - Middleton Class 1 - Month 11 £308.00 £308.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0736 Six Day Car Park Passes - Middleton Class 1 - Month 12 £336.00 £336.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0737 Six Day Car Park Passes - Middleton Class 2 - Month 1 £35.00 £35.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0738 Six Day Car Park Passes - Middleton Class 2 - Month 2 £70.00 £70.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0739 Six Day Car Park Passes - Middleton Class 2 - Month 3 £105.00 £105.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0740 Six Day Car Park Passes - Middleton Class 2 - Month 4 £140.00 £140.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0741 Six Day Car Park Passes - Middleton Class 2 - Month 5 £175.00 £175.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0742 Six Day Car Park Passes - Middleton Class 2 - Month 6 £210.00 £210.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0743 Six Day Car Park Passes - Middleton Class 2 - Month 7 £245.00 £245.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0744 Six Day Car Park Passes - Middleton Class 2 - Month 8 £280.00 £280.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0745 Six Day Car Park Passes - Middleton Class 2 - Month 9 £315.00 £315.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0746 Six Day Car Park Passes - Middleton Class 2 - Month 10 £350.00 £350.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0747 Six Day Car Park Passes - Middleton Class 2 - Month 11 £385.00 £385.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0748 Six Day Car Park Passes - Middleton Class 2 - Month 12 £420.00 £420.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0749 
Five Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale Others Class 1 - 
Month 1 £30.00 £30.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0750 
Five Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale Others Class 1 - 
Month 2 £60.00 £60.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0751 
Five Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale Others Class 1 - 
Month 3 £90.00 £90.00 £0.00 0.00% 

P
age 188



Highways R0752 
Five Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale Others Class 1 - 
Month 4 £120.00 £120.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0753 
Five Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale Others Class 1 - 
Month 5 £150.00 £150.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0754 
Five Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale Others Class 1 - 
Month 6 £180.00 £180.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0755 
Five Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale Others Class 1 - 
Month 7 £210.00 £210.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0756 
Five Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale Others Class 1 - 
Month 8 £240.00 £240.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0757 
Five Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale Others Class 1 - 
Month 9 £270.00 £270.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0758 
Five Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale Others Class 1 - 
Month 10 £300.00 £300.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0759 
Five Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale Others Class 1 - 
Month 11 £330.00 £330.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0760 
Five Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale Others Class 1 - 
Month 12 £360.00 £360.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0761 
Five Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale Others Class 2 - 
Month 1 £37.00 £37.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0762 
Five Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale Others Class 2 - 
Month 2 £74.00 £74.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0763 
Five Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale Others Class 2 - 
Month 3 £111.00 £111.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0764 
Five Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale Others Class 2 - 
Month 4 £148.00 £148.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0765 
Five Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale Others Class 2 - 
Month 5 £185.00 £185.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0766 
Five Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale Others Class 2 - 
Month 6 £222.00 £222.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0767 
Five Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale Others Class 2 - 
Month 7 £259.00 £259.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0768 
Five Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale Others Class 2 - 
Month 8 £296.00 £296.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0769 
Five Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale Others Class 2 - 
Month 9 £333.00 £333.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0770 
Five Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale Others Class 2 - 
Month 10 £370.00 £370.00 £0.00 0.00% 

P
age 189



Highways R0771 
Five Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale Others Class 2 - 
Month 11 £407.00 £407.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0772 
Five Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale Others Class 2 - 
Month 12 £444.00 £444.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0773 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale Others Class 1 - Month 
1 £34.00 £34.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0774 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale Others Class 1 - Month 
2 £68.00 £68.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0775 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale Others Class 1 - Month 
3 £102.00 £102.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0776 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale Others Class 1 - Month 
4 £136.00 £136.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0777 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale Others Class 1 - Month 
5 £170.00 £170.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0778 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale Others Class 1 - Month 
6 £204.00 £204.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0779 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale Others Class 1 - Month 
7 £238.00 £238.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0780 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale Others Class 1 - Month 
8 £272.00 £272.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0781 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale Others Class 1 - Month 
9 £306.00 £306.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0782 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale Others Class 1 - Month 
10 £340.00 £340.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0783 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale Others Class 1 - Month 
11 £374.00 £374.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0784 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale Others Class 1 - Month 
12 £408.00 £408.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0785 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale Others Class 2 - Month 
1 £41.00 £41.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0786 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale Others Class 2 - Month 
2 £82.00 £82.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0787 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale Others Class 2 - Month 
3 £123.00 £123.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0788 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale Others Class 2 - Month 
4 £164.00 £164.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0789 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale Others Class 2 - Month 
5 £205.00 £205.00 £0.00 0.00% 

P
age 190



Highways R0790 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale Others Class 2 - Month 
6 £246.00 £246.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0791 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale Others Class 2 - Month 
7 £287.00 £287.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0792 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale Others Class 2 - Month 
8 £328.00 £328.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0793 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale Others Class 2 - Month 
9 £369.00 £369.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0794 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale Others Class 2 - Month 
10 £410.00 £410.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0795 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale Others Class 2 - Month 
11 £451.00 £451.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0796 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale Others Class 2 - Month 
12 £492.00 £492.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0797 Car Park Passes Premium Pass - Month 1 £71.00 £71.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0798 Car Park Passes Premium Pass - Month 2 £142.00 £142.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0799 Car Park Passes Premium Pass - Month 3 £213.00 £213.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways   Car Park Passes Premium Pass - Month 4 £284.00 £284.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways   Car Park Passes Premium Pass - Month 5 £355.00 £355.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0800 Car Park Passes Premium Pass - Month 6 £426.00 £426.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways   Car Park Passes Premium Pass - Month 7 £497.00 £497.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways   Car Park Passes Premium Pass - Month 8 £568.00 £568.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways   Car Park Passes Premium Pass - Month 9 £639.00 £639.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways   Car Park Passes Premium Pass - Month 10 £710.00 £710.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways   Car Park Passes Premium Pass - Month 11 £781.00 £781.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0801 Car Park Passes Premium Pass - Month 12 £852.00 £852.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0805 On Street Long Stay Rochdale: 3 - 4 hr £1.00 £1.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0806 On Street Long Stay Rochdale: 4 - 5 hr £1.30 £1.30 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0807 On Street Long Stay Rochdale: 5 - 6 hr £1.60 £1.60 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0808 On Street Long Stay Rochdale: Over 6 hrs £5.00 £5.00 £0.00 0.00% 

P
age 191



Highways R0809 Off Street long Stay Rochdale: 3 - 4 hr £1.00 £1.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0810 Off Street Long Stay Rochdale: 4 - 5 hr £1.30 £1.30 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0811 Off Street long Stay Rochdale: 5 - 6 hr £1.60 £1.60 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0817 Off Street Long Stay Rochdale: Over 6 hr £5.00 £5.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0830 Middleton Short Stay 3 - 4 hr £1.00 £1.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0831 Middleton Short Stay 4 - 5 hr £1.30 £1.30 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0832 Middleton Short Stay 5 - 6 hr £1.60 £1.60 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways R0828 Middleton Long Stay - Over 6 hrs £5.00 £5.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Highways NEW Hollingworth Lake 0 - 2 hr £1.00 £1.00 £0.00 0.00% 
Highways NEW Hollingworth Lake 2 - 4 hr £2.00 £2.00 £0.00 0.00% 
Highways NEW Hollingworth Lake 4 - 6 hr £3.00 £3.00 £0.00 0.00% 
Highways NEW Hollingworth Lake - Over 6 hrs £5.00 £5.00 £0.00 0.00% 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 192



Planning & Estates           

Sub-Area Ref Desc 
Current 
Charge 
2022/23 

(£) 

Proposed 
Charge 
2023/24 

(to nearest £) 

Increase 
(£) 

Proposed 
% Increase 

Estates   Annual licence fees for garden tenancies - current income 
receivable £80,000 per annum 

3% or RPI 
whichever is 

greater 

3% or RPI 
whichever is 

greater 
n/a n/a 

Estates   Average annual licence fees for garage plots current income 
receivable £64,000 per annum 

3% or RPI 
whichever is 

greater 

3% or RPI 
whichever is 

greater 
n/a n/a 

Estates   Annual licence fees for grazing licences - total income 
expected in 2017/18 = £29,000 per annum 

3% or RPI 
whichever is 

greater 

3% or RPI 
whichever is 

greater 
n/a n/a 

Estates   Minimum fee for granting landlord consent to the Council's 
tenants - increase to £250. £275.00 £286.00 £11.00 4.00% 

Estates   Increase non-returnable reservation fee for off-market 
disposals from £100 to £200 £217.00 £226.00 £9.00 4.00% 

Estates   Introduction of a minimum surveyor's fee of £500 charged on 
any disposal £542.00 £564.00 £22.00 4.00% 

Planning   Pre application consultancy charge - Assistant Director 
(hourly rate)  £82.00 £86.00 £4.00 5.00% 

Planning   Pre application consultancy charge - Chief Planning Officer 
(hourly rate) £55.00 £58.00 £3.00 5.00% 

Planning   Pre application consultancy charge - Development Manager 
(Grade 10) (hourly rate) £49.00 £51.00 £2.00 5.00% 

Planning   Pre application consultancy charge - Assistant Development 
Manager (Grade 9) (hourly rate) £44.00 £46.00 £2.00 5.00% 

Planning   Pre application consultancy charge - Senior Planning Officer 
(Grade 8) (hourly rate) £42.00 £44.00 £2.00 5.00% 

Planning   Pre application consultancy charge - Planning Officer (Grade 
7) (hourly rate) £35.00 £37.00 £2.00 5.00% 

Planning   Pre application consultancy charge - Assistant Planning 
Officer (Grade 5) (hourly rate) £23.00 £24.00 £1.00 5.00% 

P
age 193



Planning R1357 Tree Preservation Order Notice (Copy) £38.00 £40.00 £2.00 4.00% 

Planning R1358 Printed Copy Of Scanned Planning Application (Up To 10 
Documents) - Excluding Large Format Plans (Over A4 Size) £36.00 £37.00 £1.00 4.00% 

Planning R1359 Copy Of Large Application Plans (Over A4 Size) £10.00 £10.00 £0.00 4.00% 

Planning R1360 Photocopies Of Correspondence And Other Papers On 
Planning Application Files, Up To A4 Size £0.35 £0.35 £0.00 4.00% 

Planning R1361 Township Green Infrastructure Plans £29.00 £30.00 £1.00 4.00% 

Planning R1362 Public Art Strategy £14.00 £15.00 £1.00 4.00% 

Planning R1363 Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment Site Plans 
>10 £32.00 £33.00 £1.00 4.00% 

Planning R1364 Employment Land Study £150.00 £156.00 £6.00 4.00% 

Planning R1284 LDF Core Strategy - Publication 2016 £20.00 £21.00 £1.00 4.00% 

Planning R1285 LDF Background Paper 2010 £26.00 £27.00 £1.00 4.00% 

Planning R1286 LDF Report On Consultation On Preferred Options £40.00 £42.00 £2.00 4.00% 

Planning R1287 LDF Statement Of Community Involvement £15.00 £16.00 £1.00 4.00% 

Planning R1288 LDF Core Strategy Preferred Options Report £20.00 £21.00 £1.00 4.00% 

Planning   S106 monitoring fee – financial obligations 2% (capped 
at £10,000) 

4% (capped at 
£10,000) N/A N/A 

Planning   S106 monitoring fee – non-financial obligations 

£1,000 (per 
non-

financial 
obligation) 

£1,000 (per 
non-financial 

obligation) 
N/A N/A 

Building Control R1094 Building Regulation Decision Notice Enquiry (Including Copy 
Of Any Notice) £48.00 £55.00 £7.00 14.60% 

P
age 194



Building Control R1095 Building Completion Notice/Certificate Enquiry (Including 
Copy Of Any Notice) £64.00 £67.00 £3.00 4.00% 

Building Control R1096 Site History Search: Minimum Charge (Up To First Hour) £83.00 £86.00 £3.00 4.00% 

Building Control R1097 Site History Search: Each Subsequent Hour Or Part Thereof £83.00 £86.00 £3.00 4.00% 

Building Control R1102 Provision Of Late Completion Inspections & Issue Of 
Completion Certificates £197.00 £225.00 £28.00 14.20% 

Building Control R1103 Administration Fee For Building Control Fee Refunds £68.00 £71.00 £3.00 4.00% 

Building Control R1104 
Administration Charges To Building Owners For 
Inspection/Specification For Securing Buildings Open To 
Access/Dilapidated 

£159.00 £165.00 £6.00 4.00% 

Planning   
Planning Performance Agreements (to cover large scale, 
complex or strategic proposals where a bespoke fee is 
necessary to cover the work of the service) 

Bespoke 
Fee Bespoke Fee n/a n/a 

Planning   

Pre application advice - Large Scale Major Development - 
100 plus homes / 10,000m2 or above of commercial floor 
space / 2,000m2 or above of retail floorspace (gross) /major 
infrastructure projects (roads and utilities) / sites larger than 
2 hectares / all other energy projects (Case Officer Meeting 
and written advice) 

£3,978.00 £4,137.00 £159.00 4.00% 

Planning   

Pre application advice - Major Development - 50-99 homes / 
5,000m2 - 9,999m2 commercial floor space / 1000m2 - 
1999m2 retail floor space / 1.5 - 1.99 hectare site (Case 
Officer Meeting and Written Advice) 

£3,060.00 £3,182.00 £122.00 4.00% 

Planning   

Pre application advice - Major Development - 20 - 49 homes 
/ 1000m2 - 4999m2 commercial floor space / up to 500m2-
999m2 retail floor space / Site area between 1 and 1.49 
hectares / Three wind turbines (Case Officer Meeting and 
written advice) 

£2,448.00 £2,546.00 £98.00 4.00% 

P
age 195



Planning   

Pre application advice - Major Development - 10 and 19 
residential units / Between 500 and 999 square metres of 
floor space/ Between 100 and 499 square metres of gross 
retail floor space / Public realm and engineering work / Two 
wind turbines (Case Officer Meeting and written advice) 

£1,938.00 £2,016.00 £78.00 4.00% 

Planning   

Pre application advice -Minor Development - 5-9 dwellings / 
Between 100 and 499 square metres of floor space/ 
Between 50 and 99 square metres of gross retail floor space/ 
Section 73 relevant to this category / Site area between up to 
0.49 hectares/ Single wind turbine (Case officer meeting and 
written advice) 

£1,020.00 £1,061.00 £41.00 4.00% 

Planning   

Pre application advice - 2-4 dwellings / Between 50 and 99 
square metres of commercial floor space/ 26-49 square 
metres of gross retail floor space/ Telecommunications 
developments/ Site area up to 0.49 hectares/ (Case Officer 
Meeting and Written Advice) 

£561.00 £583.00 £22.00 4.00% 

Planning   
Pre application advice - 1 dwelling/ Up to 50 square metres 
of commercial floor space / Up to 25 square metres of gross 
retail floorspace (Case Officer Meeting and Written Advice) 

£301.00 £313.00 £12.00 4.00% 

Planning   Pre application advice - Written advice only for householder 
extensions or alterations £97.00 £101.00 £4.00 4.00% 

Planning   
Charge to cover Officer time to visit property and provide 
written advice on works to fell/prune protected or dangerous 
trees 

£128.00 £133.00 £5.00 4.00% 

Planning   
Fee to cover works incurred in processing requests to modify 
terms of an existing S106 agreement following a grant of 
planning permission  

£1,276.00 £1,327.00 £51.00 4.00% 

Planning   

Requests for a more bespoke pre application service, 
including meetings with more senior officers or officers from 
other services (e.g. the Local Highway Authority), or where a 
quicker response is required, for example, to meet a bid or 
funding deadline, will be subject to a bespoke charge to 
cover the work of the service. 

Bespoke 
Fee Bespoke Fee n/a 4.00% 

P
age 196



Planning   

Pre application advice – Major development proposals of 
100 + dwellings / floor space of 10,000m2 + / 2000m2 + net 
retail floor space / major infrastructure projects (roads and 
utilities) / site area over 2 hectares / energy projects   
(Charge for follow up meeting with Case Officer)  

£1,989.00 £2,069.00 £80.00 4.00% 

Planning   

Pre application advice- Major development - 50-99 dwellings 
/ 5,000m2 - 9,999m2 commercial floor space / 1000m2 - 
1999m2 retail floor space / 1.5 - 1.99 hectare site (Charge 
for follow up meeting with Case Officer)  

£1,530.00 £1,591.00 £61.00 4.00% 

Planning   

Pre application advice - Major Development - 20 - 49 
dwellings / 1000m2 - 4999m2 commercial floor space / up to 
500m2-999m2 retail floor space / Site area between 1 and 
1.49 hectares / Three wind turbines (Charge for follow up 
meeting with case officer) 

£1,224.00 £1,273.00 £49.00 4.00% 

Planning   

Pre application advice-Major development - 10 and 19 
dwellings / Between 500 and 999 square metres of floor 
space/ Between 100 and 499 square metres of gross retail 
floor space / Public realm and engineering work / Two wind 
turbines ( Charge for follow up meeting with Case Officer) 

£969.00 £1,008.00 £39.00 4.00% 

Planning   

Pre application advice - Minor Development - 5-9 dwellings / 
Between 100 and 499 square metres of floor space/ 
Between 50 and 99 square metres of gross retail floor space/ 
Section 73 relevant to this category / Site area between up to 
0.49 hectares/ Single wind turbine  (Charge for follow up 
meeting with Case Officer) 

£510.00 £530.00 £20.00 4.00% 

Planning   

Pre application advice - Minor Development -  2-4 dwellings / 
Between 50 and 99 square metres of commercial floor 
space/ 26-49 square metres of gross retail floor space/ 
Telecommunications developments/ Site area up to 0.49 
hectares (Charge for follow up meeting with Case Officer) 

£281.00 £292.00 £11.00 4.00% 

Planning   

Pre application advice - 1 dwelling/ Up to 50 square metres 
of commercial floor space / Up to 25 square metres of gross 
retail floorspace (Charge for Follow up meeting with Case 
Officer) 

£150.00 £156.00 £6.00 4.00% 

P
age 197



Planning   
Pre application enquiry to vary / modify / discharge legal 
agreement for residential / commercial development 
(Meeting with Case Officer and written advice) 

£530.00 £551.00 £21.00 4.00% 

Planning   
Pre application enquiry to vary / modify/ discharge legal 
agreement for residential development (single plot) Meeting 
with Case Officer and written advice 

£318.00 £331.00 £13.00 4.00% 

Building Control   Copies of correspondence (excluding Decision 
Notice/Completion Certificates) 

£12.50 up to 
10 A4 sides 

if over 10 
then 40p per 

A4 side 

£12.50 up to 10 
A4 sides if over 

10 then 40p 
per A4 side 

n/a 4.00% 

Building Control   Provision of certificate/written confirmation of exemption from 
the provisions of Building Regulations(PER HOUR) £83.00 £86.00 £3.00 4.00% 

Building Control   Site inspection and written report relating to structures 
exempt from the building regulations (PER HOUR) £83.00 £86.00 £3.00 4.00% 

Building Control   Registering a change of agent/applicant/change of main 
contractor when work has commenced on site £83.00 £86.00 £3.00 4.00% 

Building Control   
Provision of pre-submission consultancy advice and 
research for technical information relating to an existing 
building e.g. foundation detail(PER HOUR) 

£83.00 £86.00 £3.00 4.00% 

Building Control   Pre-submission site visits (COST PER VISIT) £83.00 £86.00 £3.00 4.00% 

Building Control   
To provide a letter relating to the building regulations for 
work which is not covered by a valid building regulation 
application (PER HOUR) 

£83.00 £86.00 £3.00 4.00% 

Building Control   Dangerous building Call Out (contractor cost <£300) 

40% of cost 
(min £75.00) 

+ £230.00 
out of hours 

charge) 

40% of cost 
(min £75.00) + 
£230.00 out of 
hours charge) 

n/a n/a 

Building Control   Dangerous building Call Out (contractor cost Between £301 - 
£1500) 

20% of cost 
(min 

£120.00) + 
£230.00 out 

of hours 
charge) 

20% of cost 
(min £120.00) 
+ £230.00 out 

of hours 
charge) 

n/a n/a 

P
age 198



Building Control   Dangerous building Call Out (contractor cost Between £1501 
- £5000) 

15% of cost 
(min 

£300.00) + 
£230.00 out 

of hours 
charge) 

15% of cost 
(min £300.00) 
+ £230.00 out 

of hours 
charge) 

n/a n/a 

Building Control   Dangerous building Call Out (contractor cost Between £5001 
- £10000) 

10% of cost 
(min 

£700.00) + 
£230.00 out 

of hours 
charge) 

10% of cost 
(min £700.00) 
+ £230.00 out 

of hours 
charge) 

n/a n/a 

Building Control   Dangerous building Call Out (contractor cost over £10000) 

5% of cost 
(min 

£1500.00) + 
£230.00 out 

of hours 
charge) 

5% of cost (min 
£1500.00) + 

£230.00 out of 
hours charge) 

n/a n/a 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 199



Facilities Management           

Sub-Area Ref Desc 

Current 
Charge 
2022/23 

(£) 

Proposed 
Charge 
2023/24 

(to nearest £) 
Increase 

(£) 
Proposed 

% Increase 
Facilities Management   Ogden Room Hire - Evening £62.00 £64.00 £2.00 4.00% 
Facilities Management   Ogden Room Hire - Saturday £79.00 £82.00 £3.00 4.00% 
Facilities Management   Hollingworth A or B or C Room Hire - Day £56.00 £58.00 £2.00 4.00% 
Facilities Management   Hollingworth A or B or C Room Hire - Evening £67.00 £70.00 £3.00 4.00% 
Facilities Management   Hollingworth A or B or C Room Hire - Saturday £85.00 £88.00 £3.00 4.00% 
Facilities Management   Hollingworth A & B or B & C - Saturday £135.00 £140.00 £5.00 4.00% 
Facilities Management   Hollingworth A & B or B & C - Sunday £148.00 £154.00 £6.00 4.00% 
Facilities Management   Hollingworth A & B & C - Day £117.00 £122.00 £5.00 4.00% 
Facilities Management   Hollingworth A & B & C - Evening £141.00 £147.00 £6.00 4.00% 
Facilities Management   Hollingworth A & B & C - Saturday £176.00 £183.00 £7.00 4.00% 
Facilities Management   Hollingworth A & B & C - Sunday £194.00 £202.00 £8.00 4.00% 
Facilities Management   Greenbooth A - Day £40.00 £42.00 £2.00 4.00% 
Facilities Management   Greenbooth A - Evening £50.00 £52.00 £2.00 4.00% 
Facilities Management   Greenbooth B - Day £57.00 £59.00 £2.00 4.00% 
Facilities Management   Greenbooth B - Evening £67.00 £70.00 £3.00 4.00% 
Facilities Management   Roch - Day £40.00 £42.00 £2.00 4.00% 
Facilities Management   Roch - Evening £50.00 £52.00 £2.00 4.00% 
Facilities Management   Watergrove - Day £30.00 £31.00 £1.00 4.00% 
Facilities Management   Watergrove - Evening £40.00 £42.00 £2.00 4.00% 
Facilities Management   Piethorne - Day £30.00 £31.00 £1.00 4.00% 
Facilities Management   Piethorne - Evening £40.00 £42.00 £2.00 4.00% 
Facilities Management   Beal - Day £22.00 £23.00 £1.00 4.00% 
Facilities Management   Beal - Evening £35.00 £36.00 £1.00 4.00% 
Facilities Management   Irk - Day £22.00 £23.00 £1.00 4.00% 
Facilities Management   Irk - Evening £35.00 £36.00 £1.00 4.00% 
Facilities Management   Ogden Room Hire - Day £50.00 £52.00 £2.00 4.00% 
Facilities Management   Ogden Room Hire - Sunday £88.00 £92.00 £4.00 4.00% 
Facilities Management   Hollingworth A or B or C Room Hire - Sunday £93.00 £97.00 £4.00 4.00% 

P
age 200



Facilities Management   Hollingworth A & B or B & C - Day £90.00 £94.00 £4.00 4.00% 
Facilities Management   Hollingworth A & B or B & C - Evening £107.00 £111.00 £4.00 4.00% 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 201



Adult Care             

Sub-Area Ref Desc 

Current 
Charge 
2022/23 

(£) 

Proposed 
Charge 
2023/24 

(to nearest £) 
Increase 

(£) 

Proposed 
% 

Increase 

Adult Care   Appointeeship fee – non-residential care (annual fee) Where 
available resources less than £5,000 £643.00 £669.00 £26.00 4.00% 

Adult Care   Appointeeship fee – non-residential care (annual fee) Where 
available resources between £5,000 and £10,000 £693.00 £721.00 £28.00 4.00% 

Adult Care   Appointeeship fee – non-residential care (annual fee) Where 
available resources over £10,000 £757.00 £787.00 £30.00 4.00% 

Adult Care   Appointeeship fee – residential care (annual fee) Where available 
resources less than £5,000 £336.00 £349.00 £13.00 4.00% 

Adult Care   Appointeeship fee – residential care (annual fee) Where available 
resources between £5,000 and £10,000 £361.00 £375.00 £14.00 4.00% 

Adult Care   Appointeeship fee – residential care (annual fee) Where available 
resources over £10,000 £394.00 £410.00 £16.00 4.00% 

Adult Care   Court of Protection Deputy fees - annual management fee first year  
£675.00 £702.00 £27.00 4.00% 

Adult Care   Deferred Payment Admin Fee (new scheme) £653.00 £679.00 £26.00 4.00% 
Adult Care   Transport (per journey) £5.00 £5.00 £0.00 4.00% 

Adult Care   Deferred Payment Interest Rate (old scheme) 

3.06% to 
6.12% 

depending on 
age of debt. 

3.06% to 
6.12% 

depending on 
age of debt. n/a n/a 

Adult Care   Full Cost Admin Fee for Managed Budgets £12.50 £13.00 £0.50 4.00% 

Adult Care   Careline £3.25 £3.25 
no 

increase 
no 

increase 

Adult Care   Careline where there is no landline, an additional fee of 1.50 applies £1.50 £1.50 
no 

increase 
no 

increase 

Adult Care   Careline Plus £5.35 £5.35 
no 

increase 
no 

increase 

Adult Care   Key safe Supply & Fit £110.00 £110.00 
no 

increase 
no 

increase 

P
age 202



 

Children's Services             

Sub-Area Ref Desc 

Current 
Charge 
2022/23 

(£) 

Proposed 
Charge 
2023/24 

(to nearest £) 
Increase 

(£) 

Proposed 
% 

Increase 

Youth Service R0075 
Duke of Edinburgh Award – Bronze or Silver – Other 
organisations £23.00 £24.00 £1.00 4.00% 

Youth Service R0076 Duke of Edinburgh Award – Bronze or Silver – Schools £23.00 £24.00 £1.00 4.00% 
Youth Service R0077 Duke of Edinburgh Award – Gold – Other organisations £32.00 £33.00 £1.00 4.00% 
Youth Service R0078 Duke of Edinburgh Award – Gold – Schools £32.00 £33.00 £1.00 4.00% 

ROCH & Old Supply Agency R0054 Supply Teacher DBS £55.00 £57.00 £2.00 4.00% 
ROCH & Old Supply Agency R0055 Supply Teacher ID £4.00 £4.00 £0.00 4.00% 

Children’s Centres R1807 Room Hire £28.00 £29.00 £1.00 4.00% 
Surestart R0064 CPD/Welfare Training Autumn £19.00 £20.00 £1.00 4.00% 
Surestart R0065 CPD/Welfare Training non attendance £19.00 £20.00 £1.00 4.00% 
Surestart R0066 CPD/Welfare Training Spring £19.00 £20.00 £1.00 4.00% 
Surestart R0067 CPD/Welfare Training Summer £19.00 £20.00 £1.00 4.00% 
Surestart R1674 Childminder pre-registration Training £14.00 £15.00 £1.00 4.00% 

No increase proposed             
Music Service R0045 Music Service Termly membership – Individual £30.00 £30.00 £0.00 0.00% 
Music Service R0046 Music Service Termly membership – Family £50.00 £50.00 £0.00 0.00% 
Music Service R0047 15 minute lesson £8.00 £8.00 £0.00 0.00% 
Music Service R0048 20 minute lesson £10.60 £10.60 £0.00 0.00% 
Music Service R0049 30 minute lesson £16.00 £16.00 £0.00 0.00% 
Music Service R0043 60 minute lesson £32.00 £32.00 £0.00 0.00% 
Music Service R1866 Music Festival entry – Individual £5.00 £5.00 £0.00 0.00% 
Music Service   Music Festival entry – duets/trios £6.00 £6.00 £0.00 0.00% 
Music Service R1867 Music Festival entry – large ensemble £10.00 £10.00 £0.00 0.00% 
Music Service   Exam accompaniment £32.00 £32.00 £0.00 0.00% 
Music Service R0037 Ticket sales variable variable       n/a      n/a 

P
age 203



 

Report to Cabinet 
 

Date of Meeting 22nd November 2022 
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Highways and Housing 
Report Author Chris Woods 

 

Public/Private Document  

 

 

Street Naming and Number Policy Review 
 

 
Executive Summary 

 
1. The first Street Naming and Numbering Policy was adopted by Cabinet 2014, 

the policy has been refreshed into the current corporate layout and amended 
to reflect the current legislation. The policy is attached to this report. 

 
Recommendation 

 
2. That Cabinet approves the attached Street Naming and Policy. 

 
Reason for Recommendation 

 
3. To ensure that the Council has a robust and fair policy and process for the 

naming and numbering of roads and properties. 
 

Page 204

Agenda Item 16



Key Points for Consideration 
 
4.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.1 

 
The Council as Highway Authority has a statutory duty to provide the names 
and numbers of roads and properties within the Borough. 
 
The Statutory powers are contained within the following Legislation and 
circulars;   
 
o Towns Improvement Clauses Act 1847 (sections 64 and 65) for 
Naming and Numbering of Properties 
o Public Health Act 1925 (Sections 17 – 19) for the naming of streets 
o Public Health Acts Amendment Act 1907 (section 17, 21 and 23) 
o Highways Act 1980 (Sections 187 and 188) 
o Local Government Act 2003 
o Department of Transport circular for roads 3/93 1993 
o Geoplace report; 5 year action plan for good addressing 2018 
 
There have been no material amendments made since the first policy, 
however the format has changed to provide a list for users to understand what 
is and is not acceptable when considering naming and number of roads and 
properties. 
 
Alternatives Considered 
 
There are no alternatives to the proposed policy. 
 

 
Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5. The Highways Service charge for the naming and numbering of roads and 

properties as per the discretionary fees and charges. 
 

Risk and Policy Implications 
 
6. Overtime, there have been different discussions about the naming and 

number of roads and properties, this proposed policy is presented in a simple 
list format with what is and is not acceptable. 
 

  
Consultation 

 
7. Consultation has taken place with the Portfolio Holder for Highways & 

Housing 
 
Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 
8. Not applicable  

 

Page 205



For Further Information Contact: Chris Woods, Tel: 01706924615, 
chris.woods@rochdale.gov.uk 

Page 206



Street Naming & 
Numbering Policy 
Highways 

 
 

Page 207



 
 
 
 
 

Street Naming & Numbering Policy

rochdale.gov.uk 1

Document Control 
 
Document Title:  
 
Summary 
 
Publication Date Xx/xx/xxxx 

Related Legislation / Applicable Section 
of Legislation 

o Towns Improvement Clauses Act 1847 (sections 64 
and 65) for Naming and Numbering of Properties 
o Public Health Act 1925 (Sections 17 – 19) for the 
naming of streets 
o Public Health Acts Amendment Act 1907 (section 17, 
21 and 23) 
o Highways Act 1980 (Sections 187 and 188) 
o Local Government Act 2003 
o Department of Transport circular for roads 3/93 1993 

Related Policies, Strategies, Guideline 
Documents  

Replaces Previous Street Naming & Numbering Policy 2014 

Joint Policy (Yes/No) No 

Name of Partner(s) if joint  

Policy Owner (Name/Position) Chris Woods, Senior Highways Officer (Strategy) 

Policy Author (Name/Position) Chris Woods, Senior Highways Officer (Strategy) 

Applies to Rochdale Borough Highway Network 
 
 
Review of Strategy 
 
Last Review Date 2014 

Review undertaken by Highways 

Next Review Date 2027 
 
Document Approvals 
 
This document requires the following approvals. 
 
Name Title Date of Issue Version Number 
Councillor Danny 
Meredith  

Portfolio Holder for 
Highways   

Page 208



 
 
 
 
 

Street Naming & Numbering Policy

rochdale.gov.uk 2

Cabinet 

 

Page 209



 
 
 
 
 

Street Naming & Numbering Policy

rochdale.gov.uk 3

1. PURPOSE OF THE POLICY 
 

1.1  To allow officers to deal with requests made for Street Names and Numbers in a 
fair and consistent manner.  

1.2 To give residents and elected Members clear guidance on the criteria for 
considering Street Naming and Numbering. 

1.3 The purpose of this policy is to establish the process, rules and fees for the 
following; 

 
• Naming new streets and Numbering properties 
• Re-naming an existing street 
• Re-numbering all properties on an existing street 
• Registering a new property / properties on an existing street 
• Allocation of numbers to properties with names only 
• Allocation of house names or changing house names to properties with a 

number 
 
 
2. CONSULTATION & APPROVALS 
 

2.1 It is proposed that Cabinet approve this policy at a meeting on the xx xxxx 2022.  
2.2 The Portfolio Holder for Highways has been consulted. 
  

3. OBJECTIVES 
 

3.1 Street Naming and Numbering is a statutory function of Rochdale Council. Street 
Naming and Numbering allows the Council to maintain a comprehensive, 
unambiguous and accurate list of addresses covering all properties in the borough. 
It is an important function as it allows: 

 
o Emergency services to find a property quickly 
o Post to be delivered efficiently 
o Visitors to locate their destination 
o Reliable delivery of goods and services 
o Records of service providers to be kept in an efficient manner 

 
3.2 This policy sets out: 
 

o The legal powers used by Rochdale Council to exercise its duty in respect of 
naming and numbering 

o The process to be followed by applicants 
o The consultation process that will be undertaken 
o Guidelines for Street Naming and Numbering 

 
3.3 The Authority has the power to approve or reject property addresses submitted 

by developers or the public, or prescribe its own addressing schemes. 
 

 
4. BACKGROUND 

Page 210



 
 
 
 
 

Street Naming & Numbering Policy

rochdale.gov.uk 4

 
4.1 The Statutory powers are contained within the following Legislation and circulars;   
 

o Towns Improvement Clauses Act 1847 (sections 64 and 65) for Naming and 
Numbering of Properties 

o Public Health Act 1925 (Sections 17 – 19) for the naming of streets 
o Public Health Acts Amendment Act 1907 (section 17, 21 and 23) 
o Highways Act 1980 (Sections 187 and 188) 
o Local Government Act 2003 
o Department of Transport circular for roads 3/93 1993 
o Geoplace report; 5 year action plan for good addressing 2018 

 
 

5. CRITERIA 
 
5.1 Suggestions for street and building names to reflect the local area or have a 

connection with the local area. 
5.2 Avoid duplication of street names within the Borough or 10 miles outside the 

Borough boundary. 
5.3 Names with a common theme are encouraged on large developments, preferably 

with a local or historic connection. Two developments with the same theme within 
the Borough should be avoided. 

5.4 Any street name that promotes a company, service or product, is not allowed. 
5.5 Names based on a developer’s trading name are an attempt at advertising and are 

not acceptable. An exception to this is for a company that no longer exists, if used 
solely in a historical context and the claim of advertising, cannot be made. 

5.6 Naming a street after a living person, is not permitted. 
5.7 Distinctions by suffix within the same or adjoining area are to be avoided, e.g. 

Butterworth Drive and Butterworth Road. 
5.8 Street names with phonetically similar names are to be avoided, e.g. Willows 

Avenue and Winnows Avenue. 
5.9 Street names that are obscene, racist or that would contravene any aspect of the 

Council’s Policies is not accepted. 
5.10 Street names that may be open to re-interpretation by graffiti or shortening of the 

name, shall be avoided. 
5.11 New street names shall not be assigned to new developments when such 

developments can be satisfactorily included in the current numbering scheme of 
the street which provides access. 

5.12 New street names shall not end in “s” where it can be construed as either a 
possessive or plural, neither shall they commence with the word “The”. 

5.13 All punctuation, including apostrophes, shall be avoided. 
5.14 Words of more than three syllables and the use of more than two words (excluding 

the thoroughfare type) shall be avoided. 
5.15 Street names are unacceptable if they are likely to cause spelling difficulties, as 

these may lead to confusion in an emergency or result in demands for a change 
of address from occupiers. 

5.16 All new property development shall be numbered rather than named. Exceptions 
may apply in existing streets where no numbering scheme exists. 

Page 211



 
 
 
 
 

Street Naming & Numbering Policy

rochdale.gov.uk 5

5.17 New streets numbered with odd numbers on the left hand side and even numbers 
on the right, commencing from the primary entrance to the street. 

5.18 Consecutive numbering used in a cul-de-sac or in a situation where there is no 
scope for future development in the street. 

5.19 The number of a property allocated to the street onto which the front door faces. 
An exception may be made if the front door provides no direct access from that 
street. 

5.20 Numbers should remain in sequence and there shall be no exclusion of any number 
due to superstition or personal preference. 

5.21 Flats and units given individual numbers where possible; the sequence of the 
numbering depends on access to front doors of individual premises. 

5.22 When a numbered property is converted to flats, the flats are numbered, e.g. Flat 
1, 20 High Street. A numbering scheme such as Flat A/Flat B or First Floor Flat 
avoided. The same shall apply for units, apartments and other forms of property 
subdivision. 

5.23 If a block of flats is built in the middle of a numbered street and cannot be 
integrated into the current numbering of that street, a name will be given to the 
block and the flats numbered internally, e.g. 1 Fiddlers House, Ipswich Road. 

5.24 When new properties are built on an existing street and there are no available 
numbers to use whilst retaining the current sequence, a letter shall be used as a 
suffix, e.g. 15a. 

5.25 New street names not to be assigned for the sole purpose of avoiding numbers 
with a suffix. 

5.26 A business name shall not take the place of a number or a building name. 
5.27 Private garages and buildings used for housing vehicles and similar purposes will 

not be numbered. 
5.28 A piece of land, e.g. a farmer’s field, cannot be given an official address, only 

property on that piece of land can have a conventional address for the purposes 
of delivering mail and services. 

5.29 On a street without numbers, a name will be allocated to any new property. 
5.30 Streets named after Armed Forces Personnel. On 17 April 2013 the council 

supported the implementation of a policy of offering families of fallen service 
personnel who have died in active duty from the borough of Rochdale, a chance 
to have a street or road named after their loved one. Such lasting recognition, if 
this were the wishes of the family, could be a poignant way of demonstrating the 
community's admiration for those who serve in the Armed Forces. 

  
If you feel you would like to do this provide the following information: 

• Your name 
• Your contact details 
• Your proposal 

o The name of the person you would like to have a street named after 
o Their rank at time of receiving medal 
o Their serial number 
o Their Regiment 
o Their last address 
o Their relationship to Rochdale 
o Why this is important to you 
o Your relationship to your friend or family member 

Page 212



 
 
 
 
 

Street Naming & Numbering Policy

rochdale.gov.uk 6

o The general area you desire for the street name 
  We will try to accommodate the request as much as possible with regard to the 

name of the street and its location, the Council will discuss this with you at every 
stage and keep you informed. 

5.31 Streets named after historical events, geographical regions or deceased persons 
(in addition to Armed Forces Personnel). Their use is restricted to having local 
relevance to the proposed development and for deceased persons the approval of 
the immediate family. 

5.32 Where street names or previous numbers established without reference to the 
Council, we have the authority to issue Renaming or Renumbering Orders, under 
section 64 of the Towns Improvement Clauses Act 1847. 

 
 
6. PROCESS 
  
For new development names and numbers; 

6.1 Anyone seeking the creation of an address for a new property must apply to 
Rochdale Borough Council in writing using the following process: 

 
1. Proposals for street names from applicants and the public are welcome for 

consideration. (A recommendation is that more than one suggestion be put 
forward in case the primary suggestion fails to comply with the guidelines). These 
should be submitted to the Street Naming and Numbering Officer within the 
Highways Service (Highways@rochdale.gov.uk)  

2. In the event of no suggestions made by the applicant, the Highways Service will 
consult the Local Studies team to establish if there are any historical names or 
relevancy and make suggestions. 

3. The Highways Service, in consultation with the applicant, will then draft a plan 
with the proposed street names and numbers on and send it via email to the 
Township Ward Councillors for the area as well as the Chair and Vice-Chair of the 
Township Committee. There will be 10 working days for representations. If the 
suggestions are rejected then alternatives should be put forward at this time, the 
alternatives must meet the criteria. 

4. Suitable alternative suggestions received put back to the applicant for their 
approval. 

5. If no alternatives received, then the original proposal carried forward and 
suggested to the Portfolio Holder and Head of Highways for approval and there will 
be no further right of appeal. 

6. Once an agreement has been reached the Highways Service will notify the 
applicant and issue the paperwork to the required stakeholders; 

7. The maintenance of postcode information, and any future change to individual 
postcodes or postcode sectors, is the responsibility of the Royal Mail. Rochdale 
Borough Council accepts no responsibility or liability for omission of postcode or 
post town information, nor for any failure of services arising from this omission. 

8. The applicant will pay costs for the erection of new Street Name Plates where a 
new street is created as all or part of a new development.  There is a specification 
for the plates and their locations and Rochdale Council contacted for advice. 
Maintenance of Street Name Plates becomes the responsibility of the Council once 
the street is adopted. 

Page 213

mailto:Highways@rochdale.gov.uk


 
 
 
 
 

Street Naming & Numbering Policy

rochdale.gov.uk 7

9. No Street Name Plate erected until Rochdale Borough Council has confirmed the 
street name in writing. 

 
Changing existing addresses 

6.2 The changing of a street name or sequence of property numbering avoided, unless 
there is specific and sufficient reason to do so. This may come in the form of a 
new development in the street, or a request from the emergency services, or a 
request following an armed services recognition name. The Council will pursue 
alternative solutions and only change the name or numbering as a last resort. In 
the event that the street name or numbering needs to be changed the following 
steps taken: 

 
1. Consultation takes place with all affected ratepayers and the appropriate 

Ward Councillors. All of the Council Tax or Non-Domestic ratepayers must 
be in favour of the proposed change to proceed. 

 
2. A report, with evidence of the ratepayers’ approval, submitted to the 

Portfolio Holder, Township Chair, Vice-Chair and Ward Councillors seeking 
their endorsement to instigate the change. 

 
6.3 All fees and payments for the street naming and numbering service are set out 

annually in the Council’s discretionary fees and charges. All payments are required 
in full before the above processes can begin. 

 
In addition to complying with appropriate legislation, this policy is compliant, at the time of 
implementation, with the document (LLPG) and the Street Naming & Numbering (SN&N) Data 
Entry Conventions and Best Practice for the NLPG” version 2.0, available from the National Land 
and Property Gazetteer, custodians at www.nlpg.org.uk. 

 
 
7 Alternatives considered 

 
7.1 Rochdale Borough Council has the legal responsibility to name and number streets. The 

Authority therefore has the power to approve or reject property and street addresses 
submitted by developers. This power extends to commercial and domestic properties. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Appendix A 
 

Page 214



 
 
 
 
 

Street Naming & Numbering Policy

rochdale.gov.uk 8

Explanatory Notes; 
 
When making an application for a plot or development to be numbered, the developer must 
provide either in hard copy or electronically, the following information: 
 

 Planning Application Number – Street Naming and Numbering administered is 
subject to approved planning, without this information, addresses, cannot be 
allocated. 

 Plans clearly showing plot numbers, location in relation to existing land and 
property and the placement of front doors or primary access on each plot. 

 Internal layout plans, if appropriate, for development that is sub-divided, at unit or 
floor level. 

 Building Regulation Number, once available, to indicate that work has commenced. 
 New properties in an existing unnumbered street will require a property name.  
 For an infill development of two or more properties accessed by a private drive, and 

if deemed appropriate by the Street Naming and Numbering Officer, we will agree 
with the developer the name of a property group, e.g. 1 - 4 Berryfields, East Bay. 

 Property with a premise number must always use and display that number. Where 
a property has a name and an official number the number must always be included 
in the address and displayed on the property. The name not regarded as an 
alternative. This is enforceable under section 65 of the Towns Improvements Act 
1847. 

  

Page 215



 
 
 
 
 

Street Naming & Numbering Policy

rochdale.gov.uk 9

 

Rochdale Borough Council

Number One Riverside

Smith Street

Rochdale OL16 1YH

  rochdale.gov.uk

  01706 647474

  council@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 216



 

Report to Cabinet 
 

Date of Meeting 22/09/2022 
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Communities and Co-
operation 

Report Author Jonathan Hindle 

 Public/Private Document Public 
 

 

Arts Council England / DCMS Cultural Development Fund grant award 
 

 
Executive Summary 

 
1 Rochdale Borough Council, Rochdale Development Agency and Your Trust 

submitted two major bids for funding as part of an ambitious programme to 
develop culture hubs across the borough as outlined in the borough’s Cultural 
Asset Strategy that was developed to support the physical delivery of 
Pioneering Creativity, the borough’s adopted Creative and Cultural Strategy. 
 

1.1 Application 1:  
An application for £4,199,365 to the DCMS Cultural Development Fund 2 
(CDF2), administered by Arts Council England (one of only six bids to be 
awarded nationally).   
 

1.2 The CDF2 funding will enable the partners to deliver the following 3 priorities 
from Rochdale Borough Creative and Cultural Asset Strategy:  
 

 Establish a Rochdale town-centre Cultural Improvement District;  
 Reconfigure and refurbish Touchstones Rochdale;  
 Pilot an innovative Borough Cultural Cooperative leadership and 

delivery model. 

1.3 Application 2:  
An application for £696,352 to the Arts Council England Capital Investment 
Programme (CIP).  
 

1.4 The CIP funding will fund internal and external refurbishment of Heywood 
Civic Centre to improve building access, experience, efficiency & 
environmental impact. It will also create new space to co-locate arts charity 
Cartwheel Arts on-site with Your Trust Rochdale creating new collaborative 
opportunities for inclusive arts participation & audience diversification 
alongside event programming that is both ambitious & locally relevant. 
 

Page 217

Agenda Item 17



1.5 The Rochdale Cultural Improvement District (CID) and Heywood Culture 
Hubs are informed by the Borough wide Cultural Asset Strategy. The strategy 
also includes plans to develop and bid for cultural investment projects in 
Middleton and Pennines. 
 

1.6 A fundraising plan has been developed and a fund raising specialist appointed 
with a view to securing additional external contributions and reducing 
requirement for RBC capital. 
 

1.7 Since the grant awards were made, work has commenced to establish the 
culture compact with partners in the borough and develop the initial proposals 
for the CID. Governance of the capital projects have been formalised and 
procurement of the design team is underway for both schemes. 

 
Recommendation 

 
2 That Cabinet approves that  delegated authority be given to the Assistant 

Director  (Legal & Governance) to negotiate and execute the relevant legal 
agreements necessary to give effect to this decision and to ensure the delivery 
of the project in accordance with the Council’s constitution in consultation with 
Director of Economy and Strategic Development Lead for Culture and Visitor 
Economy. 
 

2.1 That Cabinet notes the previous delegated decisions of 21st Feb 2022 and 
12th Apr 2022 to accept the grants and the progress since then to establish 
culture hubs. 
 

 
Reason for Recommendation 

 
3 
 

Arts Council England (ACE) require the council to enter into a deed of 
covenant that provides them security against the title deeds for Touchstones 
(20 years) and Heywood Civic Centre (15 years) that the buildings are going 
to be used for the purposes of the projects funded by the grants. This 
recommendation will allow this to be completed. 

3.1 Under the deed of covenant, the Council will require the ACE’s consent to any 
assignment, transfer, charge, lease or licence, such consent is not be 
unreasonably withheld or delayed.  
 

3.2 The previous delegated decisions included a requirement to report back to 
Cabinet.  

 
Key Points for Consideration 

 
4  
 

The two ACE grants have already been accepted under delegated authority. 
This report is required as Cabinet approval is needed to delegate authority to 
Assistance Director (Legal & Governance) to conclude the legal agreements 
and grant security over the title to ACE.  
 

Page 218



4.1 The projects will deliver four priorities from the Rochdale Borough Creative 
and Cultural Asset Strategy:  
 

a) Develop a Heywood Culture Hub 
b) Pilot an innovative Boroughwide Cultural Cooperative leadership and 

delivery model.   
c) Establish a Rochdale town-centre Cultural Improvement District; 
d) Reconfigure and refurbish Touchstones Rochdale;  

 
 Alternatives Considered 

 
4.2 To not accept major external capital funding from ACE and DCMS. There are 

limited opportunities for other investment at this scale at this time. 
 

4.3 To not accept the Capital Investment Fund grant. This would mean that the 
proposals for the Heywood Culture Hub project would not be delivered. The 
benefits outlined in Pioneering Creativity (the borough’s Creative and Cultural 
Strategy) including improved building access, experience, efficiency, 
environmental impact, programming and participatory opportunities for the 
local community would not be fully realised. 
 

4.4 To not accept the Cultural Development Fund grant. This would mean that the 
proposals for the Rochdale Creative Improvement District project would not 
be delivered. The benefits outlined in Pioneering Creativity, including a 
borough wide cultural leadership and delivery model plus leverage of previous 
investments such as Rochdale Town Hall, Town Hall Square and Rochdale 
Riverside would not be fully realised.  
 

 
Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5. Match funding has been approved within the Capital Programme of £1.4m 

Capital for the Touchstones restoration. A further £2m of the wider Town Hall 
Square public realm works linking Touchstones to the wider town centre was 
used to support the bid (Already approved within Capital Programme budget). 
 

5.1 The CIP project required match funding of £0.929m. This includes £0.264m 
identified through Your Trust building/replacement budgets and £0.665 
contribution from RBC. This has and already been included in the future 
capital allocations agreed by cabinet.   
 

5.2 A fundraising plan has also been developed with a view to securing additional 
external contributions and reducing requirement for RBC capital.   

 
Risk and Policy Implications 

 
6. Capital project designs are currently at RIBA Stage 3. Work to develop the 

proposals ready for delivery on site and to appoint a contractor (RIBA 5) will 
be taken forward by RDA. Members will be aware that the town hall 
restoration has shown that construction cost inflation is currently highly 

Page 219



unpredictable. It is also hoped that the market will be more stable when 
works commence in 2024. 
 

6.1 Both projects support the Rochdale Creative Strategy Vision – “By 2030, 
Rochdale is a creatively ambitious borough where our diverse communities 
enjoy equal access to experience, create, work and learn through great art 
and culture”. 
 

6.2 The CDF2 Project for Rochdale Cultural District supports the Rochdale 
Towns Fund Vision – “By 2034, Rochdale Town Centre will be an inclusive 
nationally renowned heritage and culture destination, providing space for 
creativity, performance and art; a desirable and affordable place to live … a 
place for creative industries to locate”. 
 

6.3 Your Trust occupy Heywood Civic Centre and Touchstones under a lease. 
The new leases is being negotiated for a period of ten (10) years. Your Trust 
will run the agreed project from each of the premises. As the security period 
extends beyond the lease term, it is recognised that if the leases are not 
renewed, the Council would need to obtain an alternative provider or operate 
the project.  
 

6.4 Under the Grant Funding Agreement, if any terms and conditions are 
breached, the ACE may withhold or demand repayment of all or any part of 
the grant. For example, this could include if the council decided it was to 
discontinue to use the buildings in the future. 
 

6.5 Section 1 of the Local Government Act 2003 gives a local authority a power 
to borrow money for any purpose relevant to its functions under any 
enactment or for the purposes of prudent management of its financial affairs 
provided it does not exceed its affordable borrowing limit. 
 

6.6 Councils also have a general power to borrow under the General Power of 
Competence in section 1 of the Localism Act 2011. It gives local authorities 
the legal capacity to do anything that an individual can do that is not 
specifically prohibited. The general power gives councils more freedom to 
be more creative in the way it delivers services and to bring about innovative 
things to meet local people’s needs. 
 

 

Consultation 
 

Page 220



7 The proposals for both projects has been informed by ‘Pioneering Creativity’, 
the cultural strategy for Rochdale, developed through broad consultation 
(‘Revealing Rochdale’ 2017) and adopted by Rochdale Borough Council 
(RBC) in 2020.  This involved significant engagement with the sector and 
individuals. 
 

7.1 A review of local creative and cultural assets, issues, opportunities and 
investment requirements, took place, informed by further wide-ranging 
consultation leading to a strategic action plan which was agreed by RBC in 
early 2021. 
 

7.2 A project has been initiated with Sheffield University to work with Year 6 
Architecture students to develop plans as part of the CDF2 project for the 
Creative Innovation District. They have met with key stakeholders including 
the Heritage Action Zone, Rochdale Business Improvement District and 
Rochdale Town Hall. Locations for a potential Rochdale town centre ‘Urban 
Room’ consultation space are being actively explored to build on 
engagement undertaken with the community in the spring and summer.  
 

7.3 Factory International have also been consulted to explore opportunities to 
connect their plans to work with Rochdale and developing plans for the CID.  
 

 
Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 
8. Pioneering Creativity – Creative 

Strategy 
 
Rochdale Borough Creative and 
Cultural Asset Review 
 
Heywood Masterplan 
 
Rochdale Town Centre Vision 
and Rochdale Towns Plan 

Number One Riverside  
 

 

For Further Information Contact: Jonathan Hindle, Tel: 01706927040, 
j.hindle@investinrochdale.co.uk 

Page 221



Document is Restricted

Page 222

Agenda Item 19
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 232

Agenda Item 20
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 241

Agenda Item 21
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	Minutes , 27/09/2022 Cabinet

	6 Family Hub and Start for Life Programme Update
	7 Need for Primary School Places 2023 - 2026
	Need for Primary School Places 2023 - 26_appendix 1, 09/11/2022 Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee
	Appendix 1: The Need for Primary School Places 2023-26


	8 Need for Secondary School Places 2023 - 2026
	9 Setting the Business Rate Base 2023-24
	10 Calculation of the 2023-24 Taxbase
	11 Q2 2022/23 Finance Update
	4.	Revenue Budget 2022/23
	4.2	Health & Social Care Pool Budget
	4.3	Budget Pressures
	4.4	Transformation Fund
	4.5	Capital Budget 2022/23
	4.5.1	Capital Budget Changes

	12 Revenue Budget Update  2023/24 - 2025/26
	13 Capital Programme 2023/24 to 2027/28
	Append. 1 for Capital Programme 2023/24 to 2027/28
	Append. 2 for Capital Programme 2023/24 to 2027/28

	14 Discretionary Fees and Charges 2023/24
	Append. 1 for Discretionary Fees and Charges 2023/24

	16 Street Naming and Number Policy Review
	Append. 1 for Street Naming and Number Policy Review
	1.	PURPOSE OF THE POLICY
	2.	CONSULTATION & APPROVALS
	3.	OBJECTIVES
	7	Alternatives considered
	7.1	Rochdale Borough Council has the legal responsibility to name and number streets. The Authority therefore has the power to approve or reject property and street addresses submitted by developers. This power extends to commercial and domestic properties.
	Appendix A


	17 Arts Council England / DCMS Cultural Development Fund Grant Award
	19 Industrial Property Portfolio Refurbishment
	20 Upperbanks (Rochdale Riverside Phase 2) - Development Update
	21 Rochdale Riverside Financial Update

